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BULGARIAN
DEVELOPMENT BANK

GENERAL INFORMATION

Bulgarian Development Bank AD
Shareholding structure as at 31 December 2019
The State through the Minister of Economy - 99.9999% and DSK Bank - 0.0001%

Supervisory Board as at 31.12.2019:

- Luchezar Borisov — Chairman of the Supervisory Board;

- Mitko Simeonov - Vice Chalrman of the Supervisory Board;

- Velina Burska - Member of the Supervisory Board.

Management Board as at 31.12.2(19:

- Stoyan Mavrodiev - Chairman of the Management Board and Chief Executive Director;
- Rumen Mitrov - Vice Chairman of the Management Board and Executive Director;
- Nikolay Dimitrov - Member of the Management Board and Executive Director.
Head office and registered address as at 31.12.2019:

1000 Sofia, Sredets area, 1 Dyakon Ignatli Str.

Registration Number - UIC 121856059

Join auditors of Bulgarian Development Bank AD:

Deloitte Audit OOD Grant Thornton OOD
103, Al. Stambolljski Blvd. 26, Cherni Vrah Blvd.
1303 Sofia 1421 Sofia

Bulgaria Bulgarla
cebgreceptionteam@delolttece.com office@bg.gt.com

This document is a translation of the original Bulgarian text, In case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevall.



BULGARIAN
DEVELOPMENT BANK

INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANK
THE GROUP

At the end of 2019, the Financlal Group Bulgarian Development Bank ({the ,Group™ or the “Financial
Group”) comprise Bulgarian Development Bank AD (,BDB", the ,Bank") and its subsidlaries - National Guarantee
Fund EAD (NGF), Micro Financing Institution Jobs EAD {MFI), Capital Investments Fund AD (CIF) and the
established In 2019 subsidiaries - BDB Leasing EAD (BDB Leasing) and BDB factoring EAD (BDB Factoring).

% BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

UIKC 121856059

Address: 1 Dyakon ignatiy Sir.. 1000 Soffa, Bufgaria

J0B3 KICRO FIRANCING CAPITAL INVESTMENTS | BDA LEAZING
IRSTHUTION FUND
WIC 201280740 UK 200321438 G 205322014 uc:ssesat |
s s pras |

Bulgarian Development Bank AD

Bulgarian Development Bank AD, UIC 121856059 was established on 11 March 1999 as a Joint-stock
company under the name of Encouragement Bank AD. By means of the Bulgarian Development Bank Act {(BDBA),
on 23 April 2008 the name and scope of activity of the Bank were changed, so as to be able to apply schemes
and instruments to finance public Investments and projects of pricrity for the country's economy.

Being the only state-owned bank in the country, BDB provides funding for programmes entrusted to it
specifically by the government of the Republic of Bulgaria. The exposure to a customer or.group of reiated clients,
other than credit Institutions, central governments and central banks, complies with the requirements and limits
of Regulation 575/2013/EU taking into account the effect of credit risk mitigation under a procedure lald down
by the Management Board.

Bulgarian Development Bank AD holds a license for banking activity issued by the Bulgarian National Bank
No B825/25.02,1999 updated with an Ordinance of the Supervisory bady No RD22-2272/ 16.11.2009.

Bulgarian Development Bank AD holds a license for an investment Intermediary issued by the Financial
Supervision Commission with Ordinance No 4 of 08.01.2002 according to which it may provide investment
services and perform Investment activities? under Article 6, paragraph 2 of the Markets In Financlal Instruments
Act (MFlsA), as well as additional services under Art. 6, paragraph 3 of the MFIsA.

At the end of 2019, the Bank Is a sole owner of the capttal of Trade Center Marltsa EOOD (TCM); however, the company Is not a
part of the strateglc business model of the Financial Group of BDB.

2 |nvestment services are provided and Investment actlvities are performed in accordance with the requirements of MFIsA, Directive
2014/65/EU of the European Parlfiament and of the Councll of 15 May 2014 on markets in financlal Instruments and amending Directive
2002/92/EC and Directive 2011/61/EU (Directive 2014/65/EU or MIFID I1), Regulation (EU) 600/2014 of the European Parllament and of the
Council of 15 May 2014 on markets in financial instruments and amending Regulation (EU) No 648/2012 (Regulation (EV) 600/2014),
Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2017/565 of 25 Aprll 2016 supplementing Directive 2014/65/EU of the European Parllament and of

Management Report of Bulgarian Development Bank AD for 2019 Page 4 of 57

This document is a translation of the original Bulgartan text, in case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevail.



The Bank does not provide investments services, nor investment activities under Article 6, paragraph 2,
ltems 8 and 9 of the MFisA - organization of a multilateral trading facility and an organized trading facility.

As of 31 December 2019, the paid-in capital is BGN 601,774 thousand (31 December 2018: BGN 601,774
thousand). The capital consists of 6,017,735 ordinary reglistered voting shares of par value BGN 100 each. As of
the date of preparation of this report, the ownership of the capital Is distributed as follows: 95.9999% of it Is held
by the Republic of Bulgaria, represented by the Ministry of the Economy, 0.0001% is held by DSK Bank.

BDB is governed in accordance with Article 5 of BDBA, according to which the Bank has a two-tier
management system with the Minister of 'Economv exercising the state's rights at the General Assembly of
Shareholders of the Bank. Members of the BDB's management bodies are appolnted in compliance with BDBA,
Credit Institutions Act, Commercial Act, and the Regulations on their implementatlon, adopted by Bulgarian
National Bank.

Bulgarian Development Bank AD has not acquired own shares pursuant to Article 187e of the Commerclal
Act (CA).

BDB Is not a party to transactions falling within the scope of Article 240b of the Commercial Act with
reference to Article 247 of the same Act.

There are no shares of the Bank acquired, held or assighed during the reporting year by the members of
the management bodies. Pursuant to Article 6, paragraph 4 of the BDBA, the members of the Management and
controlling bodies, the procurators and the senior management cannot hold shares and cannot be provided with
options for shares of BDB, and in subsequent accounting periods no agreements may be concluded as a result of
which in any future perlod changes may occur in the relative volume of shares held by current shareholders.

The average number of staff of the Bank as of the end of 2019 Is 216 employees,
Bulgarian Development Bank AD has no branches.
The head office and registered address of BDB is at 1, Dyakon Ignatii Str., 1000 Sofia City.

BDB complies with the applicable Bulgarian and European environmental protection legislation. The Bank
conducts an environmental Impact analysis of all projects for which such an analysis Is required under the
applicéble {egal framework. In the project implementation process, BDB requires the submisslon of the necessary
permits and documents, and strictly monitors the precise implementation of the projects. In case there are
stricter environmental requirements set out in the loan agreements with external creditors, BDB requlres
compliance with these higher standards by lts cllents and monitors thelr performance.

In the field of human resource development, BDB focuses on continuing support for development and
training of staff, creating prerequisites for professional growth of Its highly qualified professionals.

BDB has no dedicated research and development unit and Bank is currently not planning actions in this
area, but staff training.

The Bank's financial performance and ratlos are stable. There are no non-financial indicators, the value of
which would affect the results of its principal activity.

the Councll as regards organizational requirements and operating conditlons for investment firms and defined terms for the purposes of that
Dlrective {Delegated Regulation (EU) 2017/565) and the acts on thelr Implementation.
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MAIN FOCUS ACTIVITIES AND PROJECTS IN 2019
KEY EVENTS

In 2019 the most significant changes in the regulatory framework of the Bank are the following: changes
in the Antl Money Laundering Act, Updated Ordinance No 4 on the Requirements for Remunerations in Banks,
Ordinance No 7 on the Organlzation and Risk Management of Banks, Ordinance No 10 on the Internal Controls
in Banks, Ordinance No 20 on the Issuance of Approvals to Members of the Management Board and Supervisory
Board of a Credit Institution and Performance Requirements for Their Dutles, Guldelines of EBA on Manageament
of non-performing and forborne exposures (EBA/GL/2018/06), Guidelines of EBA on Disclosure of non-
perferming and forborne exposures (EBA/GL/2018/10), Guidelines on outsourcing arrangements
(EBA/GL/2019/D2), Guldelines for the estimation of LGD appropriate for an economic downturn {‘Downturn LGD
estimation’) (EBA/GL/2019/03), Guidelines on specification of types of exposures to be assoclated with high risk
(EBA/GL/2019/01), Guidelines on connected cllents under Article 4 (1) (39) of Regulation {EU) No §75/2013 and
BNB Ordinance No 37 on the Internal Exposures of Banks; changes in Markets in Financlal Instruments Act and
applicable regulations and the Personal Data Protection Act.

In the past 2019, the main activities in the field of information technology development were the
consolldation and modernization of the Bank's hardware and software environment, as well as compliance with
the growing number of new regulatory requirements for banking Institutions. The overail SWIFT infrastructure
and services were successfully transferred to the service desk of BORICA AD -SaaS, which increased the reliability
of the service and reduced the overall maintenance costs. Besides, AP Gateway to BORICA platform was
successfully created In accordance with PSD2 requirements for payment services. The Bank's web banking was
completely modernized and 2FA {2-factor authentication) was implemented for additional securlty. A large-scale
project has been launched and implemented to change and upgrade the Bank's hardware environment In the
main and spare data center to support the BDB's growing business, including the introduction of the next
generation firewalls to fully enhance cyber security.

In 2019, the internatlional rating agency Fitch Ratings carried out its regular annual review and confirmed
the credit rating of the Bulgarian Development Bank AD. in April 2019, Fitch Ratings Agency upgraded the outlook
of the long-term credit rating of BDB from BBB Stable Outlook to BBB, Positive Qutlook. Following the next review
in November 2019 Fitch Ratings revised the outlook of the long-term credit rating from BBB, Positive Outlook to
BBB Stable Outlook. This is the highest credit rating asslgned to a Bulgarian financial institution, and for BDB it is
fimited by the rating of the sovereign - the Bulgarian State.

. As of 31.12.2019 and the date
Rating effective as of As of 31,12.2017 As 0f 31.12.2018 of preparation of the
Management Report
Date of preparation of the rating: 13.12.2017 06.12.2018 27.11.2019
Long term Rating (IDR, SRF) ,BBB" .BBB* | ,BBB"
Outlook Stable Stable ' Stable

The rating agency's assessment is based on the rellable support of the sovereign - the Bulgarian State, the
BDB's good financial performance, its good capitalisation, and Its role In supporting the government's economic
policy. The stable outlook shows the existence of a balance in risks associated with credit rating assessments.

The stable equity base contributes significantly to the high capital adequacy. BDB is the institution with
the highest level of capitalization in the banking system of Bulgaria, significantly above the statutory minimum.

The General Assembly of Shareholders of BDB held in November 2019 approved the audited financial
statements /separate and consolidated/ of the institution for 2018, certifled by the Joint auditors, Ernst & Young
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BULGARIAN
DEVELOPMENT BANK

Audit COD and Zaharinova Nexta QOD. Buigarian Development Bank reported a profit for distribution for 2018
amounting to BGN 25,130 thousand. The General Assembly tock a decision to distribute the 2018 profit of the
Bank according to para 3 of Ordinance No 1 of the Council of Ministers of 31 May 2019 as follows:

- Dividend for shareholders amounting to 80% of the profit in compliance with Art. 247 of the
Commercial Act;
- The remaining balance of the profit to be taken to Other Reserves heading.
In 20189, the product and credit portfolio of the Bank continued to develop, as also the diversification of
the sources of financing.

At the end of 2019, BDB has signed agreements with two commercial banks and five non-financial
institutions vnder the COSME+ Programme in support of small and medium-sized businesses. The COSME+
Programme Is implemented with support from the European Fund for Strategic Investments for indirect financing
of small and medium-sized enterprises with guarantee facllity and counter-guarantee. The COSME Programme
builds upon the Entrepreneurshlp and Innovation Programme (EIP) launched in the period 2007-2013. The
Programme's total budget amounts to EUR 2,300,000 thousand and covers the period 2014-2020. four areas of
support are included in its scope - improving access to finance for SMEs in the form of equity and debt
instruments; improving access to SME markets worldwide, improving framework conditions for business
competitiveness and promoting entrepreneurship.

The implementation of the Leasing Line Programme directed towards partners - non-banking financial
institutions-- lessors registered with BNB and carrying our finance lease activities continued in 2019 as well.

At the end of 2019, BDB signed an agreement for BGN 1 miillion under the launched in 2018 programme
for indlrect support for SMEs through commercial banks and non-banking financial institutions. The programme
is for indirect financing of farmers wha are members of mutual credit cooperatives of private farmers. Its budget
amounts to BGN 15 milllon. The loans are limited up to BGN 1,500 thousand and mature within 5 years.

In 2019, the BDB developed and further expanded the useful effect of the COSME+ programme renewed
In 2018. In the last annual period BDB established new partnerships with five non-bank financlal Institutions and
concluded with them on-lending transactions under the COSME+ Programme for EUR 9.6 mililon. As a result, the
total amount of the resource directed by the BDB under this Programme to SMEs amounts to EUR 24.6 million
provided to form portfolios of a total of 6 banks and non-bank financial Institutions. Structured under the COSME
mechanism of the European Investment Fund, the renewed BDB Programme offers banks and non-bank financial
institutions up to a 10-year on-lending financlng in euro at an interest rate of 3M EURIBOR+1.9 % and 60 %
guarantee {on principal and contractual interest up to 90 days) on sub-deals representing sub-loans and bank
guarantees in favour of SMEs. The programme's budget Is EUR 33,333,333 and the maximum exposure to SMEs
amounts to EUR 150,000. Maximum annual interest on regular principal on sub-loan is up to 3M EURIBOR +5.7%
In general or up to 3M EURIBOR + 5.7% and 0% management commission for financing "Projects with soclal
impact", encouraging the realizatlon of Investment projects with maln or predominant purpose to ensure real
employment and integration of people with disabilities, young people without families and children subject to
juvenile justice through the business of the businessman-borrower, The maximum total remuneration for
commitment under a sub-transaction - bank guarantee Is up to 2% per year. The programme provides for priority
consideration of the requests of start-ups and creates relief In the provision of collateral on behalf of the final
reclpients - SMEs.

As it becomes increasingly popular on the microfinancing market, BDB took actlon before the EIF and
concluded an agreement to extend the deadline for the formatlon of portfolios of sub-transactions that shall
benefit from BDB guarantee and, accordingly, from the EIF's counter-guarantee.
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BULGARIAN
DEVELOPMENT BANK

- As a result of the BDB structured on-lending Programme for private farmers, more than 380 private
farmers from Plovdiv region were given the opportunity to access a low-Interest loan resource for their activities,
and for the last two quarters of 2018, sub-loans worth more than BGN 500 thousand were granted. Through this
Programme, BDB provided indirect funding to private farmers through mutual-aid credit cooperatives, which are
listed in the BNB register as non-bank financial institutions, but because of their competitive business they are
strongly isolated from affordable lending resources provided by commercial banks and rely mainly on
contributions to their capital by thelr members or foreign capital. BDB makes it possible to meet this deficit by
providing for a start budget of the Programme of BGN 15 million and a maximum individual on-lending limit to a
credlt cooperative of BGN 1.5 mllllon for a five-year period, with very attractive interest rates and a 0 %
commission for flnancing management.

In 2019, BDB implemented a new product for indirect financing to SMEs lessees under operating lease
contracts, named Program for providing credit lines for operating leases in favour of small and medium-sized
enterprises "ALL/4/ SME On-Landing Program". Within the year, BDB approved the conclusion of two on-lending
contracts with leasing companles providing assets to SMEs on operating leases for a total amount of EUR 6
million.

In 2019, the existing programmes from previous perlods continued thelr development: Program Forward
(low interest financing with a 30% guarantee facilitating access to finance for SMEs) and the Leasing Line Program
(facilitating access to a resource for the purchase and leasing of assets used in the business of SMEs).

BDB's pollcy is to attract malnly a long-term resource to finance its credit activity and thus creates a
natural balance between the term of the asset and the liability. In 2019 BDB utiltzed nearly BGN 530 millton from
international financlal institutions. These funds are fully allocated to loans and used to support the Bulgartan
business. In 2018, the entlre contractual amount of the agreement signed on 13 December 2018 with the China
Development Bank under the "One Belt, One Road" initiative was also utilized.

In June, the International Economic Forum "Reads to Partnership" was held. The event marks the 20th
anniversary of the Bank. The focus of the meeting was the European discussion under the InvestEU programme
and its future potential in the South East Europe. Specialists that define the policies, leading financlers, top
representatives of the European Commission and presidents of banks, took part in the Forum, organized by BDB.

InvestEU programme provides for a single European tool for support of the investments for the period
2021-2027. The programme s based on the successful experlence of EFSI Impiementation and current EC tools.
The InvestEU Programme will provide a guarantee from the EU budget that will support financial products
provided by the partners Implementing the Programme. Investments are stimulated in four political "windows"
{areas) in which financlal products will be developed: sustainabie infrastructure, research, innovation and
digitlsation, SMEs and small intermediate enterprises, social investment and skills. BDB Is actively working on the
Pillar Assessment, which is a mandatory step before the Inclusion of a financial institution as an implementing
partner under the Programme. An initial financial model for the financial products under the Program has also
been developed.

In October 2019 BDB recelved a positive opinion from the European Commission on the principle of
eligibility for particlpation in the InvestEU Programme.

In December 2019 BDB received approval from the Commission for participation as Implementing
partner under the Connecting Europe Facility - Transport Blending Facility), under which projects receive a 25%
grant from the European Commission.

2019 passed for the Bulgarlan Development Bank under the sign of its twenty-year anniversary. In this
regard, a complete rebranding of BDB and an advertising campaign was carried out through the main media
channels — television, radio and internet medla.
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For eight months —from Aprll to November 2019 together with the Regional Museum of History of Sofia,
the education campaign of BDB "My European Capltal” was held. It was aimed at high school students and ended
with an exhibition of graduates of the drawing schools In the exhibition hall of Largo.

After the establishment of the Capital Investment Fund in 2018, In March 2019 BDB also established two
new subsidiaries — BDB Leasing EAD and BBR Factoring EAD — with a scope of activity financial lease and factoring
services. The formation of the new companies turns the institution into a full-fledged financial group offering a
wide range of financial services.

In the future, the Bank will continue to offer working capital financing, capital Investment and export
financing for small and medlum-sized buslnesses. The Bank offers flexible and market-friendly financial solutions
that meet the specifics of the borrower and the funded project.
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BULGARIAN
DEVELOPMENT BARK

SUCCESSFULLY IMPLEMENTED PROGRAMS AND PROJECTS

Bulgarian Development Bank AD - Programs of natlonal significance

In 2019 as well, Bulgarian Development Bank AD contlnues to provide financing under the Energy
Efficiency of Multi-Family Residential Buildings National Programme {EEMFRBNP) approved by Decree No 18 of
2 February 2015 of the Council of Minlsters of the Republic of Bulgarla (the Program). The Programme is orlented
to the renovatlon of multi-family residential buildings with a main objective to secure better living conditions for
the residents in the multi-family residentlal buildings, heat comfort and higher quality of living environment. The
implementatlon of energy efficiency measures in multi-family residentlal buildings will contribute to higher evel
of the energy efficiency of multi-family residential buildings and energy costs decrease; improving the
exploitation features for extending the life cycle of the buildings; and providing conditions of living environment
In line with the sustalnable development criteria. The Programme has significant environmental effect —
according to an expert evaluation as a result of the Programme, the reductien of carbon dioxide emissions is
estimated at 319,000 tCO2/year and the energy saving Is 726,000,000 kWh/year. The economic effect consists
of giving more opportunities to business for Economic activity - designers, construction industry, companies for
technical audits, companies for energy efficiency audits, materials' producers, etc., as also participation in the
implementation of the Programme of small and medium-sized companies from all over the country. The
Programme achieves also soclal effects by providing additional employment; establishing traditions in the
manzagement of muiti-family resldentlal buildings; and Increasing public awareness of the ways for energy
efficlency enhancement. The program activities cover the entire territory of Republic of Bulgaria, within 265
municipallties. The financial resource set aside by the State budget for the Programme amounts to BGN 2 billion.

Examples of projects financed by the Bank:

A company working in the field of loglstics, transport and shipping, operating In a logistics base consisting
of 3 /three/ main terminals located close to the town of Sofia, as well as 8 /eight/ local hubs located near Plovdiv,
Stara Zagora and Varna. Currently, the company is the largest loglstics operator under temperature regime in
Bulgaria. All services offered can be carried out within temperature ranges from +20 to -25C. Since its
establishment in 2005, the company has offered Its customers integrated 3PL logistics services of high quality,
which is based on dynamlc and modern infrastructure, a network of own and hired vehicles and qualified
employees. The activity of the company and the logistics center is regulated by the certificate of registration by
the Bulgarian Food Safety Agency, HACCP internal audit management system, ISO 1:2008, as well as
certification according to international standard IFS Logistics. This makes it possible to store and distribute food
and Ingredients for the production of goods for direct consumption, as weli as certification of goods without the
customers themselves being certified. The main directions under way are warehousing, commodity control and
inventory management, accurate time distributlon and other value-added services (including Cross-docking,
commissioning, palletization, packaging and repackagling of goods, insurance of transported and stored goods,
labelling).

A high-tech and fast-growing group in the fleld of digital and offset printing. The companies within the
group carry out activities related to digital wide-format printing; offset printing; construction and maintenance
of advertising facllitles; information technologles and professional digital printing solutions; design and
construction of Integrated information management systems in the field of printing and advertising business;
complex solutions in the field of external and interior advertising. The group has 20 years of successful market
historv and leadership positions in the Industry, with a market share of 40% of the wide-format market in
Bulgarla, as a result of high-tech equipment, high print quality, closed production cycle, qualified staff, ERP
management systems. The production activity Is carried out through printing facilities in Sofia (sub part of the
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National Palace of Culture — 13,000 sq.m.) and Varna with a total area of 5,466 sq.m. The group has a long-term
relationship with counterparties. A diversified client portfolio is malntained with over 900 customers, mostly
corporate, including Mondelize {Kraft Foods), Coca Cola, Nestle, Shell, Praktiker, Beiersdorf {Nivea), Kaufland,
McDonald's, Carlsberg, Heineken, Metro Cash & Carry, Mr. Bricolage, Billa, Mobiltel, Vivacom, Zagorka, Postbank,
Ficosota, DSK Bank (OTP), UniCredit Bulbank, as well as agencies New Moment New Ideas Company, DDB Sofla,
Zenith Medla, Zak, TBWA, Noble Graphics, Gray Worldwide, Maccan Ericson, etc.

Start-up, fast-growing micro-enterprise working in the fleld of technological innovation. It sells on the
territory of three continents — USA, Eurcpe and Asia, through three micro hubs bullt on the territory of Bulgaria,
Serbla and the USA. The maln product — therapeutic glasses is associated with the application of "AYO"
technology, representing a method of dealing with Insomnla, lack of energy and Jet-Lag, which acts in the
following three directions:

-  Stimulation of sensory cells in the eye retina, by imitating sunlight;
-  Suppress melatenin production by sending signals from sensory cells to the human brain.
- Subsequent sharp increase in melatonin levels;

The technology integrates to Smart phones through an i0S and Androld application that manages it. For
the realization of the high-tech product, the company works closely with Hoover Dam Technology.

Combined plant and livestock farm, having one of the most modern milk production facilities in the
reglon of Eastern Bulgaria, located in the Municipality of General Toshevo, Dobrich. Currently, the farm has 1,850
dairy anirnals, providing an annual yleld of 4.2 = 4,5 million ltters of fresh cow's milk. After realization of the
Investment program, the capacity of the company is expected to reach 2,800 animals and the productlon on an
annual basls — over 10 million litters. The cow farm works closely with "Macler" Bulgaria and Danone — Romania.

OVERVIEW OF THE ECONOMIC ENVIRONMENT AND BANKING SYSTEM IN 2019

In 2018, the Bulgarian economy continued to report record low unemployment combined with a decrease
in the trade deficit and an Increase in foreign investment. GDP growth during the year remains sustainable and
ahead of the euro area and EU averages — the NSI data for 2019 show GDP growth of the EU-27 by 1.5% and of
Bulgaria by 3.4% compared to the previous year 2018, For 2019 GDP reaches a nominal value of BGN 118,669
billion with BGN 16,973,000 per caplta. GDP growth slowed In the second half of the year, Influenced by
decreased export and stocks. For 2019, the growth is 3.4%. The maln driver of GDP growth remains domestic
consumption. During the year, the biggest increase In gross value added was recorded by the real estate
operations sectars (+5.6%), Financial and insurance activities (+4.8%) and General government {+4.6%).

The trade balance deficit for 2019 Is BGN-6.7 billion compared to BGN 6.8 billion for 2018. Export Increased
by 4.2% on annual base and import by 3.6%. There has been a decrease in the trade balance deficlt In third
countries and an increase In the deficit to the EU. According to BNB data, forelgn direct investments exceeded
EUR 1 billion at the end of 2019, compared to EUR 537 million for the whole 2018. The investments are mainly
in the form of debt instruments - loans from parent companles that are granted to their Bulgarian companies.

Gross external debt at the end of December 2019 Is EUR 34.1 billion (55.8% of GDP), which is EUR 956.2
million {2.9%) more than at the end of 2018. The external debt of the private sector increased by EUR 210 million
and the state debt increased by EUR 59 million during the year. The reason for the new government debt was
the additional cost of buying the American planes. At the beginning of 2020, government securities were placed
for BGN 200 mlllion. The average weighted yield on the five-year government securities decreased to -0.11%. For
the first time, the state has managed to reach negative ylelds in this maturity segment.
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High economic growth contributed to lower unemployment in 2019. According to data of the NSI, the
unemployed in 2019 are 142.8 thousand. Compared to 2018, the number of unemployed people decreased by
17.6%. On the basis of the economically employed population, it can be assumed that there is almast no longer
unemployed population left and the business begins to suffer from a lack of staff. This creates competitiveness
challenges and implies measures to Intensify growth. It also has a positive impact on wages, which will contribute
to individual consumption (the biggest factor In GDP - on final use costs).

The average salary for the country in December 2019 Is BGN 1,349 and its annual growth is 12%. The
increase In the public sector is 12.2% compared to the corresponding period for 2018, while in the private sector
growth Is 12.1%. A wage growth in the public sector is set in 2020 budget.

According to preliminary data of NSI, consumer prices continue to increase in 2019, with the average
annual inflation for the period January - December 2019 compared to the period January - December 2018 being
2.5%. The main reason for the growth In prices during the year are Restaurants and Hotels (+5.7%) and Food
products and soft drinks (+4.9%). A relatively significant decrease was observed in the Communications sector (-
2.6%).

By the end of 2019, International financial institutions and leading financial market participants had
expected Increase of global growth by 3.2% in 2020, but according to the World Bank's latest forecast, the global
economy will report Its biggest decline since the end of World War Il In 2020 due to the coronavirus pandemic.
This will lead to a significant decrease in consumer Incomes and millions of people will fall into poverty, according
to the forecast. Global gross domestic product will decrease by 5.2% in 2020, Bulgaria's GDP is expected to
decrease by 6.2%, and in developing economies the decline will average 2.5%.

Banking sector

The past 2019 was one of the most successful year for the banking sector In Bulgaria, marked with record-
high profits, growth of bank portfollos and a decrease in the share of bad loans. The environment of low and
negative interest rates will continue to have an impact on the cost of financing, net Interest income levels and
banks' interest margins. With regard to the consolidation processes — in 2019 the process of merger of Plraeus
Bank Bulgaria — a bank in the second group, Into Eurobank Bulgaria, which falls into the first group, according to
the classification of BNB, has been completed.

As of December 31, 2019, 24 banks operate in Bulgaria, five of which are branches of foreign banks. The
total amount of assets of the banking system Increased by 8.2% on an annual basis to BGN 114.2 blllian {(EUR
58.4 billion}. The five largest banks, which, according to the classification of the Banking supervision department
of BNB, fall under the so-called first group of banks comprise 62.1% of the total amount of assets in the banking
system. At the end of 2018, their market share was 59.4%. As at 31 December 2019, the market share of second
group banks decreased from 41.7% to 34.7%, and that of a third group, which Includes branches of foreign banks,
increased to 3.2% from 2.9%, compared to a year earlier.

The banking system’s profit after taxes at the end of December was BGN 1.675 million and represents an
annual decrease of BGN 3 million {-0.2%). The profit dynamics is due to the decrease in general administrative
expenses and the increase In net income from fees and commissions. Banks were able to reduce their
adminlstrative expenses despite the increase In employee benefits. During the year almost all banks Increased
thelr fees and commissions which resulted in higher revenue.

Deposits attracted by banks contlnue to grow. At the end of December 2019, their amount reached BGN
85.16 blllion despite low interest rates. This Is an evidence for trust in the system, but the lack of a capital market
and rising prices in the real estate market also contributes. The increase in deposits is also a resuit of a high
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tendency for saving by households, who hold about two-thirds of deposits In the banking system (65.3% at the
end of December 2019).

As of the end of December, loans to credit institutions decreased by BGN 709 million. Mortgage loans
contlnued their steady growth with BGN 135 million for December 2019, while loans to companies decreased by
BGN 403 million during the month. Compared to the corresponding period for 2018, the loans granted grew by
BGN 5.43 billion which in nominal terms Is less than the borrowed funds.

As at 31 December 2019, the volume of non-performing loans {excluding central banks and credit
institutlons) decreased to BGN 3.94 billion or up to 5.9% as a share, with the downward trend continuing.
Althcugh the level of non-performing loans still remains above the EU average, at the end of 2019 the leve! of
coverage of gross non-performing loans and advances in the Bulgarlan banking system is at a level of 59%. By
comparison, the caverage rate far European banks, according to ECB data for the third quarter of 2019, is 44.45%.

BDB compared with the banks operating In the country

in the perlod 2017-2019 BDB reallzed the strongest growth and slgnificant growth of assets since Its
establishment, like most natlonal development banks in the region. The Bank has achleved a stable structure of
operational assets and a balanced portfolio, and demonstrates the capacity to fulfil special mandates of the
government.

The spread of the Covid-19 pandemic paralyzed the business and had a strong negative effect on the
global and Bulgarian economy. To address the negative effects and business expectations of the beginning of
March 2020, the government has taken measures that bring financial resources directly into the economy. BDB
has undertaken the implementaticn of two government mandates after its capital was increased by BGN 700
million: special mandate for guarantee programmes with a budget of BGN 200 million and an anti-crisis
programme with a budget of BGN 500 million for portfolio guarantees for business loans. The programmes are
implemented with the participation of commercial intermediary banks, which grant 6-year loans and loans
without fees, commisslons and penalties for their service. As a result of the Increased capital, BDB became the
fourth largast bank by the Indicator In Buigaria.
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OVERVIEW OF THE ACTIVITY AND SELECTED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Operating results
Bulgarian Development Bank AD continues to work actively towards the objectives set, while maintaining

high levels of liquidity and capitalization. The process of modernisation and updating the BDB's aperations
continued throughout 2019 as well, while the Bank continued to increase the volume of Its actlvity.

Key financial ratios as of 31 December 2019:

Comprehensive income Change Yoy
Net Interest income 61,433 53,791 14.2%
Net fee and commisslon income 1,931 2,027 -4.7%
Net income on foreign exchange deals 421 379 11.1%
Net gain/{loss) on flnanclal assets at fair
value through other comprehensive 3,687 738 399.6%
Income
General and adminlistrative expenses : 26,320 - 22,948 14.7%
Other operating Income (Net results) 911 1,547 -41.1%
L

Income before Impalrment 42,063 35,534 18.4%
(Expenses) from Impalrment and i 29,001 - 8781 230.3%
pravisions

Profit before Income tax 13,062 26,753 -51.2%
Income tax expense 2,005 - 1,623 23.5%

Net profit for the year 11,057 25,130 -56.0%
Actuarial gains /{losses) on defined 8 33 -245.5%

beneflt plans, net of taxes
Netchange in fair value of financial
assets atfairvalue through other 6,128 1,108 453.1%
comprehensive income

Total comprehensive Income for the year 17,137 26,271 -34.8%

The 2019 interest income amounts to BGN 72,855 thousand (for 2018: BGN 63,280 thousand) or an
increase by 15.1% compared to prior reporting year which is due to the increased volume of credit receivables
in the financing of the corporate business in the direct loan portfolio. Interest expenses alsa Increase amounting
to BGN 11,422 thousand for 2019 compared to BGN 9,489 thousand for 2018 or an increase by 20.4% taking into
account the Increased volume of berrowings from internatlonal financial institutions for the financing of the
Bank's activities. As a result of the realized for 2019 interest income and expenses, net interest income for the
financial year 2019 was reported 14.2% higher in comparison with 2018, with a value of BGN 61,433 thousand
(for 2018: BGN 53,791 thousand).

Net income from fees and commisslons amounts to BGN 1,931 thousand compared to BGN 2,027
thousand for 2018, representing a decrease of 4.7%.
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Net profit on flnanclai assets measured at fair value in other comprehensive Income for 2019 recorded
significant growth on an annual basis, reaching BGN 3,687 thousand compared to BGN 738 thousand for the
financial year 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, general and administrative expenses, including depreciation and amortization
expenses, amounted to BGN 26,320 thousand and are higher by 14.7% than the expenses for 2018 (as of
December 31, 2018: BGN 22,948 thousand). As of the end of 2019, general and administrative expenses are 14%
below those planned for the period in Budget 2019, with the cost-to-revenue ratio significantly lower than the
average level for the banking system.

As at 31.12.2019, the financial result of the Bulgarian Development Bank AD after taxes was a profit of
BGN 11,057 thousand compared to BGN 25,130 thousand for the previous reporting year. The decrease in the
reported financial result is due to the significantly higher amount of accrued expenses for impairment and
provisions in 2019.

Statement of financial position indicators as of 31.12.2019:

Financial position As at31,12.2010 Aset31.12.2018 Change Yoy
Assets
Cash In hand and balances in current account with the 250,619 297,622 -15.8%
Central Bank
Recelvables from banks 339,248 429,548 -21.0%
FInanclal assets at amortised cost 1,821,671 1,511,079 20.6%
Financial as.sets. at fair value through other 542,119 594,249 -8.8%
comprehensive income
Investments In subsidlaries 109,488 105,625 3.7%
Fixed assats 36,955 32,818 12.6%
Otherassets 46,991 41,820 12.4%
Total assets 3,147,091 3,012,761 4,5%
Uabilities
Deposits from creditinstitutions 7.877 5,759 36.8%
Borrowlngs from international institutions 1,211,937 504,782 33.9%
Deposlts from customers otherthan credit institutions 1,134,049 1,307,522 -13.3%
Other borrowlngs 17,119 17,306 -1.1%
Otherliabilities 7,090 5,406 31.2%
Total llabllities 2,378,072 2,240,775 6.1%
Equity
Issued capital 601,774 601,774 0.0%
Retained earnings 11,057 25,130 -56.0%
Revaluation reserve on fln?nc!al assets atfairvalue 12,183 6,05 101.2%
through other comprehensive income
Other reserves : 144,005 139,027 3.6%
Total equity 769,019 771,986 -0.4%
Total llabllitles and equity 3,147,001 3,012,761 4.5%

As at 31 December 2019, the Bank's assets amounted to BGN 3,147,091 thousand, representing an
increase of 4.5% compared to the previous year.

Management Report of Bulgarian Development Bank AD for 2019 Page 15 of 57

This document Is a translation of the original Bulgarian text, in case of divergence the Bulgartan text shall prevail.



The credit actlvity of BDB conslists of both direct lending and indirect financing through programs for
funding commercial banks, which use the recelved funds to provide loans to SMEs and agricuitural producers,
i.e. the so called on-lending.

As at the end of 2019, the financial assets measured at amortised cost increased by 20.6%, the largest
share of the increase being the increase in the gross value of the loans and advances directly granted, which as
at 31 December 2019 amounted to BGN 1,808,945 thousand {compared to BGN 1,197,889 thousand as at 31
December 2018), or an increase of 51% for the reporting year 2019.

Under the National Energy Efficiency Programme {NEEP} launched in 2015, the total agreed funding
under the signed contracts is BGN 1,950,074 thousand at the end of 2019 {compared to the end of 2018 - BGN
1,842,885 thousand). The sites for which targeted financing contracts have been concluded with the Bank are a
total of 2,022. Under the Energy Efficiency of Multl-Family Residentlal Bulldings Natlonal Programme by the end
of 2019 - completed loans under which the Ministry of Regional development and Public Works has forwarded
amounts to BDB AD are for 1,715 bulldings. The utilized amount is BGN 1,864,010 thousand and gross receivables
on inans with accumuiated Interest amounted to BGN 145,139 thousand {as at 31.12.2018 - BGN 472,803
thousand).

In 2019, the Bank continued to actively develop its business, supporting Bulgarian businesses, continuing
to maintain a diversification of the industry structure of its loan portfolio. Greater dynamics are observed In the
relative shares In the credit portfolio of the followlng sectors: industry {increase by 903%), Tourist services
(growth of 1469%), Transport (growth of 78%). (Note 19B to the annual financial statements).

Borrowings from international institutions at the end of 2019 comprise 50.9% of the liability structure and
amount to BGN 1,211,937 thousand compared to BGN 904,782 thousand at the end of 2018. BDB utilized EUR
180,000 thousand In the fourth quarter under the third tranche of the Financla! Cooperation Agreement signed
In December 2018 with the Development Bank of China for a total amount of EUR 300,000 thousand.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

BDB is a key instrument and a channel for conducting government economic policies, including in specific
areas, regions, industries and social groups. The Bank and the companies actively collaborate with all government
state structures in order to ensure maximum impact of the public funds targeted on support of the economic
development. The focus of the activity Is pre-export, export and bridge financing.

BDB and its subsidiaries operate in full transparency and apply the best banking and management
practices. A core objective of the Bank is to reach the sectors of the economy and borrowers experiencing
difficulties in accessing and obtaining financing, by providing financial sclutions and products to overcome
market imperfections.

In pursuing its mission, BDB supports government efforts for acceleration of economic growth in the
country by means of providing expertise and performing activities in all area of economic policies, facilitating the
absorption of the EU structural funds, enhanclng the export potentlal of the country, financing public and public-
private project or partnerships of strategic national or regional importance, incl. infrastructural projects, etc.

The spread of the Covid-19 pandemic paralyzed business and had a strong negative effect on the global
economy. To address the negative effects and business expectations of early March 2020, the government has
taken measures that bring financial resources directly intc the economy. BDB took over the Implementation of
two government mandates after its capital was increased by BGN 700 million: special mandate for guarantee
programmes with a budget of BGN 200 million and an anti-crisis programme with a budget of BGN 500 mitlion
for guarantees porifolios for business loans. The programmes are Implemented with the participation of
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commercial intermedlary banks, which grant 6-year loans and loans without fees, commissions and penalties for
thelr service.

. The main principle underlylng the BDB's activity is not to allow distortion of competition and displacement
of the traditional commercial banks from the market. By compensating any existing market shortages in financing
certain segments and clients, BDB and its subsidiaries contribute to adjusting their risk profile and further
facilitate the increase of bank medlation and growth in credit volumes in the economy.

The strategic goals of BDB are:

¢ To facilitate the economic growth by supporting regions and sectors of the economy with
established market shortage and potential for growth;

@ To help SMEs quickly overcome the crisis by balancing between different sectoral pricrities and
national economic priorities and programmes endorsed by the government;

* To stimulate the economic activity of the Investors for the modernization of the material and
technological basis and for boosting the competitiveness of the economy;

* Tofacilitate the economic growth of the regions through financing, including syndicated, of sizable,
strategic and infrastructural, by thelr nature, projects and investments;

e  To support the development of competitive productlon Initiatives and sectors of the economy of
proven export potentlal;

e To facllitate, jointly with the other institutions in the country, the access to financing of innovative
and newly established companies (start-ups);

» To facilltate and support the directlon of capital flows to the Bulgarlan economy.

In planning and carrying out its operational objectives, BDB will maintain the two approaches to support
SMEs In the country - through direct lending and through indlrect programmes through commerclal banks. BDB
follows the principles of prudent risk assessment and adequate management of these risks.

With regard to direct lending, the Bank will further develop focused product lines related to SME support.
To fulfil the objectives, prioritles will be pre-export, export and bridge financing. Traditionally, the Bank will
continue to provide financing for small and medium-sized businesses with a longer loan perlod and relieved legal
requirements for loan collateral.

The Bank considers that, in a context of high liquidity in the banking sector, the absorbing of part of the
risk, namely additional risk that discourages commercial banks from financing, would be a key factor In the
success of indirect programmes.

BDB, together with the Group's companies, will interact with the operational programme management
bodies in Bulgarla, Identifying existing problems in the financing of specific measures and offering solutions for
their removal, including specific farms for their financing. At an accelerated pace, consultations will be carried
out in order to adequately include the BDB in the overall model of public resource management, in support of
the development of the country's economy. The Bank considers Iits participation in it as an essential step in
increasing the effectiveness of measures to support the Bulgarian economy.

DEVELOPMENT OF BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD IN 2020

The Bank's maln strategic objectives and policles in 2020-2021 will be as follows:

- Continued growth of funding to support the development of the national economy and the
realization of the economic pricrities of the government;

- Conducting a sustainable process for the formation and development of targeted product lines,
within the framework of the two main approaches for financing SMEs;
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- Conservatlve assessment of the risks assumed and maintaining a high level of coverage of bad loans
with provisions.

The Bank intends to significantly diversify Its funding sources, The Bank wlll use bond instruments in the
formation of llabllity where balancing, in terms of the international and the domestic market, will be made
currently and depending on the specific market conditions.

BDB intends to apply for the role of a direct guarantee implementing partner under the InvestEU
programme, a programme that Is to be a major support channel for business in the next programming period in
the EU.

In the context of the Covid-19 pandemic, BDB as the only state bank that has implemented a number of
initiatives to support companies and citizens for whom the epidemiologlcal situation has negatively affected the
ability to carry out their activities, work, etc. The Bank wili continue to be a key Instrument for realization of the
government policy In the post-crisis recovery phase.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The internal control processes within the Bank include the following components:

a} control environment - a description of the control environment can be found in items Risk
Management, Control Environment, and in the Corporate Governance Statement, Control
Environment sectlon;

b) risk assessment process - a description of the control assessment of the risks of the Bank may be
found in Corporate Governance Statement, Risk Management section;

¢) information system, Inciuding the related business processes relevant to the flnanclal reporting,
and communication - description of the informatlon system of the Bank may be found In the Risk
Management and Control Environment sections;

d) control activities - a description of the contrel activities of the Bank may be found in the Risk
Management section, part of Corporate Governance Statement, Structures for Risk Management
and Committees to the Management Board sections;

e) ongoing monltoring of controls - a description of the ongoing monitoring and control of the Bank
may be found In Corporate Governance Statement, Structure for Risk Management and
Committees to the Management Board sections.

RISK MANAGEMENT

In managing its risk, BDB applies policies and procedures based on best practices and appropriate to the
nature and complexity of its activity. In the course of the ordinary activity, BDB is exposed to various financial
risks, the occurrence of which may iead to losses and to deterloration of the financial stabllity of the Bank. These
risks are identified, measured and limited to acceptable levels by means of limits and restrictions that reflect the
BDB's willlngness to take specific risks in order to achieve its strategic objectives. The risk management process
Is Important for the Bank’s profitability and existence. The most significant risks, to which the Bank is exposed,
are credit, market, liquidity and operational risks.

CREDIT RISK

The credit risk is the key risk to which Bulgarian Development Bank is exposed, and therefore, its
management Is a key priority of the Bank's activity. The credit risk management Is carried out in compliance with
the BDB Act, and the effectlve statutory laws and regulations of the Republic of Bulgarla, regulating the credit
activity, the established internatlonal norms and best banking practices. BDB uses internal rating for the
evaluation and management of the credlt risk (incl. from counterpartles) under the exposures. Bodles for
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monitoring, control and assessment of the quality of the credit portfollo have been created and are functioning
at Bulgarian Development Bank. Procedures and mechanlsms have been introduced for ongoing monitoring,
recording and management of the credit portfolio, requiring perlodic, and if necessary, extraordinary reports on
the financlal and legal status of each borrower and liable persons When new circumstances are established,
which may lead to a change in the risk profile of the borrowers, Including increasing the risk of default of the
credit exposure, adequate measures are undertaken, which take Into account the risk profile of the debtor. When
managing the credit risk, BDB follows a system of internal Bank limlts by economic sectors, by instruments, as
well as other credit limitations and thresholds for concentration, and the results from the monitoring of their
compliance are reported to the competent bodies. The system of limlts Is reviewed and updated periodically.

MARKET RISK

In managing the currency risk, BDB follows the principle of maintaining minimum open FX positions
through the observing of established limits. The positions of the Bank in varlous currencles, as well as the general
FX position are monitored on a dally basis. The FX positions are not formed for speculative purposes, but are the
consequence of the currency transactions, occurring in the course of the ordinary bank activity. These foreign
exchange operations relate to the current financing needs of the position. In managling Its assets and llabllitles,
due to the specifics of its financing, BDB seeks to malntain these assets and liabilities In EUR or BGN. The Bank's
open FX position takes into account the terms and possibilities for netting the EUR and BGN positions In
accordance with the applicable regulatory framework.

In managing Interest rate risk, the Bank follows the principle of malntaining a balanced structure of its
interest-sensitive assets and liabilitles, seeking to maintain consistency between the frequency of change in
interest on assets and liabilities, as well as a correlation between the applicable reference interest rates on assets
and on the liabilities of the BDB. A system of iimits for the maximum acceptable {quantitative) Impact of various
shock scenarios on the change in market interest rates on net interest income and the economic value of the
Bank's capital has been introduced. The internal limit framework mitigates the potential risk on expected future
returns and the economic value of capital, within acceptable levels corresponding to the risk tolerance of the
BDB. The Interest rate risk assessment is carried out using a set of techniques including yield-based
measurement, measurement of the economic value of capital, analysls of discrepancies, interest rate stress
scenarios.

The assumption of risks when transacting on the money and capital markets is managed by a system of
limits reflecting the risk profile of the investments. These limlts are determined according to parameters of the
portfollo, like counterparty, financial instrument, maturity, etc. The system of limits is periodically reviewed,
while the compliance with the limits Is subject t¢ daily monitoring. The securities portfolio, created by BDB in
order to invest the available funds, 1s characterized by a relatively low interest rate risk and comprises relatively
liquid government securities and securlties Issued by reliable institutions, i.e. low price risk. BDB does not
maintain trade portfolio and is not subject to capltal requirements for market risk from trading activitles, In
accordance with regulatory provisions.

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk management and control is carried out through day-to-day liquidity monitoring and
management, maintalning access to sufficient liquidity to ensure the discrepancies between cash inflows and
outflows at maturity intervals, both In a normal banking environment and in different liquidity-aggravated
scenarios. The liquidity of BDB is managed by strictly monitoring the ratios, indicating the liquidity position by
periods. The liquidity risk is measured by applying additional scenarios for the cash flows from operations. In
addition, the liquid buffers of the Bank are measured and monitored, as well as the additional sources of
financing upon market and idiosyncratic shocks. The main focus of liquidity management s to maintain an
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adequate level of liquidity buffer in accordance with the established limits and restrictlons set according to the
risk tolerance of the BDB.

OPERATIONAL RISK

For operational risk management BDB applies a systematic approach covering the collectlon of objective
information, timely identification of operational risk, its measurement (qualitative and quantitative), the
Identification of dependencies with other types of risk and the application of measures to [imit its Impact on the
financial performance and on the capital of the Bank. The operational risk is managed by strictly monitoring and
registering all operational events occurring in the actlvity of the various units as a result of the processes within
the Bank identifying and managing the full range of operational risks. Operational events, which are more
frequent, and the ones having great potentlal or real Impact on the BDB's financial result, are subject to strict
Investigation and monitoring. They serve as the basis for the analysis of the operational risk in various scenarios,
Including operational risk stress tests. The operational risk is measurable and controllable, while a registry of the
operational events is maintained and used as basis for analysls and Improvement of the Bank's working processes
and for minimizing the conditions, which could potentially lead to operational events and loss for the Bank. The
necessary capltal for operational risk is calculated by using the basls indicator approach pursuant to the
applicable regulatory framework.

RECOVERY PLAN (DIRECTIVE 59/15.05.2014/EU)

BDB has developed a Recovery Plan of the BDB Group. At the end of the reporting year 2019 it is a valid
document approved by decision of the MB No32/31.05.2019 and declslon of SB N016/21.06.2019. As of the date
of preparation of this report its latest update, approved by decision of the MB No. 5/06.02.2020 and decision of
the SB No. 4/19.02.2020, was submitted to BNB. The Plan complies with the requirements laid down in the Law
on the Recovery and Resolution of Credit Institutions and Investment Firms, Guidelines on recovery plan
indicators and Technical advice on critical functlons and core business lines of the European Banking Authority.

The Recovery Pian addresses the systemically important/critical functions of the BOB Group and sets out
the recovery Indlcators - a system of indicators the Bank observes with the aim of early identification of potential
situations which could Jeopardize the financial performance of the institution. The prerequisites for the
implementation of the recovery measures set out in the Recovery Plan are described. Scenarios and recovery
options are considered which, in the event of activation of the Recovery Plan, can be taken, as well as the Internal
communication and decision-making process. A communlcation action plan has been elaborated In case of
activation of the Recovery Plan.

The Recovery plan is updated once a year and proposed for validation by the MB and SB of BDB.
Furthermore, the Recovery Plan is updated In the event of 2 material change in the legal or organisational
structure, activity or financial position of the Bank, or In the financial system in Bulgaria, which may have a
significant impact on its effectiveness.

CONTROL ENVIRCNMENT

Internal control in the Bank is a continuous process carried cut by the management bodies and by persons
engaged In internal control functions. Elements of internal control are systems for:

1. management control;
2. risk control;
3. reporting and information; and

4, internal audit.
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The first three elements of the internal control system are within the competence and powers of the
relevant authorities. The fourth element of internal control Is a responsibility of the group's Internal audit.

The internal control of the Bank Is organised as an independent assessment of the legality of the banking
transactions and is carried out by monitoring and verifying the financial, accounting and other operations, as well
as by the way how the powers of officials in declsion-making are exercised. The internal control system of the
Bank 1s subject to the requirement of economy, efficiency and reasonable sufficiency.

Internal control is carrled out simultaneously as preventive, ongoing and subsequent control over the
Bank’s positions and its separate processes, activities and transactions. The general Internal control over the
activltles of the Bank is performed by the Supervisory Board.

For implementing the effective framework of risk management and internal control, the Bank applies the
model of the three lines of defence:

The first line of defence Is the management control that the leaders of the operational units are exercising.
The operational management Identifies, evaluates, controls and mitigates risks, ensuring that they operate in
accordance with the objectlves set out in advance.

The second line of defence is the risk management and compllance function carried out by the Risk
Management, Compliance and the Ciassified Information Departments with regard to the prevention of money
laundering and terrorist financing. In their actlvitles, these departments are supported by Management, Analysis
and Regulation and Legal Departments. The second line of defence is independent from the first one In terms of
organisation, and carries out preventlve and ongoing control.

The third line of defence is the internal audit function. Internal Audit of the Group Department carries out
ex-post control and prevides assurance to senfor management with respect to the effectiveness of risk
management, internal control and corporate governance, as well as the way in which the first and second lines
achieve the risk management and control objectives. Internal Audit of the Group Department provides
compreahensive assurance from the position of the highest level of iIndependence in the organlsation, through a
direct subordination to the Supervisory Board.

Management assighs powers and responsibllities for the operating actlvity in line with a detailed internal
normative set of documents, which are in conformity with the current national and European legislations, where
in order to guarantee the relatlonshlips in accountancy and reporting, and various speciallzed committees, by
hlerarchy of authorities, were formed to the MB and $B of BDB as stated in the Corporate Governance Statement,
belng part of the current financial statements.

The Bank has developed an Internal set of documents, which includes policy and communications focused
on ensuring that all employees understand the goals of the Bank, knows how Individual actions are
Interconnected and contribute towards these goals, and who and how is reporting and what is their
responsibility.

BDB has established an information system, including buslness processes related to it, providing the
necessary quality and control of the financial accountability and communication.

The Bank's audit committee monitors the financial reporting processes, the effectiveness of Internal
control systems and the effectiveness of risk management systems; moreover, It monitors the independent
financial audit, reviews the independence of the registered auditor, and makes recommendations for selecting
a registered auditor.
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BANK SUPERVISION AUTHORITIES PURSUANT TO THE BULGARIAN LEGISLATION

As of 31 December 2019, the Bank has observed ali regulatory requirements of BNB and the Bulgarian
legislation.

The capital adequacy ratio on an individual basis as of 31 December 2019 was 29.09% (31 December 2018:
35.96%). The coverage of assets with capital buffers exceeds by many times the statutory requirements. BDB
continues to maintain a good liquidity level. The liquidity coverage ratio (according to the definition of Regulation
575 /2013/EU, LCR) of the Bank is 533% as of 31 December 2019 (compared to 1,331% at the end of 2018).

INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION

BDB continues to develop successful partnerships with leading European and Internatlonal flnancial
institutions, including through participating in renowned associations. This cooperation enables the Bank to take
advantage of the best banking practices, know-how, information on flnanciai products, and also to participate in
their development and implementation. BDB has direct access to up-to-date general and specific information
about the latest changes in the legislative framework at European level and its implementation In the area of the
development banks, and has the opportunlty to participate in the process of negotlating these amendments. The
membership In Internatlonal speclallzed assoclatlons ailows BDB to take part In seminars and meetings with the
European Commisslon and its Directorates.

- Since 2005 BDB is an active member of the European Association of Public Banks (EAPB). The
membership in EAPB contributes for the exchange of experience and best practices between BDB
and the European public banks. In November 2019 BDB participated in the annual meeting and the
annual conference of the leaders of EAPB members’.

- Since 2007, BDB is a full member of the Network of European Financial Institutions (NEFI), including
representatives from 19 institutions from various European countries. The mission of NEFI 1s to
improve the exchange of information and ideas in order to facilitate SME's access to financing.

- in 2019, BDB continued Its participation in the activity of the European Assoclation of Long-term
investors (ELTI). BDB is a co-founder of this organization. In November BDB took part in the general
meeting of the Association.

- After being the first President by rotation and took the host's role at the First Internatlonal Meeting
of the China-CEEC Interbank Association of China and the Central and Eastern European countries
In July 2018, In April 2019 BDB participated in a meeting of the Board of Directors and a meeting
of the Committee of Senior Officials within the association. The BDB was alsc presented in a
seminar on "Concepts and Practices for Sustainable Development” in China.

- BDB Is a shareholder of the European Investment Fund {EIF) and regularly participates in the
discusslons of the Group of Financial Institutions - shareholders, where the guidelines for
development of the activities and policy of EIF are discussed. BDB regularity votes on various topics
- the admission of new shareholders and other organizational matters. In 2019 BDB hosted the
Meeting of EIF Minority Shareholders.

- BDB organized and hosted a Meeting of Development Banks from the Balkans and Central and
Eastern Europe. Five new institutions joined the Memorandum of Cooperation signed In 2018 In
Sofia. Currently, the partners include eleven natlonal and multilateral development banks from
Croatia, Hungary, Macedonia, Romania, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Serbia, Siovenia and Bulgaria. The
Memorandum allows for the implementation of major infrastructure projects without the
accumuiation of debt by individual governments and by using resources from different sources.
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- In 2019, the BDB became a member of the Central and Eastern European Chamber of Commerce
and Industry (Singapore). The organisation is aimed at supporting and promoting business, trade,
investment, finance, services, industry, econemic and commercial interests between CEE members
and Singapore.

BANK GOVERNANCE

There were no charges In the main BDB corporate governance principles in 2019,

Bulgarlan Development Bank AD has a two-tler corporate governance structure, which consists of
Supervisory Board (SB) and Management Board {MB). As of 31 December 2019 the management structure
consists of the following:

Supervisory Board (SB) of BDB:

Luchezar Borisov - Chairman of the 5B

Luchezar Borisov was born in 1587 in Samokov. He completed his Master studles in Macroeaconomics and
Accounting and Finance at the University of National and World Economy {UNWE). He has several speclalizations
in Bulgaria and abroad, including in Entrepreneurship and Risk Capital in AUBG, Project Management In WIFI,
Austria, Encouragement of Foreign Direct Investments in JICA, Japan, Stock exchange and Banking in CITIBANE,
etc. He has rich experience in corporative management. Mr. Borisov has been part of the management of both
private and state-owned companles in the Industry, energy and financial sectors. Currently he is a Deputy
Minister of Economy,

Mitko Simeonov - Deputy Chairman of the S8

Mitko Simeonov has a Master degree in Law from the New Bulgarian University and a Master degree in
International Economic Relations from the University of National and World Economy. He also holds a
postgraduate degree in financial management from the University of National and World Economy. He was
Deputy Executive and Executive Director of the Agency for Privatization and Post-Privatization Control.

Velina Burska - Member of the 5B

Velina Burska has a Master Degree in Economics and Organization of internal Trade from the Unlversity
of National and World Economy. From 2002 to 2017 she was the director of the Post-Privatization Control
Directorate at the Agency for Privatization and Post-Privatization Control.

Management Board of BDB:

Stoyan Mevradiev Chairman of the Management Board ond Chief Executive Director

Stoyan Mavrodiev holds a Master degree in Law from Sofia Universlty "St. Kliment Ohridski" and a
Master degree in Finance from the University of National and World Economy. He attended a series of courses
at the International Tax Academy In Amsterdam, and has also trained in the US Department of State's
International Program of Leaders. HIs career started as 2 legal, tax and business consultant at
PricewaterhouseCoopers. In the period 1996-2006, he worked as a financlal and lega! consultant In the United
Consulting, which he also managed. From 2009 to 2010 he is Deputy Chairman of the Commisslon for Economic
Policy, Energy and Tourism and member of the Budget and Finance Committee of the 41st National Assembly.
For & years (2010-2016), he Is Chalrman of the Financial Supervision Commission {FSC), which oversees and
regulates the financial system and the non-banking financlal sector In Bulgarla. From 2010 to 2016 he is a member
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of the Advisory Financial Stability Board (FSF). In this period, it is also a member of a number of internatlonal
organizations, including ESMA, EIOPA, ESRB, I0SCO, [AIS and IOPS.

Rumen Mitrov - Deputy Chairman of the Management Board and Executive Director

Rumen Mitrov holds a Master of Accounting and Control from the University of National and World
Economy. His professional experience began in 1994 at NRA Sofia. In the period 2000-2003 he Is the manager of
the petroleum products impert company "GMN GAZ", and from 2003 to 20211 he is engaged in financlal and tax
consultancy as manager of the two accounting companies "Eurotim Bulgaria" and "RM Consult”. From 2011 to
2016, he was consecutively appointed Director of "Investment Activity Supervision”, "Regulatory Policy”, and
"Coordinatlon, Analysis and Policy of Supervisory and Supervision Activities” divisions in the Financial Supervision
Commission [FSC).

Nikolay Dimitrov - Member of the Management Board and Executive Director

Nikolay Dimitrov holds a Ph.D. in Economics from the University of National and World Economy (UNWE)
with specizlizations "International Economic Relatlons" and "Finance". Between 2007 and 2015, he completed a
number of additional courses and qualifications at the Judge Business School at Cambridge University (UK), the
Investment Banking Institute (USA), among others. His banking career started at the end of 2003 and went
through Ralffelsen Bank and United Bulgarian Bank. He Jolned the Bulgarian Development Bank in July 2011, in
January 2012 become Head of the Investment Banking and Project Finance Department, and since April 2013 he
is Head of the Corporate Banking Division. Alongside, he has been an associated professor at the Department of
International Economlc Relations at UNWE over the period 2010-2017.

Bulgarian Development Bank AD Is represented by either two of the Chief Executive Director, Executive
Directors and the Procurator, jointly.

Contracts signed with related partles invoived In the management and participation of the Bank's MB and SB
members in other companies

There are no contracts signed pursuant to Art. 240b of the Commerclal Act between the members of the
SB and MB or persons related to them, on one hand, and the Bank, on the other, which fall beyond the ordinary
course of business or which devlate signlficantly from the market conditions.

In 2019, there were no concluded deals between BDB and its related parties, or offers for signing such
deals, which fall outside the scope of the ordinary activity, or which significantly deviate from the market
conditions, to which BDB or Its subsidiary is a party.

There are no material contracts of the Bank, which lead to action, are amended, or terminated, due to
change in the control of the Bank, when performing a compulsory public procurement procedure. As far as there
is a legal restriction regarding the acceptable range of shareholders of BDB, pursuant to the BDBA, no such
contracts are expected to be concluded.

The BDB Group does not have practice and has not concluded agreements between the BDB and the
management bodles or employees for the payment of compensation upon reslgnation or dismissal without legal
grounds thereof, or upon terminating the legal employment relationships by reasons related to tender offers.

A participation, pursuant to Art.247, Para.2, item 4 of the Commerclal Act, of members of the S8 and
MB in commercial companies as general partners holding more than 25 per cent of the capital of another
company, as well as their participation in the management of other business companies or cooperatives as
procurators, managers or members of boards, is as follows (as of 31 December 2019):
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With respect to members of the Supervisory Board (SB) of the Bank:

: Luchezar Dimitrov Borisov - Chairman of the SB - he participates in the management of Energy
Efficiency and Renewable Sources Fund, UIC: 131330278, member of the MB of the company;

Mitko Emilov Simeonov - he has no particlpations In the capital and management of other
companies;

Vellna llleva Burska - she has no participations in the capltal and management of other companies.
With respect to members of the Management Board (MB) of the Bank:

Stoyan Todorov Mavradiev - Chief Executive Director, Chairman of the MB; he participates In the
management of the following commerclal companies:

Capltal Investments Fund AD, UIC: 205322014, a subsidiary of the Bank, as Chairman of the Board
of Directors and Executlve Director;
National Guarantee Fund EAD, UIC: 200321435, a subsidiary of the Bank, as Chairman of the Board
of Directors;
BDB Leasing EAD, UIC: 205565411, a subsidiary of the Bank, as Chairman of the Board of Directors
and Executive Director;

- BDB Factoring EAD, UIC 205566082 a subsidiary of the Bank, as Chairman of the Board of Directors
and Executive Director,

Particlpation In the share capltal of commercial entities:

-  Real Estate Ventures EQQOD, UIC: 131160908, sole owner.

Rurnen Dimitrov Mitrov - Executive Director, Vice Chairman of the MB, he participates in the management
of the following commercial companles:

Micro Financing Institution Jobs EAD, UIC: 201390740, a subsidiary of the Bank, as Vice Chairman
of the Board of Directors;
Capital Investments Fund AD, UIC: 205322014, a subsidiary of the Bank, as Vice Chalrman of the
Board of Directors;

- BDB Leasing EAD, UIC: 205565411, a subsidiary of the Bank, as Vice Chairman of the Board of
Dlrectors;

- BDB Factorlng EAD, UIC 205566082 a subsidiary of the Bank, as Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors.

Participation in the share capital of commerclal entitles: none.

Nikolay Dimltrov Dimitrov - Executive Director, member of the MB; he participates in the management of

the following commerclal companies:

- Micro Financing Institution Jobs EAD, UIC: 201390740, a subsldiary of the Bank, as a member of
the Board of Directors;
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. Capital Investments Fund AD, UIC: 205322014, a subsidlary of the Bank, as a member of the Board
of Directors;

- BDB Leasing EAD, UIC: 205565411, a subsldiary of the Bank, as Member of the Board of Directors;

- BDB Factoring EAD, UIC 205566082 a subsidiary of the Bank, as Member of the Board of Directors.

Participation in the share capltal of commerclal entitles: none.

Details about the full amount of the remuneration, rewards and/or benefits paid by the issuer and its
subsldiaries to each one of the members of the management and control bodies for the reporting financlal year
are disclosed in Note 13 to the financial statements.

TRANSACTIONS WITH COMPANIES UNDER JOINT CONTROL OF THE STATE

The owner of BDB Is the Bulgarian state. Transactions with related parties and companies under the
common control with the state are disclosed In Note 38 to the separate financial statements of BDB for 2019.

EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
COVID-19 pandemic and BDB capltal Increase

in connection with the COVID-19 epldemic, the Bulgarian government has taken a number of measures
to support the economy. The Bank was assigned an extremely important role in the implementation of the
Bulgarian government policy for overcoming the economic consequences caused by the pandemic. The measures
with a direct effect on the Bank were as follows:

Decree No 52 of 26 March 2020 approved changes to the budget of the Ministry of Economy for 2020 for
additional payments for financing the budget balance at the expense of the central budget of up to BGN 700
million to increase the shareholders’ capltai of the BDB. By decision No 215 of 27 March 2020, the Council of
Ministers decided to increase the capital of the Bulgarian Bank by BGN 700 miliion, using the funds "to implement
measures to support the economy in connectlon with the COVID-19 epidemic, including the issuance of portfolio
guarantees to banks to aliow them to provide more flexible conditions for business loans for a certain period,
under certain conditions and under individual assessment on a case-by-case basis".

By implementing these measures an extraordinary General shareholders meeting was held on 02.04.2020
when a decision was taken to increase the Bank’s capital through issue of 7,000,000 newly registered
dematerialized voting shares with nominal value of BGN 100 each at the total amount of BGN 700,000,000. Thus,
the capltal of Bank was increased from BGN 601,773,500 to BGN 1,301,773,500.

By Decree No 134 of 18 June 2020 the Council of Ministers approved changes In the budget of the Ministry
of economy for 2020 and additional payments for financing the budget balance at the expense of the central
budget. By Decision No 402 of 18 June 2020 of the Council of Ministers the Bulgarian State decided to increase
its shareholding in the capital of Bulgarian Development Bank AD through a cash contributlon at the total amount
of BGN 140 000 000.

Implementing these measures a General shareholders meeting was held on 06.07.2020 when a decislon
was taken to increase the Bank's capital through issue of 1 400 000 new registered dematerlaitzed voting shares
with nominal value of BGN 100 each at the total amount of BGN 140 000 000. Thus, the capltal of Bulgarian
Development Bank AD was increased from BGN 1,301,773,500 to BGN 1,441,773,500.

By Decision No 257 of 14 April 2020, the Council of Ministers approved the Interest-free loan guarantee
program to protect people deprived of the opportunity to work due to the COVID-19 pandemic, with a budget
of BGN 200 million proposed by the BDB. The program will be secured with the increase of the Bank’s capital
according to Decision Ne 215 of the Council of Ministers from 2020.
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By Decision No 310 of 7 May 2020, the Councll of Ministers approved the Portfolio Guarantee Programme
to support the liquidity of micro, small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) affected by the emergency state
and the COVID-19 epidemic proposed by the BDB, with a budget of BGN 500 milllon. The programme will be
secured with the Bank’s capital increase according to Decision No 215 of the Councll of Ministers of 2020.

In relation to the responsibilities and mandates assigned to overcome the economic consequences of the
spread of COVID-19, BDB has developed an information portal https://bbr.bg/covid/ providing up-to-date
information on the progress of the following two programmes in which the Bank participates:

* Interest-free loan program for individuals on unpaid leave and self-insured persons {(with a budget of up
to BGN 200 million)

®  Anti-crisis programme to support small and medium-sized enterprises (with a budget of up to
BGN 500 million)

The Bank is in the process of analysing the potentlal effect of these measures on Its financial position and
operating results.*

In addition, by decislon of the BNB of 9 April 2020, the BNB approved the proposed by Association of
Banks in Bulgaria procedure for deferral and settlement of due obllgations to banks and their subsidiaries -
financial institutions in connection with the state of emergency introduced on 13.03.2020 by the National
Assembly in connection with the COVID 19 pandemic to which the Bank jolned. It is a private moratorium, in
accordance with EBA guidelines (EBA/GL/2020/02). The effect of this moratorlum on the Bank's business in short
term Is yet to be calculated.

In mid-July 2020, the BDB joined a request of the Association of Banks In Bulgaria for extending the
deadlines In the moratorium on payments. The changes relate to:

o  extenslon of the deadline for submitting a request from customers of banks for deferral of llabilities and
thelr approval by banks — until 30 September 2020.

e extenslon of the deadline for deferring liabilities of bank customers — until 31 March 2021.

The extension of the deferral procedure applies to exposures for which no request for deferral of
payments has been submitted before 22 June 2020.

Changes in the Bank's Management Board

By Decislon of the Supervisory Board of the BDB under Protocol No 10 of 06.04.2020 Mr. Jivko Ivanov
Todorov was elected as a new member of the Management Board of the BDB. Mr. Jivko Todorov is authorized
to represent and manage the Bank as Executlve Director. The circumstances are recorded in the Commercial
Register on 14.04.2020.

By Decision of the Supervisory Board of the BDB under Protocol Na 12 of 08.04.2020, the authorization of
the Chief Executive Director to represent the Bank was withdrawn and a decislon was taken to dismiss Mr. Steyan
Todorov Mavrodiev as a member of the Management Board of the Bank. The circumstances are recorded in the
Commercial Reglster on 22.04.2020.

% The world's leading financlal institutions - IMF, WB, EBRD, EIB - as well as governmental and supranational structures
expect 2 significant economic downturn In 2020, followed by an uncertain recovery In 2021. The Bulgarian economy Is
expected to decline between 3% (MoF) and 7.1% (EC), followed by growth between 4.8% (EBRD) and 6% (IMF) in 2021. The
bank has yet to analyze the impact of these data on Its portfolio.
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By Decislon of the Supervisory Board under Protocol No 12 of 14.04.2020, Mr. Panayot Ivov Filipov was
elected as 2 new member of the Management Board of the BDB. This circumstance was recorded in the
Commercial Register on 24.04.2020. Mr Panayot Filipov is authorized to represent and manage the Bank as
Executive Director. This circumstance was recorded in the Commercial Register on 30.04.2020.

By Decision of the Supervisory Board under Protocol No 18 of 24.04.2020, the authorization of the
Executive Director to represent the Bank was withdrawn and a decision was taken to dismiss Mr. Rumen Dimitrov
Mitrov as a member of the Management Board of the Bank. This circumstance was recorded In the Commercial
Register on 30.04.2020.

Changes in the Bank’s Supervisory Board

By Decision of the General shareholders meeting of the Bank on 20.08.2020 Mr. Luchezar Borisov was
dismissed as a member of the Supervisory Board and replaced by Mr. Stamen Yanev. The replacement of Mr.
Luchezar Borisov with Mr. Stamen Yanev in the Supervisory Board was recorded in the Commercial Register on
26.08.2020.

Amendments to the Statute of the Bank

By Decisions of the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders of the Bank held on 02.04.2020 and
06.07.2020 changes in capital have been consistently adopted and reflected in the Statute of the BDB as follows
- by BGN 700,000,000, according to a decislon of the GMS held on 02.04.2020 and by BGN 140,000,000,
according to a decislon of the GMS held on 06.07.2020.

By decision of the General Meeting of Shareholders, held on 20.08.2020, changes were adopted in the
Statute of the Bank governing the functional characteristics of the Executive Directors of the Bank and the
position of "CEQ" was deleted, At the date of preparation of the report, these changes have been requested for
approval by the regulatory authority.

Change In the structure of the Bank

By declsions of the Management Board of 12.05.2020, 22.06.2020 and 21.08.2020 confirmed by the
Supervisory Board on 14.05.2020, 29.06.2020 and 01.09.2020 the Bank made changes to Its organizational
structure as follows:

- Closed the departments General Secretary and Cabinet of Management Board;
Transferred departments “Strategic development and planning”, “Public relations” and “Concessions”
previously subordinated to the head of Cabinet of the Management Board to executive director and
department “Strategic development and planning” is transformed to a dlvision and renamed to
"Strategic ﬂevelopment” ;

- "Classified information” Department is transformed to “Classified information” Division;
“Secretarlat” Department is separated from “Administration” Divislon and is directly subordinated to
executive director;
The position "Data protection officer”, part of “Classified information” Division is separated and is
directly subordinated to executive director;
A new Division “Monitoring and financial instruments” was established.
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For the purpose of function and control allocation among the executive directors of BDB the structure
components of the Bank's organizational structure are grouped in sectors as follows:

Sector Ne 1

- “Risk” Division

- “Credit Administration” Division

- ,Non-Performing Loans” Division

- ,Legal” Divisicn

- ,Information Technologies” Division
- ,Classified information” Division

-  Data protection officer

Sector No 2

»Corporate banking" Divislon

- ,Treasury” Division

- ,On-lending Programs” Division

-  ,Investment banking and project financing” Divislon
- .International Financial Institutions and EU Funds® Division
- ,Monltoring and financial instruments “ Division

- ,Administrative” Division

-  ,Human Resources" Division

- ,Security” Division

- ,Public Concession” Department

- JSecretariat” Department

Sector Ne 3

LAccounting” Division

- ,Planning, Analysis and Regulations” Divisicn
- ,Operations and Client Services” Division

- ,Compllance” Division

- pStrategic development” Division

- ,Public relations” Department

- Chief economist

The allocatlon of responsibllities among the members of the Management Board of BDB Is as follows:

Sector 1 - Mr. Panayot Filipov, Executive Director, member of Management Board
Sector 2 — Mr. Nikolay Dimitrov, Executive Director, member of Management Board
Sector 3 — Mr. Jivko Todorov, Executive Director, member of Management Board

With regard to the Bank no other significant events have occurred within the period from the reporting
date to the date of approval of this report that require additional disclosures in the annual financlal statements
as of 31 December 2019:

MANAGEMENT'S REPRESENTATIONS

Management of BDB declares that the enclosed annual separate flnancial statements give true and fair
view of the property and financial position of the Bank at the end of 2019, and the determination of the financial
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result for the year in compliance with the applicable legislation. Suitable accounting policies have been used and
applied consistently. In the preparation of the annual financial statements, judgments have been made, as
necessary, In accordance with the prudence concept. Management applles consistently the applicable
accounting standards and the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Bank's management dedicates efforts to maintain an adequate accounting system that complies with
applicable accounting standards. The annual financial statements disclose the standing of the Bank with a
reasonable degree of accuracy.

All measures have been undertaken to preserve the assets of the Bank, to prevent fraud and violations of
the laws in the country and regulations of BNB on the bank activity.

The current Management Report was approved on 30 September 2020 by MB of the Bulgarian
Development Bank, and it was signed by:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT OF BDB GROUP

PRINCIPLES OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

This Corporate Governance Statement has been prepared on the grounds of Article 40, paragraph 1 of the
Accountancy Act. The Information provided takes into account the fact that Bulgarian Development Bank AD has
not issued securitles admitted to trading on a regulated market or shares traded on a multilateral trading facllity.

8DB GROUP

At the end of 2019, the Financial Group Bulgarian Development Bank (the “Group" or “the FInancial
Group”) comprises Bulgarian Development Bank AD (“BDB", the "Bank") and its subsidiarles - National Guarantee
Fund EAD (NGF), Micro Financing Institution Jobs EAD (MFI), Capltal Investments Fund AD (CIF), BDB Leasing EAD
and BDB Factoring EAD.

Bulgarian Development Bank holds a license to carry out banking activities issued by the Bulgarian
National Bank, No B25/ 1999, updated by order of the supervisory authority No RD22-2272/ 16.11.2009. As a
credit institution established pursuant to a special act - the BDB Act {,BDBA") - and at the same time, applying
all regulatory requirements of BNB and the European legislation, and in performing its mission of being a
sustainable instrument of the government policy for promoting the development of the small and medium-sized
businesses in Bulgaria, Bulgarian Development Bank AD has set as its goal to be a benchmark for good corporate
governance and corporate responsibllity, while consistently and strictly observing the National Corporate
Governance Code of 2016, The Code of Professional Conduct of 2017 adopted by the Bank, the Code of Ethics of
the Internal Audit of the BDB Group of 2019, as well as good corporate and banking practices.

Bulgarian Development Bank AD holds a license for an investment intermediary issued by the Financial
Supervision Commission, by Decision N2 4 issued on 08.01.2002, according to which It may provide investment
services and perform investment activities under Article 6, paragraph 2 of the Markets in Financial instruments
Act (MFIsA), as well as additional services under Art. 6, paragraph 3 of the MFIsA.

Investment services are provided and investment activities are performed in accordance with the
requirements of MFIsA, Directive 2014/65/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 May 2014 on
markets in financial instruments and amending Directive 2002/92/EC and Directive 2011/61/EU (Directive
2014/65/EU or MIFID H}, Regulation (EU) 600/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Councll of 15 May
2014 on markets In financial Instruments and amending Regulation {EU) No 648/2012 (Regulation (EU)
600/2014), Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2017/565 of 25 April 2016 supplementing Directive
2014/65/EU of the European Parllament and of the Council as regards organisational requirements and operating
conditions for investment firms and defined terms for the purposes of that Directive (Delegated Regulation {EU)
2017/565) and the acts on their implementation.

The Bank does not provide investments services, nor performs investment activities under Article 6,
paragraph 2, items 8 and 9 of the MFIsA - organisation of a multtlateral trading facility and an organised trading
facility.

Buigarian Development Bank AD applies and maintains systems and procedures that guarantee the
security, completeness and confidentiality of its operations as an Investment broker.

In view of the above, the Bank has adopted and updated its internal regulations in accordance with the
applicable legislation.
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

Bulgartan Development Bank AD (BDB, the Bank) was incorporated on 11 March 1999 as a joint stock
company under the name of Encouragement Bank AD.

Cn 23 April 2018, the Bulgarian Development Bank Act (BDBA) was adopted. it arranges the scope of
activity of the Bank and its subsidiaries that may be established.

Head office and registered address of Bulgarian Development Bank AD Is Softa 1000, Sredets area, 1,
Dyakon Ignatii Street.

As of 31 December 2019, Bulgarlan Development Bank AD has no branches.

The Bank has fulfilled the requirements of BNB of minimum statutory shareholding capital for exerclsing
bank activity, as well as the capital requirements of BDBA. Since Its establishment and until August 2017, the
government shareholding in BDB is controlled by the Minlistry of Finance of the Republic of Bulgaria. On 4 August
2017, by amendment of the BDB Act pursuant to G, Issue 63 of 2017, the government shareholding went under
the control of the Minister of the Economy of the Republic of Bulgaria. As of the date of preparation of this
Statement, the ownership of the capital s aliocated as follows: $9.9999% is owned by the Republic of Bulgarla,
represented by the Ministry of the Economy, 0.0001% is owned by DSK Bank.

As of 31 December 2019, the capital of the parent company (the Bank) consists of 6,017,735 reglstered
dematerialized voting shares of par value BGN 100 each. The shares of BDB are not offered on a regulated market.

The Bulgarlan Development Bank Act sets forth that a package of at least 51% of the shares of the capital
of the Bank shall be state owned, which are non-transferable. The rights on the shares cannot be subject to
transfer agreements.

Pursuant to Art. 6 Par. 4 of the BDB Act the shares in the capital of the Bank, besides the Bulgarlan state,
may be acquired and owned by the Council of Europe Development Bank, the European Investment Bank and
the European Investment Fund, by development banks of Member States of European Union. In these cases art.
31 of the Credit Institutions Act does not apply.

Pursuant to Art. 6 Par. 4 of the BDB Act the members of the Management and controlling bodies, the
procurators and the senior management cannot hold shares and cannot be provided with options for shares of
BDB, and in subsequent accounting periods no agreements may be concluded as a result of which in any future
period changes may occur In the relative volume of shares held by current shareholders.

The management of BDB is carried out in compliance with Art. 5 of the BDB Act, pursuant to which the
Bank has a two-tler management system with the Minister of Economy exercising the state's rights at the General
Assembly of Shareholders of the Bank . Any amendment to the BDB Act and the right to Issue or buy back shares
are only possible by voting a new act or by amending the current act by the Natlonal Assembly. Under this article,
only the Minister of the Economy, acting as representatlve of the majority shareholder in BDB, may decide to
reduce the share capltal through the redempticn of shares.

At the end of 2019, BDB had no liabilitles under exIsting or new issues of securities.

As of 31 December 2019, there is no pending court, administrative or arbitration proceeding related to
liabilities or recelvables of the BD8 Group, amounting to 10 percent or more from Its equity.

Pursuant to the Statute of BDB, the lending actlvity of the Bank is focused on:

L] Pre-export and export financing of small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs),
° Financing other operations of SMEs, either through intermediary banks or directly,
. Refinancing of banks granting loans t¢ SMEs,
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. Financing of Investments by SMEs abroad.
s Participation In public and public-private projects or partnerships of strategic, national or

regional importance.

The Bank also extends also other types of loans according to a procedure set by the Management Board,
whereas the amount of the exposure to one customer or a group of related parties, other than credit institutions,
central governments and central banks Is subject to the requirements and limitations laid down in Regulation
575/2013/EV.

The Bank shall not lend funds to:

1. Activities not compliant with the National law, including for environment protection;

2. Business companies with unknown ultimate controlling owner;

3. Political parties and persons related to them. Persons related to political partles may be: youth,
women'’s and other organlzations, which the parties may establish according to the law, as well as entitles,
established by the polltical parties for performing the only business activities, which they are legally allowed
to do - publishing activity, copyrights and using intellectual property, as well as the sale and distribution of
printed, audio and audio-visual materlals with party campaigning content;

4. Non-profit enterprises and organizations;

5. Media;

6. Activities related to sport and sports Initiatives;

7. Activities prohibited by law.

The Bank provides loans directly or through commercial banks - intermediaries.

The terms and canditions for providing loans are determined by the Management Board.

The Management Board passes unanimous decislon to form exposures to one client or a group of related
clients, if it exceeds 5% of the Bank's equity, in compliance with requirements of the Credit Institutions Act and
the internal rules of the Bank.

~In view with lts specific function related to carrying out state policy on promoting the business, BDB
prioritizes its activity programs and products to promote SMEs, on-ending programs, export financing and
ﬁnancirig under assigned mandates. The largest credit exposure of the Bank, provided to a group of related
parties fother than bank institutions/, as of December 31, 2019, amounts to BGN 152,448 thousand at amortized
cost (2018: BGN 150,129 thousand), which represents 20.74% of the Bank's equity {2018: 23.22%) (the eligible
caplital of the Bank calculated in accordance with Regulation 575 f2013/EU as equal to BGN 735,176 thousand
(2018: BGN 646,679 thousand)). Analysis of the structure of the credit portfolio by segments Is provided in the
consolidated financial statements.

Bearing in mind the specific actlvity of the Bank, as of 31 December 2019, the funds attracted from 20
largest non-bank depositors represent 52.28% of the total amount of liabllitles to other clients (31 December
2018: 95.47%).

The share of the largest non-bank depositor In the total amount of the liabllities to other customers
amounts to 33.50% (as at 31 .12.2018: 33.70%).

In view of its specific activity, the BDB Group utilizes significant external funding from international
financlal institutlons. Detailed information on the recelved external credit lines is disclosed In Note 30 to the
Financlal Statements.
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NATIONAL GUARANTEE FUND EAD (NGF)

National Guarantee Fund EAD {NGF) is a company founded on 12 August 2008 on the basis of the
Bulgarian Development Bank Act (BDBA) and was registered at the Commercial Register on 22 August 2008.
According to the Credit Institutions Act (ClA), the National Guarantee Fund EAD is a financial institution entered
in 2009 into the Reglster by BNB under Art.3, Par.2 of the Credit Instltutions Act (CIA). In compliance with the
Statute of the company the principal activities include:

- Issulng guarantees for supplementing the collateral under loans to small and medium-sized enterprises;

-  Offerlng other products to smalil and medium-sized enterprises, llke: guarantee for participation in a
tender; performance guarantee; advance payment guarantee; guarantee for payment of a loan of an
exporter, etc.;

- Issuing guarantees for supplementing collateral under loans to smali and medium-sized enterprises,
carrying out research and development and for implementing these products and scientific
developments into the industry;

- The guarantees issued by NGF at its own risk may cover not more than 50 percent of the llabllity. By an
amendment to the BDB Act, promulgated In the State Gazette, issue 102 of 21 December 2012, the
guarantees issued by NGF EAD In connectlon with guarantee schemes under the Rural Development
Programme for 2007 - 2013 and Development of the Fisheries Sector Operational Programme for 2007
- 2013 may cover up to 80 percent of the liability;

- Other activities, not particularly prohibited by law.

- Theregistered capital of the Company as of 31 December 2019 amounted to BGN 80,000,000 split into
800,000 shares with nominal amount of BGN 100 each, the shares are ordinary, materlallsed, registered
and indivisible, and each share gives the right to one vote. The Company's capital Is fully paid-In.

The seat and management address of the National Guarantee Fund EAD (NGF) is Sofia, 1, Dyakon Ignatii Str.

As of 31 December 2019, NGF has no branches.

MICRO FINANCING INSTITUTION JOBS EAD (MFI JOBS)

Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD (MFI Jobs) was registered at the Commercial Register on 14 January
2011. The principal activities include micro flnancing, Including providing micro-loans, acquiring from third
parties and leasing industrial equipment, automobiles and other vehicles, as well as other items /finance lease/,
purchase and sale, and import of such ltems, consulting services, trade representation and mediatlon for local
and foreign individuals and |legal entities operating on the territory of the country, as well as any other activity
not prohibited by law.

The registered capital of MFI lobs as of 31 December 2019 amounted to BGN 7,643,000 distributed Into
76,430 shares with nominal amount of BGN 100 each, the shares are ordinary, materialised, registered and
indivisible, and each share glves the right to one vote. The Company's capltal Is fully paid-in.

Head office and registered address of MFI Jobs is sdﬁa, 1, Dyakon Ignatii Str.
As of 31 December 2019, MFI JOBS has no registered branches.
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Capltal investments Fund EAD (CIF) was incorporated on 24 August 2018 and registered on 04 October
2018 as a joint-stock company with 100 percent of ultimate participation of BDB (84.62% of direct participation
of BDB, or 550,000 shares, and indirect participation through NGF - 15.38%, the owner of the remalning 100,000
shares). The registered address of MFl is at 1, Dyakon Ignatli 5tr., Sofia. The registered capital as of 31 December
2019 consisted of 650,000 registered shares with par value of BGN 100 each, of which the paid-in capital as of
31 December 2019 is BGN 16,250,000.

The principal activities of CIF includes:

- Participation in the capital of small and medium-sized enterprises;

- Provision of consulting services regarding the capital structure of small and medium-sized
enterprises; consultation and services on incorporation of entities under Article 261 of the
Commercial Act;

= Investment consultancy;

- Consulting services on the management of pools of securltles of small and medium-sized
enterprises;

- Other activities, not particularly prohibited by law.

Head offlce and registered address of CiF is Sofla 1000, 1, Dyakon Ignatii Str.

As of 31 December 2019, CIF had no registered branches and did not carry out operating activities.

BDB LEASING EAD

BDB Leasing is a joint-stock company established on 06.03.2018 on the basls of Art. 4, para. 7 of the
Bulgarian Development Bank Act as a subsidiary of the Bank.

The sole owner of the capital of BDB Leasing Is the Bulgarian Development Bank. The capital of the
Company was paid-in in full at the time of the establishment and amounted to BGN 2,000,000, distributed to
20,000 ordinary registered shares with a par value of BGN 100 each.

The scope of BDB Leasing's activity is financlal leasing, lending with funds that are not raised through
public attraction of deposits or other repayable funds, all additional and servicing leasing and lending activities.

Head office and registered address of management of BDB Leaslng Is Sofia 1000, 1, Dyakon Ignatii Str.
BDB FACTORING EAD

BODB Factoring is a company incorporated on 06.03.2019 and registered on 31 March 2019 as a Joint-stock
company, with a 100% direct participation of BDB AD. it was established on the basis of Art. 4, para. 7 of the
Bulgarian Development Bank Act as a subsidiary of the Bank.

The principal actlvities of BDB Factoring include carrying out transactions for the transfer of one-time or
periodic monetary recelvables arising from the supply of goods or the provision of services /factoring/, lending
with funds that are not raised through public attraction of depaosits or other repayable funds and any additional
and servicing factoring and lending activitles.

The capital of the Company was paid up in full at the time of the establishment and amounted to BGN
2,000,000, distributed to 20,000 ordinary registered shares with a par value of BGN 100 each.

Head office and registered address of BDB Factoring Is Sofla 1000, 1, Dyakon Ignatii Str.
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In the course of their ordinary activity, the companies from the BDB Group are exposed to various risks,
the occurrence of which may lead to losses and to deterioration of the financlal stability of the Group. These
risks are identified, measured and assessed using controlling mechanisms in order to be managed and to avoid
any unjustified concentration of a particular risk. The risk management process Is essential for the Group’s
profitability. The most significant risks, to which the Group is exposed, are credit, market, liquidity and
operational risks.

In managing the various types of risk arising out of the activity, the Group follows the principles of
conservatism, objectivity and full compliance with all applicable national and European legislative acts and
regulations. In support of this policy, the Group maintains substantlally higher levels of liquid buffers and capital
adequacy than the statutorily required.

The adopted internal normative document "Risk Management and Control Policy of BDB AD" sets out the
objectives and principles for managing the main risks identified in the activities of "Bulgarian Development Bank"
AD (BDB/Bank), including risk appetite, strategies, risk framework, management organization, as well as
responsibilities for their measurement, control, management and reporting. The policy Is applicable by
"Bulgarian Development Bank" AD and Its subsidiaries "National Guarantee Fund" EAD, "Microfinancing
Institution Jobs" EAD, "Capital Investment Fund" AD, "BDB Leasing" EAD and "BDB Factoring" EAD.

MAIN RISKS

Credit risk

The credit risk is the main risk, to which BDB and the Group companies are exposed, therefore its
management Is crucial for its activity. The credit risk management takes place in compliance with the BDB Act
and the effective laws and regulations of the Republic of Bulgaria that regulate the credit activity and the
approved internatlonal standards and established best banking practices.

BDB uses internal rating for the evaluation and management of the credit risk (Incl. from counterparties)
under the exposures. Bodies for monitoring, control and assessment of the quality of the credit portfolio have
been created and are functioning In BDB. Procedures and mechanisms have been introduced for ongoing
monitoring, recording and management of the credit portfolic requiring periodic and, if necessary, extraordinary
reports on the financial and legal status of each borrower and liable persons. If new circumstances are
established, which may lead to a change in the risk profile of the borrowers, Including increasing the risk of
default of the credit exposure, adequate measures are undertaken, which take Into account the risk profile of
the debtor.

In managing the credit risk, BDB applies a system of internal limits by economic sectors, by instruments,
as well as other credit restrictions and limits on concentration, while the results from the monitoring of their
compllance are reported to the competent bodies. The system of limits is revlewed and updated periodically.

The credit risk management of the commitments recoded off-balance sheet (guarantees) of NGF takes
place at two levels - at the level of the individual deal {guarantee) and at portfolio level. The credit risk at
individual level is managed according to the internal rules and procedures for guarantee activity where the
proposal for Issuing a guarantee (undertaking a guarantee commitment) Is reviewed and approved by the risk
manager of NGF, then it Is submitted for approval by two of the members of the Board of Directors of NGF. After
having collected all approvals, the confirmation for issuing the guarantee is signed by the representatives of NGF.
Under the guarantee scheme under the Rural Development Program there is a second level of approval - the so
calted Advisary Committee comprised of representatives of the Ministry of Agriculture and Foods and BDB, which
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approves each undertaken guarantee commitment under the program. At portfolio level, the credit risk Is
managed by set up limits for payment (caps), limiting the commitment of NGF to paying to a given bank up to a
certain share of the size of the portfolio of guarantees Issued under a speclfic program. The subsequent
management of the credit risk assumed by NGF is through monitoring procedures, within which the Fund may
exclude from coverage certain loans, which do not correspond to specific requirements of the signed guarantee
agreements, from the guarantee portfollo.

The policy, which MFI JOBS has adopted in order to minimize the credit risk, is to make a preliminary
assessment of the creditworthiness of the clients, as well as to request additional collateral under the lease and
loan contracts and the transferred rights to receivables - Insurances of lease assets, registration of the lease
contracts in the Central Register of Special Pledges (CRSP), suretyships, promissory notes and special pledges on
recelvables, as well as mortgage of real estate and/or pledge on movable property when granting the loan.

In accordance with the current "Leasing Rules and Procedures” of BDB Leasing EAD, in order to minimize
credit risk, the company assesses the creditworthiness of the leasing applicants by assessing quantitative and
qualitative factors as well as the solvency of the lessee and the proposed guarantors/co-debtors (if any). In
addition, the company leases assets with the self-participation of the lessee, including the VAT due.

In 2019 the subsidiaries of the Bank — BDB Factoring EAD and the Capital Investment Fund AD are
operational, but without formed own portfolios.

Market risk

In managing the currency risk, BDB and the Group follow the principle of maintaining minimum open FX
positions through the observing of established limits. The positions in various currencies, as well as the general
FX position, are monitored on a daily basls. The FX positions are not formed for speculative purposes, but are the
consequence of the currency transactions, occurring in the course of the ordinary bank actlvity. In managing its
assets and liabilities, due to the specifics of its flnancing, BDB seeks to maintain these assets and liabilities in EUR
or BGN. The Bank's open FX position takes into account the terms and possibilities for netting the EUR and BGN
positions In accordance with the applicable regulatory framework.

In managing interest rate risk, the BDB Group follows the principle of maintaining a balanced structure of
its interest-sensitive assets and liabilities, seeking to maintain conslistency between the perlodicity of change in
interest on assets and liabilities, as well as a correlation between the applicable reference Interest rates on the
assets and liabilities of the Group. A system of limits for the maximum acceptable {quantitative) impact of various
shock scenarios on the change in market interest rates on net interest income and the economic value of the
Group's capital has been introduced. The Internal limit framework limits the potential risk to expected future
returns and the economic value of capital, within acceptable levels corresponding to the risk tolerance of the
BDB Group. The interest rate risk assessment is carried out using a set of techniques including yleld-based
measurement, measurement of the economic value of capital, analysis of discrepancies, interest rate stress
scenarios.

The assumption of risks when transacting on the money and capital markets Is managed by a system of
limits reflecting the risk profile of the investments. These limits are determined according to parameters of the
portfollo, like counterparty, financlal instrument, maturity, etc. The system of limits is periodically reviewed,
while the compllance with the limits Is subject to daily monlitoring. The securities portfolio, created by the BDB
Group in order to invest the available funds, is characterized by a relatively low interest rate risk and comprises
relatively liquid government securities and securitles issued by reliable Institutions, i.e. low price risk. Due to the
absence of a trade portfolio pursuant to the statutory regulations, the BDB Group does not allocate capital for
market risk.
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Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk management and control is carried out through daily liquidity monitoring and management,
maintaining access to sufficient liquidity to ensure avoidance of any mismatches between Inflow and outfiow of
cash flows at maturity intervals, both in a normal banking environment and in different liquidity-aggravated
scenarlos. The liquidity of the BDB Group is managed by closely monltoring ratlos Indicating the liquldity position
by period. Liquidity risk is measured by applying additional cash flow scenarios. The Group's liquidity buffers and
additional sources of funding for market and idiosyncratic shocks are measured and menitored. The matn focus
of llquidity management is to maintain an adequate level of liquidity buffer in accordance with the established
limits and limits set according to the risk tolerance of the BDB Group.

Operational risk

For the management of operational risk, the BDB Group applies a systematic approach covering the
collection of objectlve information, timely identification of operational risk, its measurement {qualitative and
quantlitative), the identification of dependencies with other types of risk and the application of measures to limit
its Impact on the financlal performance and on the capital of the Bank. In the management of operational risk,
al! operational events arising in the activitles of the different structural units as a result of processes in the
activities of the BDB Group are recorded, Identifying and managing the full range of operational risks. Operating
events characterised by a higher frequency, as well as those with a large potential or real effect on the financial
performance of the BDB or the Companies of the Group, are subject to close Investigation and monitoring. They
serve as the basis for operational risk analyses in various scenarios, including when performing an operational
risk strass test. Operational risk is measurable and manageable by maintaining an operating event log that serves
as a basls for analysing and Improving work processes and minimizing conditions that would potentially lead to
operational events and losses for the Group. Under the applicable regulatory framework, the capital required for
operational risk 15 calculated using a base indicator approach.

STRUCTURE OF RISK MANAGEMENT

The main unilts directly responsible for risk management, are the following:

For the Parent Company (the Bank):

- Supervisory Board - perfoarms overall supervision on risk management;

Approves the risk management policies that define the objectives and principles for managing the main
risks identified in the activities of the BDB Group, Including risk appetite, strategies, risk framework,
management organisation, as well as responsibilities for their measurement, control, management and
reporting. The SB confirms the decisions of the Management Board for taking on credit risk, in
accordance with the competences and limits set out in the Statute of the Bank and the BDB's Credit
Actlvity Manual, as well as it has other powers provided for in the said acis. In carrying out its powers,
the Supervisory Board of the Bank is assisted by speclalized committees as follows:

= Risk Management Committee {(RMC) - advises the Supervisory Board and the Management
Board on the overall current and future risk strategy and the Bank's propensity to take risks
and supports the control of its Implementation by senior management staff. The RMC
approves proposals approved by the Management Board for limits/restrictions and policles
for the management of the risks inherent in the bank's activities. The RMC regularly reviews
information on the analysis, management and control of credit risks, informing it of the
implementation of the established limits/restrictions and of decisions/measures to manage
credit risks.
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= Audit Committee (AC) — the responsibilities of the AC with regard to risk include monitoring
of financial reporting processes, manltoring the effectiveness of internal control systems,
menitoring the effectiveness of risk management systems, monitoring of internal audit
activities and the implementation of the audit plan, monitoring the independent financial
audIt, making recommendations for the selection of a registered auditor and reporting to the
Supervisory Board on all matters within its competence;

= Remuneration Committee - prepares and proposes remuneration decisions, taking into
account the Impact on risk and its management, the long-term interests of shareholders,
Investors and other stakeholders.

= Recrultment Committee — analyses periodically, at least once a year the structure,
composition, number of members and results of the work of the Management Board and the
Supervisory Board and makes recommendatlons for possible changes. Periodically reviews
the Policy for selection, continuity and sultabillty assessment in "Bulgarian Development
Bank" AD and makes recommendations for a change In It.

- Management Board (MB) —Is responsible for the general approach to risk management and approves
strategies, policies, principles and speclfic methods, techniques and procedures for risk managemenit.
The MB approves policies, rules, procedures, methodologies and limits corresponding to the risk
appetite and risk strategies established in the BDB Group's risk management pollcies. It notifies SB of
any circumstances that have occurred that are significant to the Bank. The Management Board has the
following ancillary bodies, which function as speclalised committees:

B Assets and Liabilities Management Committee {(ALCO) - it is responsible for the
strateglc management of the assets and liabllitles and liquidity, and for the
management of the market risks, within its competence, according to internal
regulations;

= The Committee on Impalrments and Provisions (CIP) controls the process of
monitoring, evaluating and classifylng financial instruments, establishing expected
credit losses and forming impairments

= Complaints and Signals Commission — a body for dealing with complaints and signals
submitted by employees of the Group.

- Executive Directors and Members of the MB - exercise current operating control on maintaining and
observing the specified limits for the particular types of risk and the applicatlon of the established
procedures

- Risk Management Department - provides independent Information, analysis and expert assessment of
risks and provides the management body with a comprehensive overview of all risks. The Department
carries out activities related to Identification, management, measurement, risk control and reporting,
stress tests, monitoring limits and reporting their implementation in accordance with established
escalation procedures, as well as providing oplnlons on risk management proposals and solutions for
their compatibllity with the Bank's risk tolerance.

-  Compliance Department - is responsible for compliance with the regulatory framework, including the
adaptation of the internal regulatory framework and the organization of the processes in the Bank to
the changes that have occurred and/or are Imminent. 1t provides information to the Management of
the Bank through regular reports tc the Management Board on compliance with the regufatory
framework. if deflclencles are identified, it proposes measures to remedy any discrepancies admitted.
It coordinates all internal normative documents in their development and updating.
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- Internal audit of the Group (IAG) — as part of the internal control system helps to achleve the objectives
of the BDB Group by applylng a systematic and disclplined approach to assessing and Improving the
effectiveness of risk management, control and corporate governance processes. It carries out Its
activities according to an approved annual work plan, which is prepared on the basis of an assessment
of the significance of the risk in the Group, providing the necessary audit coverage to support and
improve the processes for identiflcatlon and assessment of risks in the Group.

- "Planning, Analysis and Regulations" Department— performs the reporting to the Management Board
and BNB by preparing reports, key Indlcators, business plans and their implementation, Identifying risks
at operational, business, reporting and strategic level and interacting with the other units in the Bank
for their managemenit.

- Business units that take a risk apply the established rules and procedures for the management of
credit risks, comply with the regulated restrictions regarding their activities and provide the
necessary Information for analysis, evaluation and informed decislon-making.

For the subsidiary National Guarantee Fund {the Fund):

The main units directly responsible for risk management are the following:

- Management Board of BDB AD (the parent company) - performs overall supervision on risk
management;

- Board of Directors - carries out overall risk management supervision; responsible for overall risk
management approach and for approval of risk management strategies, principles and the specific
methods, technlques and procedures;

- Committee on Provisions - analyses the guaranteed portfolios in terms of overall credit risk
management for the total guaranteed portfollo, as well as of each guarantee deal and beneficiary of the
guarantee itself;

- Risk and Monitoring Department - performs general monitoring with respect to the guaranteed
portfolios by carrying out inspections (current and after a claim for payment has been filed) of the
commercial banks regarding the fulfilment of the terms and conditlons of their guarantee agreements
at the level of both the separate client and indlvidual portfolio. The Department also identifies, assesses,
monitors and applies measures for limiting the impact of the major risks.

For the subslidiary BDB Leasing EAD:

The main units directly responsible for risk management are:

-~ Board of Directors — adepts rules and procedures for risk management. Controls the risk factors for the
Company's activities and makes decisions within the limits of its powers;

- Operational management (Executive Director and Procurator) — organizes the activities for
implementation of the risk management rules adopted by the Board of Directors. Creates a work
organization that ensures compilance with the specified limits and |evels of risk. Controls the compliance
of the procedures used by the relevant employees for analysls, measurement and risk assessment with
the internal normative documents adopted by the Board of Directors.

- Risk Management Department - develops and Implements a risk management system. It prepares and
submits to the Board of Directors periodic reports in order to assess the risks in the activity, including
compliance with limits and reports ongolngly to the operatlonal management of the Company. It carries
out an initlal and ongoing verification of risk assessment methods. It controls the input data necessary
for the risk assessment according to an applicable method of reliability and sufficiency.
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For the subsidiary BDB Factoring EAD:
The main units directly responsible for risk management are:

- Board of Directors — adopts rules and procedures for risk management. Controls the risk factors for the
Company's activities and makes decisions within the limits of its powers;

- Operational management (Executive Director and Procurator) — organizes the activities for
implementation of the risk management rules adopted by the Board of Directors. Creates a work
organization that ensures compliance with the specified limits and levels of risk. Controls the compliance
of the procedures used by the relevant employees for analysis, measurement and risk assessment with
the internal normative documents adopted by the Board of Directors.

- Risk Management Department - develops and implements a risk management system. It prepares and
submits to the Board of Directors perlodic reports In order to assess the risks in the activity, including
compliance with limlts and reports ongoingly to the operational management of the Company. It carries
out an initial and ongoing verificatlon of risk assessment methods. It controls the Input data necessary
for the risk assessment according to an applicable method of rellability and sufficlency.

For the subsidlary Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD:
The maln unilts directly responsible for risk management are:

- Board of Directors — adopts rules and procedures for risk management. Controls the risk factors for the
Company's activities and makes decisions within the limits of its powers. Also, analyses credit
transactlons worth more than BGN 100,000 In terms of credit risk management in their resolution;

- Credit Committee — currently monltors and analyses the Loan and Leasing Portfolio of the Company in
terms of credit risk, including Individual transactlons;

= Credit Council — analyses credit and leasing transactions in terms of credit risk management in their
resolution and/or renegotiation;

- Operational management {Executive Director and Procurator) — organizes the activities for
implementation of the risk management rules adopted by the Board of Directors. Creates a work
organization that ensures compliance with the specified limits and levels of risk. Controls the compliance
of the procedures used by the relevant employees for risk analysls, measurement and assessment with
the Internal normative documents adopted by the Board of Directors;

- Risk Management Department - develops and implements a risk mahagement system. It prepares and
submits to the Board of Directors periodic reports in order to assess the risks in the activity, including
compliance with limits and reports ongoingly to the operational management of the Company. it carries
out an initial and ongoing verification of risk assessment methods. It controls the input data necessary
for the risk assessment according to an applicable method of reliability and sufficiency.

For the subsldiary Capltal Investment Fund AD:
The maln units directly responsible for risk management are:

- Board of Directors — Approves the risk appetite of the Fund, as well as its internal rules and
procedures. Approves the proposals relating to investments In unlts/shares within the limits of Its
powers. It also decides on the management of the investment portfolio;

+  Chief Investment Expert - Makes an initial selection of companies applying for Investments from
the Fund. Prepares a proposal to the BD for making an investment in the selected companies, as
well as for exiting an Investment; Carrles out ongoing monitoring and prepares reports/ action plan
in case of adverse development in relation to the investment made;
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- Chief Risk Expert - Monitors compliance with the approved limits In the CIF; Takes measures to
measure and report on the different types of risks identified when carrying out the fund's activities;
Takes part in the declsion-making process for choosing and managing an investment. In the
presence of negative Indicators and adversely developed ones, It requires the preparation of a
report with a follow-up plan for an investment and participates In the selection of an appropriate
option for exiting it;

- Senior Legal Adviser - Prepares opinions on proposals on equity Investments; Prepares/agrees the
contractual documentation for the conclusion of the transaction; Consults the units when
discussing issues and declslons related to the investment actlvities of the Fund.

BANK SUPERVISION AUTHORITIES PURSUANT TO THE BULGARIAN LEGISLATION

In compliance with the requirements of the framework of the laws and by-laws regulating the banking
activity in the country, BDB must follow limitations, related to certain ratios in its separate and consolidated
financial statements. As of 31 December 2019, BDB has observed all regulatory requirements of BNB and the
Bulgarian leglslation. The amounts of key ratios - capltal adequacy and asset coverage ratlo are among the
highest within the Bulgarian banking system.

CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

Internal contro! in the BDB Group is a continuous process carried out by the management bodles and
by persons engaged in internal control functions. Elements of internal control are systems for:

1. management control;

2. risk controf;

3. accountabillty and information; and
4. internal audit.

The first three elements of the internal control system are within the competence and powers of the
relevant authorltles. The fourth element of internal control Is a commitment of the group's internal audit.

In order to put in place an effective framework for risk management and internal centrol in the BDB
Group three lines of protection are In place:

The first line of defence is the management control exercised by the heads of the operational unlts.
Operational management Identifles, assesses, controls and limit risks, ensuring that they operate in accordance
with the objectives set in advance.

The second fine of defence is the risk management and compliance function carried out by the Risk
Management, Compllance and the Classified Information Departments with regard to the prevention of money
laundering and terrorist financing. In their activities, these departments are supported by Management, Analysis
and Regulation and Legal Departments. The second line of defence is independent from the first one in terms of
organisation, and carries out preventive and ongolng control.

The third line of defence is the internal control function. Internal Audit of the Group Department carries
out follow-up control and provides assurance to senlor management with respect to the effectiveness of risk
management, internal control and corporate governance, as well as the way in which the first and second lines
achleve the risk management and control objectives. Internal Audit of the Group Department provides
comprehensive assurance from the position of the highest level of independence In the organisation, through a
direct subordination to the Supervisory Board (SB).
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Management assigns powers and responsibilities for the operating activity in line with a detailed internal
normative set of documents, which are in conformity with the current national and European legislations, where
In order to guarantee the relationships in accountancy and reporting, and various specialized committees, by
hlerarchy of authorities, were formed to the MB and SB of BDB, as disclosed in the Corporate Governance
Statement, which is an integral part of this financial report.

The Bank has developed an internal set of documents, which includes policles and communications
focused on ensuring that all employees understand the goals of the Bank, knows how individual actions are
interconnected and contribute towards these goals, and who and how is reporting and what Is their
responsibllity.

The Bank has established an information system, Including business processes related to it, providing the
necessary quality and control of the financial accountabllity and communication.

The Bank's audit commlttee monitors the financial reporting processes, the effectiveness of internal
control systems and the effectiveness of risk management systems; moreover, it monitors the independent
financial audit, conducts a review of the independence of the registered auditor, and makes recommendations
for selacting a registered auditor.

MANAGEMENT OF THE BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

The Bulgarian Development Bank AD has a two-tier management structure, which consists of a
Supervisory Board and a Management Board.
As of 31 December 2019 the management structure consists of the following:

BDB Supervisory Board
Lachezar Dimitrov Borisov — Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Lachezar Dimitrov Borisov was born in 1978 in Samokov. He completed his Master studies in
Macroeconomics and Accounting and Finance at the Unlversity of National and World Econcmy (UNWE). He has
several specializations In Bulgaria and abroad, including in Entrepreneurship and Risk Capital in AUBG, Project
Management in WIFI, Austria, Encouragement of Foreign Direct Investments In JiCA, Japan, Stock-exchange and
Banking in CITIBANK, etc. He has rich experience in corporative management. Mr. Borisov has been part of the
management of both private and state-cwned companies in the Industry, energy and financial sectors. Currently
he is a Deputy Minister of Economy.

Mitko Emilov Simeonov - Deputy Chairman of the SB

Mitko Emllov Simeonov has a Master's degree in Law from the New Bulgarian University and a Master’s
degree in International Economic Relations from the University of National and World Economy. He also holds a
postgraduate degree In financlal management from the University of National and World Economy. He was
Deputy Executive and Executive Director of the Agency for Privatization and Post-Privatization Control.

Velina llieva Burska - Member of the S8

Velina llievaBurska has a Master's Degree in Economics and Organization of Internal Trade from the
University of National and World Economy. From 2002 to 2017 she was the director of the Post-Privatization
Control Directorate at the Agency for Privatization and Post-Privatization Control.

In fulfilment of the good practices of control and the system of the three pillars recommended within
Basel lIl, a specialized body made up of Audit Committee, Risk Committee, Remuneratlons Committee and
Recruitment Committee functions to the Supervisory Body.
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Member Risk Committee Recrultment Committee Remunerations Commiitee
Luchezar Dimitrov Borisov Member Chairman Member
Mitko Emilov Simeonov Chairman Member Member
Velina llleva Burska Member Member Chairman
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of the following members:
Krasimlr Vasllev Yordanov - Chalrman of the Audit Committee;

Krassimir Yordanov has a Master's degree in accounting and financial control from the SA "D. A. Tsenov
— Svishtov" and a Master’s degree in Law from the University “St. 5t. Cyril and Methodlus". Mr. Yordanov also
has a master's degree in speech and acting in public communications from NATFIZ "Kr. Sarafov”, Sofia. Krasimir
Vasllev Yordanov holds a PhD In economics, was an assoclate professor at New Bulgarlan Unlversity between
2001 and 2015 and held the position of Chief Auditor at the Court of Auditors from 2001 to 2018. At present he
is a professor at the International Business School — Blagoevgrad and associate professor at department Financial
Control at the University of Natlonal and World Economy.

Rositsa Nikolova Grigorova — Member of the Audit Committee;

Rositsa Grigorova holds a Master's degree in Economics and Finance from the University of National and
World Economy and a Master's degree in Automation Engineering from the Higher Chemical Technology
Instltute, Sofia. In her professional experience extending over 25 years, Mrs. Grigorova has held the following
positions: lab technician at the Higher Chemical Technology Institute, economist in the Financial and Accounting
Department of the Ministry of Defense, expert "Material and Technical Provision" at Military Construction
Engineering EOOD, Head of Youth Programs and Projects Sector in the Directorate "Financiat and Economic
Activities Property Management" at the State Agency for Youth and Sports and State Expert, Junior Rank Il in the
Budget Department at the Ministry of Agriculture and Food. Rositsa Grigorova has held senior positions as Head
of budget department at the Ministry of Labour and Soclal Policy, Head of Accounting Department at the Finance
and Property Management Directorate at the Ministry of Regional Development and Publlc Works, as well as
deputy financlal director of BNT. She Is currently Finance Director and Director of the Administration Directorate
at the Bulgarian National Television,

Kalina lvanova Mavrova — Member of the Audit Committee;

Kallna Mavrova holds a Master's degree in European Business and Finance from Nottingham Trent
Unlversity, United Kingdom and has a bachelor's degree in International Economic Relations from the University
of National and World Economy. Ms. Mavrova's professicnal experience began at the Bulgarian National Bank,
where she was an intern and held the positions of expert in International communications and expert in public
relations. Kalina Ivanova Mavrova continues her professional career at UniCredit Bulbank - Sofla, where she
works as a product development expert and expert in marketing development. Mrs. Mavrova participated mainly
in the project "Creatlon of an internal online portal for financial and economic analysis" during her internshlp at
Unlcredit S.P.A. — Bologna, italy.

Management Board of BDB

Stoyan Todorov Mavrodlev — Chalrman of the Management Board and Chief Executive Director
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Stoyan Todorav Mavrodiev holds a Master’s degree in Law from Sofia University "St. Kliment Ohridskl"
and a Master’s degree in Finance from the University of National and World Economy. He attended a serles of
courses at the International Tax Academy in Amsterdam, and has also trained in the US Department of State's
International Program of Leaders. His career started as a legal, tax and business consultant at
PriceWaterhouseCoopers. In the period 1996- 2006, he worked as a financial and legal consultant In the United
Consulting, which he also managed. From 2009 to 2010 he Is Deputy Chairman of the Commission for Economic
Policy, Energy and Tourlsm and member of the Budget and Finance Committee of the 41st National Assembly.
For 6 years (2010-2016), he was Chairman of the Financial Supervision Commission (FSC), which oversees and
regulates the financlal system and the non-banking financlal sector in Bulgaria. From 2010 to 2016 he was a
member of the Advisory Financial Stability Board (AFSF). In this period, he was also a member of a number of
international organilzatlons, Including ESMA, EIOPA, ESRB, I0SCO, IAIS and IOPS.

Rumen Dimitrov Mitrov — Deputy Chairman of the Management Board and Executive Director

Rumen Dimitrov Mitrov holds a Master’s degree in Accounting and Control from the University of
Natlonal and World Economy. His professional experience began in 1994 at NRA Sofla. In the period 2000-2003
he was the manager of the petroleum products Import company "GMN GAZ", and from 2003 to 2011 he was
engaged in financial and tax consultancy as manager of the two accounting companies "Eurotim Bulgarla" and
"RM Consult". From 2011 to 2016, he was consecutively appolnted Director of "Investment Actlvity Supervislon",
"Regulatory Pollcy”, and "Coordination, Analysis and Pollcy of Supervisory and Supervision Activities" divisions in
the Financial Supervision Commission {FSC).

Nikolay Dimitrov Dimitrov — Member of the Management Board and Executive Director

Nikolay Dimitrov holds a Ph.D. In Economics from the University of National and World Economy (UNWE)
with specializations "International Economic Relations" and "Finance". Between 2007 and 2015, he completed a
number of additional courses and qualificatlons at the Judge Business School at Cambridge University (UK), the
Investment Banking Institute (USA), among others. Hls banking career started at the end of 2003 and went
through Raiffeisen Bank and United Bulgarian Bank. He Joined the Buigarian Development Bank In July 2011, In
January 2012 become Head of the Investment Banking and Project Finance Department, and since April 2013 he
is Head of the Corporate Banking Division. Alongside, he has been an associated professor at the Department of
International Economic Relations at UNWE over the period 2010 - 2017.

The Bulgarian Development Bank AD Is represented by either two of the Chief Executive Director,
Executive Directors and the Procurator, jointly. At the date of preparation of this document the Bank has no
procurator.

In 20189, there have been no changes in the'basic principles of governance in the BDB group.

Committees of the Management Board

The BDB Management Board, in conformity to the current legislatlon in Bulgaria and in EU, and following
the best banking practices, has delegated part of its authorities to speclallzed committees - Committee on Assets
and Liabilities Management and Commission on Complaints and Signals.

Meetings of the Committee on Assets and Llabllities Management (ALCO) take place on a monthly basls,
at which meetings the main Indicators relevant to the strateglc management of the assets and labilities of the
Bank are revlewed. The main functions of ALCO are to identify, manage and monitor the liquidity risk of the Bank,
to determine the strategy for attracting resources, to determine the pricing policy for the loans in order to ensure
adequate margin above the costs of funds, to declde on the strategic liquidity of the Bank In order to ensure a
regular and timely settlement of the current and future llabilitles, both during normal circumstances and in event
of liquldity crisis, to determine the structure of the liquidity buffers and the sources of additional funding. The
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materials reviewed at the meetings of the ALCO, along with the minutes from them, are reported to the
Management Board of BDB on a timely basis after each session. The committees indicated below have the
following composition:

Asset and Llability Commission on Committee on
Member Management Complaints and Impalrments and
Committee Signals Provisions
Stoyan Todorov Mavrodiev Member
Rumen Dimitrov Mitrov Member
Nikolay Dimltrov Dimitrov Chairman
Head of Risk Department Member Member Member
Head of Legal Department Member
Head of Security Department Member
Head of the Planning, Analysis and Member Member chairman
Regulations Department
Head of the Group Internal Audit Member
Department
Head of Treasury Department Member
Head of the Compliance Department Chairman
Head of the Internatlonal Financial Member
institutions and EU Funds Department
Head of Corporate Banking Department Member
Head of Investment Banking and Project Member
Financing Department |
Head of Problem Loans Department | iviember

*The chalrmen are elected by the members for a period of one year.

Contracts with related parties Iinvoived in the management and participation of members of the mb and sb of
the bank in other companies

There are no signed contracts pursuant to Art. 240k of the Companies Act between the members of the
SB and MB or persons related to them, on one hand, and the Bank, on the other, which fall beyond the ordinary
course of business or which significantly deviate from the market conditions.

In 2019, there were no concluded deals between 8DB and its related parties, or offers for signing such
deals, which fall outside the scope of the ordinary activity, or which significantly deviate from the market
conditlons, to which BDB or its subsidlary is a party.

There are no material contracts concluded, which lead to action, are amended, or terminated, due to
change in the contrel of or over the Bank, or as a result of a compulsory public procurement procedure. As far as
there is a legal restriction regarding the shareholding structure of BDB, no such contracts are expected to be
concluded.

There is no practice of concluding agreements among the BDB Group companles and their management
bodies and/or employees for the payment of compensation upon resignation or dismissal without legal grounds
thereof, or upon terminating the [egal employment relationships by reasons related to tender offers.

The participations, pursuant to Art.247, Para.2, item 4 of the Companies Act, of members of the SB and
MB in commercial companies as general partners holding more than 25 % of the capital of another company, as
well as thelr participation in the management of other business companies or cooperatives as procurators,
managers or members of boards, is as follows {as of 31 December 2019):
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I. With respect to members of the SB of the Bank:

Lachezar Dimitrov Barisav - Chairman of BDB Supervisory Board, no participations in commercial entities;
participates In the management of

- Energy Efficiency and Renewable Sources Fund, UIC: 131330278, member of the MB of the Bank
-  State Enterprise "Management and Administration of Dams", UIC: 205756975;

Mitko Emilov Simeonov — Vice Chairman of the Supervisory Board, no participations in the capital and
management of other companies

Velina Hieva Burska - Member of the Supervisory Board, no participations in the capital and management
of other companles

Il. With respect to members of the MB of the Bank:

Stoyan Todorov Mavrodiev - Chalrman of the MB and Chief Executive Director
Participations in the management of the following commercial entltles:

- National Guarantee Fund EAD, UIC: 200321435, a subsidiary of the Bank, as Chairman of the Board
of Directors;

- Capital Investments Fund AD, UIC: 205322014, a subsidiary of the Bank, as Chairman of the Board
of Directors and Executive Director;
BDB Leasing EAD, UIC: 205565411, a subsidiary of the Bank, as Chalrman of the Board of Directors
and Executive Director;
BD8 Factoring EAD, UIC 205566082 a subsidiary of the Bank, as Chairman of the Board of Directors
and Executlve Director;

Participation in the share capital of commercial entitles:

- Real Estate Ventures EOOD, UIC: 131160908, sole owner.

Rumen Dimitrov Mitrov - Vice Chairman of the M8 and Executive Director

Participations in the management of the following commerclal entlties:

- Micro Financing Institution Jobs EAD, UIC: 201390740, a subsidiary of the Bank, as Chairman of the
Board of Directors;

- Capital Investments Fund AD, UIC: 205322014, a subsidiary of the Bank, as Vice Chairman of the
Board of Directors;

- BDB Leasing EAD, UIC: 205565411, a subsidiary of the Bank, as Vice Chalrman of the Board of
Directors;

- BDB Factoring EAD, UIC 205566082 a subsidiary of the Bank, as Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors;

Participation in the share capital of commercial entltles: none.

Nlkolay Dimitrov Dimltrov — Member of the MB and Executive Director
Participations In the management of the followlng commercial entities:

- Micra Financing Institution Jobs EAD, UIC: 201390740, a subsidiary of the Bank, as Vice Chatrman
of the Board of Directors;
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- Capital Investments Fund AD, UIC: 205322014, a subsidiary of the Bank, as a member of the Board
of Directors,

g BDB Leasing EAD, UIC: 205565411, a subsidiary of the Bank, as Member of the Board of Directors;
BDB Factoring EAD, UIC 205566082 a subsidiary of the Bank, as Member of the Board of Directors;

Participation In the share capital of commercial entities: none.

Information about the full amount of the compensations, rewards and/or benefits for the members of
the Management and control bodies of the Bank for the fiscal accounting year, paid by the Issuer and its
subsidiarles is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements

MANAGEMENT OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

As of 31 December 2019, BDB owns the share capital of the followlng subsidiaries:
Sole owner of:

- National Guarantee Fund EAD, UIC: 200321435

- Micro Financing Institution Jobs EAD, UIC: 201390740;
- BDB Leasing EAD, UIC: 205565411;

- BDB Factoring EAD, UIC: 205566082;

- Trade Center Maritsa EOOD, UIC; 115619162;

Participates jointly with NGF AD in the capltal of:

- Capital Investments Fund AD, UIC: 205322014, as the registered capltal Is allocated as follows (BDB
holds 84.62% of the company’s capital and NGF holds 15.38%).

Notional Guarantee Fund EAD

NGF EAD has a one-tler management system - Board of Directors, consisting of three members. As at
31 December 2019 the members are:

Board of Directors of the company:
Stoyan Todorov Mavrodlev - Choirman of the Board of Directors

Angel Atanasov Djalazov - Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director

Angel Atanasov Djalazov has over 15 years of experience in international investment banking, asset
management, capital markets, project finance, investment products, supervision and financial instruments
management. He has occupied consequently the positions of an investment manager of TBD Fund, Director of
Legal Department at JD & MG, Executive Director and Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Managing
company KD Investments and the investment company KD Pelican, Executive Director of Capital Dynamics-
Bulgarla and Euro-Phoenix Financial Advisors, and Vice Chairman of FSC. He has knowledge of English, German,
Russian and Dutch language.

Andon Georglev Georgiev - Member of the Board of Directors and Procurator

Andon Georgiev holds a Master's degree In law from the Plovdlv University Palsii Hilendarski and a
Master’s degree in finance from St. Cyril and St. Methodius University of Vellko Tarnovo. He has occupled senior
management positions, including the one of a Secretary General of the Financial Supervision Commisslon.

The company is represented by either two of the members of the Board of Directors, jointly, or by the
Procurator and either one of the members of the Board of Directors, jointly.
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The members of the BD of NGF EAD do not hold any shares of the Fund, nor do they have any special
rights on the acquisltion of such shares.

There are no contracts signed pursuant to Art. 240b of the Companles Act between the members of the
BD of NGF EAD or individuals related to them, on one hand, and the Company on the other, which fall cutside
the scope of the company's ordinary activity, or which significantly deviate from market conditions.

The participations, pursuant to Art. 247, Para. 2, item 4 of the Companies Act, of members of the SB and
MB in commerctal companies as general partners holding more than 25 per cent of the capital of ancther
company, as well as their participation in the management of other business companles or cooperatives as
procurators, managers or members of boards, is as follows (as of 31 December 2019):

Stoyan Todorov Mavrodlev — Chairman of the Board of Directors of NGF
Participates in the management of:

= Bulgarian Development Bank AD, UIC: 121856059, Chief Executive Director and Chalrman of the
MB;

- Capital Investments Fund AD, UIC: 205322014, Chalrman of the Board of Directors and Executive
Director;

-  BDB Leasing EAD, UIC: 205565411, Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director;

-  BDB Factoring EAD, UIC: 205566082, Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director.

Participation in the capital of commercial entities:
- Real Estate Ventures EOOD, UIC: 131160908, sole owner of the capital.
Angel Atanasov D]alazov —Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director of NGF
Particlpates in the management of:

- Micro Financing Institution Jobs EAD, UIC: 201390740, Member of the Board of Directors and
Executive Director.

Particlpation In the capital of commercial entlties:
- BG LIFE OOD, UIC: 175273067, a partner holding 25% of the capital.

Andon Georgiev Gearglev does not participate in the management or capital of other trade companles.

Micro Financing Institution Jobs (MFiI} EAD

MFI Jobs EAD has a cne-tier management system - Board of Directors, consisting of three to five members.
As at the end of 2019 the members are:

Board of Directors:

Rumen Dimitrov Mitrov — Chairman of the Board of Directors

Nlkolay Dimitrov Dimitrov — Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

Angel Atanasov Djalazov - Member of the Board of Directors and Executive Director
Hristina Atanasova Todorova — Member of the Board of Directors and procurator

Hristina Todorova holds a Master’s degree in Law from the Unlversity of National and World Economy.
She has long-standing experience in the financlal sector. She participated in the elaboration of many draft laws,
practices and administrative procedures in the area of non-banking sector. For 10 years she has worked in the
Financial Supervision Commisslon (FSC) at various expert and managerial positions. She occupled the positions
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of Head of the Judicial Protection Department and Director of the Legal Department of FSC. As Director of the
Legal Directorate, Hristina Todorova leads both the actlvities of creating and developing the legal framework in
the non-banking financial sector, the procedural representation of the FSC and its bodies, and the protection of
the interests of financial service users. In 2016, Hristina Todorova was elected Chair of the newly established
Sectoral Conciliation Commission on Consumer Disputes Hearing and Settlement In the area of insurance and
insurance intermediation at the Commission for Consumer Protectlon, Including upon provision of remote
financlal services to this sector. In 2017, Hristina Todorova was Director of the Legal Department at the Ministry
of Health.

The company is represented by either two of the members of the Board of Directors, jointly, or by the
Procurator and elther one of the members of the Board of Directors, jointly.

There are no contracts signed pursuant to Art. 240b of the Commerce Act between the members of the
BO and/or individuals related to them, on one hand, and the company on the other, which fall ouiside the scope
of the company's ordinary activity, or which significantly deviate from market conditions

The participation, pursuant to Art.247, Para.2, item 4 of the Commerce Act, of members of the BD of
Capital Investments Fund AD in trade companies as general partners, holding more than 25 % of the capital of
another company, as well as participation In the management of other business companies or cooperatives as
procurators, managers or members of boards, is as follows:

Rumen Dimitrov Mitrav — Chairman of the Board of Directors
Participates in the management of:

- Bulgarlan Development Bank AD, UIC: 121856059, Vice Chairman of the M8 and Executive
Director;

- Capital Investments Fund AD, UIC: 205322014, Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors;

- BDB Leasing EAD, UIC: 205565411, Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors;

- BDB Factoring EAD, UIC: 205566082, Vice Chalrman of the Board of Directors.

Particlpation In the capltal of commercial entities — none.
Nikolay Dimitrov Dimitrov — Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
Participates In the management of:

Bulgarian Development Bank AD, UIC: 121856059, Member of the MB and Executive Director;
Capital Investments Fund AD, UIC: 205322014, Member of the of the Board of Directors:

-  BDB Leaslng EAD, UIC: 205565411, Member of the Board of Directors;

- BDB Factoring EAD, UIC: 205566082, Member of the Board of Directors.

Participation in the capital of commercial entities — none.
Angel Atanasov Djalazov — Member of Board of Directors and Executive Director
Particlpates In the management of:

- National Guarantee Fund, UIC: 200321435, Vice Chalrman of the Board of Directors of the company
and Executive Director.

Participation in the capital of commercial entitles;
- BGLIFE OOD, UIC: 175273067, a partner holding 25% of the capital.

Hristina Atanasova Todorova — member of the Board of Directors and Procurator; she does not
participate in the management or capital of other trade companies.
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Capital investments Fund AD

Bulgarian Development Bank holds 84.62% of the capital of Capital Investment Fund AD, UIC: 205322014,
and 15.38 % of the company’s capital are owned by the Natlonal Guarantee Fund AD.

CIF AD has a one-tier management system - Board of Directors, consisting of three members. As at the
end of 2019 the members are:

Board of Directors:

Stoyan Tadorov Mavrodlev — Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director
Rumen Dimitrov Mitrov — Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

Nikolay Dimitrov Dimitrav — Member of the Board of Directors

The company Is represented by elther two of the members of the Board of Directors, jointly.

There are no contracts signed pursuant to Art, 240b of the Commerce Act between the members of the
BD and/or Individuals related to them, on one hand, and the company on the other, which fall outside the scope
of the company's ordinary activity, or which significantly deviate from market conditions

The participation, pursuant to Art.247, Para.2, ltem 4 of the Commerce Act, of members of the BD of
Capltal Investments Fund AD in trade companies as general partners, holding more than 25% of the capltal of
another company, as well as participation in the management of other business companies or cooperatives as
procurators, managers or members of boards, is as follows:

Stoyan Todorov Mavrodlev — Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director
Partictpates in the management of:

- Bulgarian Development Bank AD, UIC: 121856059, Chalrman of the MB and Chief Executive
Director;

- National Guarantee Fund EAD, UIC: 200321435, Chairman of the Board of Directors;

-  BDB Leasing EAD, UIC: 205565411, Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executlve Director;

-  BDB Factoring EAD, UIC: 205566082, Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director.

Participation In the capital of commercial entitles:

= Real Estate Ventures EOOD, UIC: 131160908, sole owner of the capital.
Rumen Dimlitrov Mitrov — Vice Chalrman of the Board of Directors
Participates in the management of:

- Bulgarian Development Bank AD, UIC: 121856059, Vice Chalrman of the MB and Executive
Director;

= Micro Financing Instltution Jobs EAD, UIC: 201390740, Chairman of the Board of Directors;

-  BDB Leasing EAD, UIC: 205565411, Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors;

-  BDB Factoring EAD, UIC: 205566082, Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors.

Particlpation in the capital of commercial entities — none.
Nikotay Dimlitrov Dimitrov — Member of the Board of Directors
Participates In the management of:

Bulgarian Development Bank AD, UIC: 121856059, member of the MB and Executive Director;
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- Micro Financing Institution !obs EAD, UIC: 201390740, subslidiary of the Bank, Vice Chairman of the
Board of Directors;

-  BDB Leasing EAD, UIC: 205565411, subsidiary of the Bank, Member of the Board of Directors;

-  BD8 Factoring EAD, UIC: 205566082, subsidiary of the Bank, Member of the Board of Directors.

Participation in the capital of commercial entities— none.

8D8B Leasing EAD

BDB Leasing has a cne-tier management system - Board of Directors, consisting of three to five members.
As of 31 December 2019 the members are:

Board of Directors:

Stoyan Todorov Mavrodiev — Chalrman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director
Rumen Dimitrov Mitrov — Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

Nikolay Dimitrov Dimitrov — Member of the Board of Directors

The company has an authorized procurator — Em#l Valkanov Valkanov.

The company Is represented by either two of the members of the Board of Directors, jointly, or by the
Procurator and either ene of the members of the Board of Directors, jointly.

There are no contracts signed pursuant to Art. 240b of the Commerce Act between the members of the
BD and/or Individuals related to them, on one hand, and the company on the other, which fall outside the scope
of the company's ordinary activity, or which significantly deviate from market conditions

The participation, pursuant to Art.247, Para.2, item 4 of the Commerce Act, of members of the BD of
Capital Investments Fund AD in trade companies as general partners, holding more than 25 % of the capltal of
another company, as well as participation in the management of other business companies or cooperatlves as
procurators, managers or members of boards, Is as follows:

Stoyan Todorov Mavrodiev — Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director
Participates in the management of:

Bulgarian Development Bank AD, UIC: 121856059, Chairman of the MB and Chief Executive
Director;
Capital Investments Fund AD, UIC: 205322014, Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executlve
Director;
National Guarantee Fund EAD, UIC: 200321435, Chairman of the Board of Directors;

-  BDB Factoring EAD, UIC: 205566082, Chalrman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director.

Particlpation in the capital of commerclal entities:

- Real Estate Ventures EOOD, UIC: 131160908, sole owner of the capital.
Rumen Dimitrov Mitrov — Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors
Participates in the management of:

- Bulgarian Development Bank AD, UIC: 121856059, Vice Chairman of the MB and Executive
Director;

- Micro Financing Institution Jobs EAD, UIC: 201390740, Chalrman of the Board of Directors;
Capital Investments Fund AD, UIC: 205322014, Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors;

-  BDB Factoring EAD, UIC: 205566082, Vice Chalrman of the Board of Directors.
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Participatlon In the capltal of commerclal entitles — none.
Nikolay DImitrov Dimitrov — Member of the Board of Directors
Participates In the management of:

- Bulgarian Development Bank AD, UIC: 121856059, member of the MB and Executive Director;
= Micro Financing Institution Jobs EAD, UIC: 201390740, Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors;
- (Capital Investments Fund AD, UIC: 205322014, Member of the Board of Directors.

-  BDB Factoring EAD, UIC: 205566082, Member of the Board of Directors.

Participation in the capital of commercial entities — none.

Emil Valkanov Valkanov —~ procurator. He does not participate in the management or capital of other
companies.
BDB Factoring EAD

BDB Factoring has a one-tier management system - Board of Directors, consisting of three to five
members. As of 31 December 2019 the members are:

Board of Directors:

Stoyan Todorov Mavrodlev — Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director
Rumen Dimitrov Mitrov — Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors

Nikolay Dimltrov Dimitrov — Member of the Board of Directors

The company has an authorized procurator — Georgi Vanyushev Lilyanov.

The company is represented by either twe of the members of the Board of Directors, jointly, or by the
Procurator and either one of the members of the Board of Directors, jointly.

There are nc contracts signed pursuant to Art. 240b of the Commerce Act between the members of the
BD and/or individuals related to them, on one hand, and the company on the other, which fall outside the scope
of the company's ordinary activity, or which signlificantly deviate from market conditions

- The particlpation, pursuant to Art.247, Para.2, item 4 of the Commerce Act, of members of the BD of
Capital Investments Fund AD in trade companies as general partners, holding more than 25 % of the capital of
another company, as well as participatlon in the management of other business companies or cooperatives as
procurators, managers or members of boards, Is as follows:

Stoyan Tedorov Mavrodiev — Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director
Participates in the management of:

- Bulgarlan Development Bank AD, UIC: 121856059, Chairman of the MB and Chief Executive
Director;

- Capital Investments Fund AD, UIC: 205322014, Chalrman of the Board of Directors and Executive
Director;

- National Guarantee Fund EAD, UIC: 200321435, Chairman of the Board of Directors;

-  BDB Leasing EAD, UIC: 205565411, Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director.

Participation in the capital of commercial entities:
- Real Estate Ventures EOOD, UIC: 131160908, sole owner of the capital.

Rumen Dimitrov Mitrov — Vice Chalrman of the Board of Directors
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Participates in the management of:

Bulgarian Development Bank AD, UIC: 121856059, Vice Chairman of the MB and Executive
Director;

Micro Financing Institution Jobs EAD, UIC: 201390740, Chairman of the Board of Directors;
Capital Investments Fund AD, UIC: 205322014, Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors;

BDB Leasing EAD, UIC: 205565411, Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors.

Participation in the capital of commercial entities — none.

Nikolay DIimltrov Dimitrov - Member of the Board of Directors

Participates In the management of:

Bulgarian Development Bank AD, UIC: 121856059, member of the MB and Executive Director;
Micro Financing Institution Jobs EAD, UIC: 201390740, Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors;
Capital Investments Fund AD, UIC: 205322014, Member of the Board of Directors.

BODB Leasing EAD, UIC: 205565411, Member of the Board of Directors.

Participation in the capital of trade companies - none.

Georgl Vanyushev Lilyanov — procurator

Participates In the management of:

SP Financial Services AD, UIC: 131143136 — Member of the Board of Directors.

Participation In the capital of trade companies — none.

In 2019, there were no material contracts concluded, which lead to action, are amended, or terminated,
due te changes In the control or as a result of performing a compulsory public procurement procedure, and no
such contracts are expected to be concluded.

TRANSACTIONS WITH COMPANIES UNDER THE JOINT CONTROL OF THE STATE

Owner of BDB Is the Bulgarian state. The consolldated and separate financial statements of the Bank
present detalled information regarding the deals of the BDB Group and of BDB with companies under the joint
control of the state.

STRATEGY FOR DEVELOPMENT AND BUSINESS GOALS

The strategic goals of BDB are:

To facilitate the economic growth by increasing Its exposure in support of reglons and sectors of
with suppressed growth;

To facilitate SMEs overcome the crisis quickly by balancing between different sectoral priorities
and national economic prlorities and programmes approved by the government;

To facilitate the economlc growth of the regions through financing, Including syndicated, of
sizable, strategic and infrastructural, by their nature, projects and investments

To support the development of competitive production initiatives and sectors of the economy of
proven export potential;

To facilitate, jointly with the other Institutions in the country, Including commercial banks, the
access to financing of innovative and newly established companies (start-ups);

To facllitate and support the direction of capltal flows to the Bulgarian economy.

BDB operates in full transparency and applles the best banking and management practices. A core
objective of the Bank Is to identify and analyse sectors of the economy, in which there are market Imperfections
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and economic agents that experience difficulties in accessing and obtaining financing, With Its financial and credit
activities, BDB addresses these challenges and takes measures to facilitate access to funds and the adequacy of
financial resources.

By using market banking Instruments the Group supports the export potential and business
* competltiveness by compensating existing market deficiencies in the financing of certain segments. By financing
the business the Bank changes the risk profile and indirectly encourages commercial banks to develop thelr
exposure to them. In practice, the Bank accomplishes these tasks by "completing" the market, while not allowing
a "displacing” of commercial banks, and Its goal is not to maximize profits.

The Bank adequately assesses the risks assumed and provides credit and warranty lines which, to the
maximum extent, aliow It to transfer financial advantages to customers,

For the effective implementation of the above objectives and tasks, BDB relies on its status as a
development bank and the opportunities to attract a long-term and cheap resource from European multilateral
banks, International financial institutions and international commerclal banks. International capital markets are
another source of external financing.

In future, the BDB will continue to offer financing for working capital, capltal investments and export
finance for small and medlum-sized businesses. The Bank offers flexible and market-based financial solutions
that meet the specificity of the borrower and the project being funded.

SOCIAL RSPONSIBILITY AND POLICY OF DIVERSITY

The Bulgarian Development Bank traditionally dedicates its mission for corporate social responsibility to
topics Important for the public ife, such as education, culture, art and history, entrepreneurshlp. Supporting
vulnerable social groups and preserving the natural diversity is part not only of the corporate responsiblilty of
the institution, but also of the understanding and personal involvement of a large number of the Bank’s
employees.

CULTURE, ART AND CULTURAL AND HISTORICAL HERITAGE

Bulgarlan art, history and culture are among the foundations that build and preserve the Bulgarian
national identity. For this reason, BDB makes conslstent efforts to implement cultural initiatives and projects to
preserve the achievements in this area.

This Is the direction in which BDB continues its "How Sofla was transforming into an European city"
campaign, alming to promote and preserve the cultural heritage. 2019 was the 140th Anniversary since Sofla was
declared the capltal and the campaign continued with the new "My European Sofla" Inltiative together with the
Regional History Museum Sofla. The initiative included "open lessons" for students, thematic lectures and
historical tours. The campaign Included children from art schools as well. They were Introduced with the
monuments of architectural heritage and drew their paintings.

In 2019, BDB supported the most prestigious classical music ranking in Bulgarla Musician of the Year,
organised by the Bulgarian Natlonal Radio. Prize-winners are renown Bulgarian performers, such as Mincho
Minchev, Gena Dimitrova, Rayna Kabalvanska, Krasimira Stoyanova, Vesko Panteleev-Eshkenazi, Yordan
Kamdzhalov, Emil Tabakov, Teodosii Spasov, etc.

In 2019, the Bank provided financial support for the organization of the International Children's Festival
in Bosilegrad. The participants include children from Bulgarian communities in Serbia, Macedonia, Ukraine,
Moldova, etc., as the aim to maintain the contacts between Bulgarlan communities and preserve native
traditlons and customs.
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BDB is a long-term partner of the Bulgarian Natlonal Televislon’s "History.bg" TV show. The show recalls
Important events and personalities from the past, presents the different points of view of modern scientists
about them and has not only historical but also cultural and educatlonal orlentation.

In pursuance of its policy to support Bulgarian art, the BDB building continues to host temporary
exhibitions of palntings and sculptures of both young and well-established Bulgarian artlsts.

EDUCATION AND ENTREPRENEURSHIP

Traditionally, BDB Group supperts the largest start-up training program In Bulgarla - "The Founder
Institute”, which focuses on young entrepreneurs who learn how to develop their ideas into real profitable
businesses.

For the second year in a row, the Bank is a partner in the annual study of the Bulgarian digital economy
“Innovation Ship 2019", prepared by the Move.bg Foundation. The study is part of the digital development
program EDIT, in partnership with leading organizations In the start-up ecosystem, which examines the specifics
of staff selection, financing methods and the demographics of the Bulgartan digital business.

Among the educatlonal projects implemented in cooperation with the BDB is the Inltiative of the Debate
Club of the First English Language High School In Sofia for the FELS Open debate competition. It includes pupils
and students who want to raise their awareness on current topics.

ECOLOGY

The Bank provided support for the actlivities of The Wild Animals Foundation - a Bulgarian non-
governmental organization that provides treatment, rehabilitation and foster care to injured animals in order to
return them to the wild. The funds donated by BDB were used to purchase equipment for a rescue center in
Sofia.

VULNERABLE SOCIAL GROUPS

In 2019, BDB continues to support vulnerable soclal groups. The Bank supports organizations whose
activities significantly improve the quality of life of disadvantaged people. These include:

e SOS Children's Villages Bulgaria Association

The Association provides foster care In a community of foster families and thus children deprived of
parental care grow up in a family environment and successfully Joln the society. Communities of $OS foster
families, who raise children in their own homes or dwellings owned by the association have been established in
Sofia and Pernik.

® Natlonal Fund "St. Nikola"

The fund organizes a traditional Christmas campalgn in support of children and aduits with disabilities
placed in social institutions. By supporting it, BDB contributes to a more fuifllling life for people with disabilities.

e UNICEF

BDB supports a UNICEF campaign aimed at reducing infant mortality. The initiative provides patronage
nurses in the districts of Shumen and Sliven, who support familles with young children in the first 1,000 days
after the habies’ birth. The project has provided assistance to over 12,400 families.

e  Our Premature Chlldren Foundation

The Bank donates to the Our Premature Children Foundation to support medical institutions and the
purchase Incubators and consumables.

e Bulgarian Christmas
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The charity initlatlve "Bulgarian Christmas" is held under the patronage of the President of the Republic
of Bulgaria and has so far helped hundreds of sick children by providing funds for diagnosis, treatment and
rehabilitation. Highly speclalized medical equipment was purchased for 22 medical Institutions throughout the
country.

e Bulgarian Red Cross

The partnership of Bulgarlan Development Bank with Bulgarian Red Cross in their The Easter for Everyone
National Charity in suppoert of elderly people continued in 2019, The Initlative includes provision of financial
support to pensloners just before the holidays and alms to surmount the deficlt of charity campaigns directed
towards this social group.

In order to achieve the specific mission and objectives of the BDB, the management team of the Group
strives to maintain and upgrade an adaptive, efficient and modern corporate culture and work environment
tailored to the values of modern society, The main focus is to ensure stability, continuous development and
upgrade the knowledge of the Group's team, strong commitment and permanent improvement of the services
offered.

NIKOLAY DIMITROV Ja/ JIVKO TODQ@\I
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR : EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT AND
ANNUAL SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2019



Deloitte. © GrantThomton

This document is a translation of the original Bulgarian text,
in case of divergence the Bulparian text shall prevail.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the shareholders of Bulgarian Development Bank AD
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of Bulgarian Development Bank AD (the
“Bank™), which comprise the separate statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019, and the
separate statement of comprehensive income, the separate statement of changes in equity and the separate
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the separate financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Bank as at December 31, 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS"), as adopted
by the European Union ("EU™).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors® Responsibilities for the Audit of the separate
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards)
of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical
requirements of the Independent Financial Audit Act (IFAA) that are relevant to our audit of the separate
financial statements in Bulgaria, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the IESBA Code and the requirements of IFAA. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the separate financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.



Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers

The assessment of impairment allowances for loans
and advances to customers requires Bank
management to exercise a significant level of
judgment, especially as regards identifying
impaired receivables and quantifying loan
impairment. To assess the amount of allowances for
expected credit losses, the Bank applies statistical
models with input parameters obtained from
internal and external sources.

As disclosed in note 19 to the separate financial
statements, the Bank has recorded as at December
31, 2019 loans and advances to customers at the
gross amount of BGN 1,808,945 thousand and
expected credit loss for uncollectability of loans and
advances to customers amounting to BGN 156,045
thousand.

Key assumptions, estimates and parameters in
determining the expected credit losses are related to
development of quantitative and qualitative
indicators for following up a significant increase in
credit risk for allocation of the separate customers’
credit exposures to phases (Phase 1: Exposures
without significant increase in credit risk; Phase 2:
Exposures with significant increase in credit risk,
but without objective evidence for impairment and
Phase 3: Exposures with existing objective evidence
for impairment); for determining *“‘probability of
default” (PD), “loss given default” (LGD) and
“exposure at default” (EAD), as well as for
inclusion of information about future development
of macro-economic factors in the context of various
scenarios in determination of the estimates for
expected credit losses.

A higher degree of uncertainty in the valuation is
inherent in the assessment of expected credit losses
for loans and advances to customers for Phase 1 and
Phase 2 and depends on as to whether the Bank has
sufficient historical information to test the
assumptions used and calibrate the accuracy of the
parameters PD and LGD in the impairment model.

During our audit we obtained understanding of the
processes for calculation of expected credit losses
for loans and advances, applied by the Bank. We
assessed the adequacy of the policies, procedures
and implemented controls in the process, in order to
design our procedures in such way as to be able to
address the identified risks of material misstatement
in this area,

We assessed the adequacy of the methodology used
by the Bank to identify loan impairment and
celculate impairment allowances on individual and
portfolio basis.

We tested the design and operating effectiveness of
key controls management of the Bank has
established over the impairment assessment
processes.

The testing focused on controls related to:

- timely identification of significant increase
in credit risk and correct classification of
loans to corresponding impairment stages,

- regular client creditworthiness review
processes,

- creation and regular review of watch-lists,

- approval of experts’ collateral valuation,

- management review and approval of the
impairment assessment results.

We involved auditors’ experts in the areas which
required specific expertise.

We have also reviewed the quality of the historical
data used in the computation of the risk parameters
and recomputed the impairment based on the risk
parameters resulted from the models,

We ecvaluated appropriateness of impairment
methodologies and their application.

We performed detailed substantive procedures on a
risk-based sample of loans in order to verify the
classification of loans and to identify any
indications for impairment and whether additional
allowances for impairment should be recorded. We




In addition, the determination of expected credit
losses for loans and advances from Phase 3 is also
related to the application of significant estimates
and assumptions by management, in particular on
the timing and value of expected future cash flows
under the exposure, including the realisation of
collateral.

applied our professional judgment to assess the
inputs used in the calculation of impairment losses
and compared our assessment to the estimates
applied by the Bank. We analysed the financial
condition of the borrowers and inquired about any
breaches of contracts and/or changes from the
original terms and conditions of the contract. We

have considered the impact of the current economic
conditions, the valuation of collaterals, and other

Because of the significance of the valuation of loans factors that may affect the recoverability of loans

and advances to customers for the separate financial
statements, and due to the fact that the assumptions
in determining the expected credit losses include
significant estimates and application of professional
judgment, we identified impairment of loans and
advances to customers as a key audit matter,

We assessed the completeness, appropriateness and
adequacy of the disclosures in the Bank’s separate
financial statements with regard to the measurement
of loans and advances to customers.

Other matter

The separate financial statements of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2018, were audited by other
joint auditors who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on July 1, 2019.

Information Other than the separate financial statements and Auditors®’ Report Thereon

The managing Board of the Bank (the “Management™) is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the annual management report and the corporate governance statement, prepared by
the management in accordance with Chapter Seven of the Accountancy Act, but does not include the
separate financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon, unless it is not specifically stated in our suditors’ report and to
the extent it is specifically stated.

In connection with our audit of the separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the separate financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the separate financial statements in
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the separate financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Supervisory Board and the Audit Committee of the Bank (“Those charged with governance™) are
responsible for overseeing the Bank’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the separate financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these separate
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the separate financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease
to continue as a going concern.



¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the separate financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the separate financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the seperate financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonsbly
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

We are jointly responsible for the performance of our audit and the audit opinion expressed by us, in
accordance with the requirements of the IFAA, applicable in Bulgaria. In accepting and performing the joint
audit engagement, in respect to which we are reporting, we have considered the Guidelines for Performing
Joint Audits, issued on June 13, 2017 by the Institute of Certified Public Accountants in Bulgaria and the
Commission for Public Oversight of the Registered Auditors in Bulgari.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

Additional matters, required to be reported by the Accountancy Act and Public Offering of Securities
Act

In addition to our reporting responsibilities according to ISAs described in section “Information Other than
the separate financial statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon”, with respect to the annual management
report and the corporate governance statement, we have also performed the procedures, together with the
required under ISA, in accordance with the "Guidelines regarding new extended reports and communication
by the auditor" of the Professional Organization of Registered Auditors in Bulgaria - Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (ICPA). These procedures include tests over the existence, form and content of the other
information in order to assist us in forming an opinion as to whether the other information includes the
disclosures and reporting as required by Chapter Seven of the Accountancy Act and the Public Offering of
Securities Act (art. 100m, para 10 of POSA in relation to art. 100m, para 8, p. 3 and 4 of POSA), applicable
in Bulgaria,



Opinion under Article 37, paragraph 6 of the Accountancy Act

Based on the procedures performed, in our opinion:

The information included in the annual management report for the financial year for which the
separate financial statements have been prepared, is consistent with the separate financial
statements.

The annual management report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of Chapter
Seven of the Accountancy Act.

The information required by Chapter Seven of the Accountancy Act and Art. 100m, para 8 of the
Public Offering of Securities Act is presented in the corporate governance statement covering the
financial year for which the separate financial statements have been prepared.

Information in accordance with Art. 33 of Ordinance 38/2007 and Art. 11 of Ordinance 58/2018 of
the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC) outlining the Requirements for protection of financial
instruments and clients’ cash, for product management and for granting or receiving fees,
commissions, other cash and non-cash benefits

Based on the performed audit procedures and the acquired understanding of the Bank’s activities in
the context and the course of our audit of the Bank’s separate financial statements as a whole, we
have identified that the established and applied organization related to the keeping of clients’ assets
complies with the requirements of art. 28-31 of Ordinance 38/2007 of FSC and art. 3-10 of
Ordinance 58/2018 of FSC regarding the Bank’s activity as an investment intermediary.

Reporting in accordance with Art. 10 of Regulation (EU) No 537/2014 in connection with the
requirements of Art. 59 of the Independent Financial Audit Act

In accordance with the requirements of the Independent Financial Audit Act in connection with Art. 10 of
Regulation (EU) No 537/2014, we hereby additionally report the information stated below.

Deloitte Audit OOD and Grant Thornton OOD were appointed as statutory auditors of the separate
financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2019 by the general meeting of
shareholders held on February 24, 2020 for a period of one year.

The audit of the separate financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2019
represents first consecutive statutory audit engagement for that entity carried out by us.

We hereby confirm that the audit opinion expressed by us is consistent with the additional report
provided to the Bank’s audit committee, in compliance with the requirements of Art. 60 of the
Independent Financial Audit Act.

No prohibited non-audit services referred to in Art. 64 of the Independent Financial Audit Act were
provided.

We hereby confirm that in conducting the audit we have remained independent of the Bank.

For the period to which our statutory joint audit refers, Deloitte Audit OOD (2 company part of
Deloitte network) has provided to the Bank, in addition to the statutory audit, the following services
which have not been disclosed in Bank’s annual management report or separate financial
statements:

- Professional services related to verification of a sample of credit files, review of the rules and
procedures for classification, impairment and fair value measurement of financial instruments:



- Assurance services other than audit or review of historical financial information in accordance

with International Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000 (Revised) related to

expressing an opinion on the compliance with the requirements of the EU for the following items:
internal control system, accounting system, independent statutory audit, public tenders, financial
instruments, exclusion from access to financing, publishing information about the recipients, and

personal data protection. The period within the scope of the assessment is June 1, 2019 ~ May 30,

2020.

s For the period to which our statutory joint audit refers, Deloitte Audit OOD and Grant Thomton
OOD jointly have provided to the Bank, in addition to the statutory audit, the following services
which have not been disclosed in Bank’s annual management report or separate financial
statements:

- Agreed-upon procedures to the application of BNB Ordinance 10 for the period January 01 —
December 31, 2019, in accordance with the requirements of International Standard on Related
Services 4400 “Engagements to Perform Agreed-upon Procedures regarding Financial
Information™.

Deloitte Andit QOD Grant Thornton OOD
Silvia Dinova W

Rositsa Boteva

Statutory Manager = Registered Auditor, in char
Registered Audi i =
S
o\}L‘
‘ 1
Miari )
/
Statutory Man /
103, Al. Stambolijski Blvd. 26, Cherni Vra

1303 Sofia, Bulgaria 1421 Sofia, Biflgaria

September 30, 2020



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2019

All amounts are In thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

As of As of
Note 31.12.2019 31.12.2018

Assats
Cash In hand and balances In current account with the Central Bank 17 250,619 297,622
Recelvables from banks 18 339,248 429,548
Finandai assets at amortized cost = Loans and advances to customers 19 1,652,900 1,035,080
FInancial assets at amortized cost - Recelvables from the State budget 20 166,821 471,999
Finandal assets at amortized cost = Securities 21 1,950 -
Finandlal assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - debt instruments 22 538,541 590,966
Inanclal assets at fair value through other comprehensive Income —equlty instruments 22 3,578 3,283
Investments In subsidiaries 23 109,488 105,625
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets 24 36,955 32,818
Investment property 25 7,633 7,649
Assets held for sale 26 - 4,840
Assets, acquired from collateral foreclosure 27 35,187 27,128
Other assets 27 3,507 712
Current tax recelvables 664 1,244
Deferred tax assets - 247
Total assets 3,147,091 3,012,761

Llabllitlas

Borrawings from international Institutions 30 1,211,937 904,782
Deposits from customers other than credlt Institutions 28 1,134,049 1,307,522
Deposlts from credit Institutions 28 7.877 5,759
Other borrowlIngs 31 17,119 17,306
Provislons 32 2,939 3,185
Deferred tax liabilltles 401 -
Other liabliitles 33 3,750 2,221
Total llabllitles 2,378,072 2,240,775

Egjuity
Share capital 34 601,774 601,774
Retained earnings 11,057 25,130
Revaluation reserve on financial assets at falr value through other comprehensive Income 35 12,183 6,055
Reserves 35 144,005 135,027
Total 2quity 769,019 771,986
Total lisbilitles and equity . 3,147,091 3,012,761

The accompanying notes from 1 to 39 are an Integral part=f these separa
by the Management Board of Bulgarian Development

S "} .

inanclal statements. The separate financlal statements were approved
020, g

ko Tadorov J _~~ Paylayot Filipov “Htikolay Dimitroy
xecutlve Director fﬁ/ E%:uﬂve Direcitr Executive Director y
ARIAN
Auditors’ report on the sepai \ DEVELOPFIENT 7,
. BRNK £
Deloltte Audit 00D, a Gront Thornton 00D, auditing company :
Rosltsa Boteva Silvia Dinova, Registered Auditor, In chigey i
Statutory Manager $
Registered Auditor, in chor Marly Apostoloy, Stat

This document ls a translation of the original Bulgarian text, in case of divargence the Bulgarian text shall prevail. 1



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

All amounis are in thousand Buigarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

Note 2019 2018
Interest Income B 72,855 63,280
Interest expense 6 (11,422) (9,489)
Net Interest incoma 6 61,433 53,791
Fee and commission Income 7 1,993 2,062
Fee and commission expense 7 (62} {35)
Net fee and commission income 7 1,931 2,027
Net Income on forelgn exchange deals 8 421 are
Net gain on financfal assets at falr value through other comprehenslve Income 9 3,687 738
Other operating Income 10 2,410 3,004
Other operating expenses 11 (1,499) (1,457}
Expenses on impalrment and provisions 12 (29,001) (8,781)
Operating income 39,382 49,701
Empicyee benefits 13 (13,898) {11,690)
General and administrative expenses 14 {10,994) {10,120)
Depreclation / amortisation expenses 24 {1,428) {1,138}
Profit befora incoma tax 13,062 26,753
Income tax expense 15 (2,005) {1.,623)
Nat profit for the year 11,657 25,130

Cther comprehansiva income
ftems not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent perfods:
Actuarial galns /{losses) on defined beneflt plans, net of taxes 33 (48} 33

ltems to be reclussified to profit or loss in subsequent perlods:
Net change In fair value of financlal assets at fair value through other comprehensive

Income 16 6,128 1,108
Total other comprehensiva incoma for the year, net of tax 6,080 1,141
Total comprehensiva income for the yaar 17,137 26,271

The accompanying notes from 1 to 39 are an Integral part of these rate financlal statements. The separate financlal statements roved
by the Management Board of Bulgarian Developmszgt Bank AD on 0419.2020.

Y/ il S ) / e

nvho'rndorov ,f' ; P nayot Fili “iikgiay Dimitrov '

Executive Dfm!;i{ / sriitive Distc tor Executive Director QEHIe_fAr pa%
nl.'-ll""l.E

aw-

Auditors’ report on the separate finoncici statements Issved on 30.09.2020:

Deloitte Audit 00D, quditi Grant Thornton 00D, auditing company =
Rositsa Botava Silvia Dinova, Registered Auditor, in charge of the a
Statutory Manager X
Registered Audltor, In chorge

This document s a translation of the original Bulgarian text, in case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevall. 2
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless oiherwise stated

Note 2019 2018
Cash flows fram operating activities
Profit for the year 11,057 25,130
Adjustments for:
Dividend Income 10 {1,335} {909)
Impairment loss on loans 12 29,897 5,694
Expenses for / (Income from) guarantee provisions and unutilised
credit commitments 12 {450} 1,152
Impalrment loss on investments In subsidiaries 137 -
Impalrment losses on financlal assets at falr value through other
comprehensive income {641) 1,703
impairment losses on financial assets at amortized cost 60 -
Losses on revaluatlon of Investment propertles 16 -
Impalrment loss and sale of other assets 12 68 232
Net gain on revaluation of forelgn currency assets and llabllitles 8 6 {?7)
Depreclation / amortisation expenses 24 1,428 1,139
Gain on sale of assets, acquired from collateral foreclosure - (437)
Carry!ng amount of written-off assets 24 ? 1
Income tax expense 15 2,005 1,623

42,251 35311

Changes in:
Recelvables from banks {25,524) 14,542
Loans and recelvables (626,647) {357,433}
Loans to the State budget 305,178 265,517
Financlal assets at falr value through other comprehensive Income 41,444 {365,508)
Assets held for sale 27 4,772 (3,879)
Other assets (9,610) {26)
Deposits from credit Institutions 2,118 (28,150}
Deposlts from customers other than credit institutions (173,473) 516,932
Provislons 204 2,255
Other liabilities 1,525 {278)
Cash flows (usad in) / from operating activitias (437,762) 75,293
Corporate Income tax paid {2,700) (2,640}
Taxes recovered 698 -
Net cash flows {used In) / from operating activities (439,764) 76,653

A
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m
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This document Is a translation of the original Bulgarian text, in case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevail. 4



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unlsss otherwise stated

Note 2019 2018
Cash flows from invasting activitias
Cash payments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment, and Intanglble assets {5,580) {1,010)
Cash proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment, and Intangible assets 8 1
Cash proceeds from matured securities at amortized cost - 503
Purchase of securities at amortized cost {2,010) .
Proceeds from sale of assets, acquired from collateral foreclosure - {2,521)
Proceeds from Investment property 611 53
Dividends recelved fram Investments in subsidlarles 1,303 B892
Acquisition of shares in subsidiaries (4,000} {13,750)
Nat cash flows used In Investing activitles (9,668) (15,742)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends pald to the equity owners (20,104} -
Cash pald on other borrowings {307) {202)
Cash received from other borrowings 120 156
Cash received from borrowings from Intemational Institutions 528,073 156,254
Cash pald on borrowings from International Institutions {220,918) {121,294)
Nat cash flows from financing activities 286,864 34,774
Net change In cash and cash equlvalents for the perlod {162,568) 95,685
Cash and cash equivaiants at the beginning of period a7 617,301 521,616
Cash and cash aguivalents at end of period a7 454,733 617,301
Oparating intarast-reiated cash flows
Proceeds from Interest 79,619 59,857
Interest patd {10,738) (8,019)

The accompanying notes from 1 to 39 are an integral part of these separar

by the Management Board of Bulgarian Developmeri#ank AD on 30.
}/

C@’ ¥/
‘!ﬁlvlw Todorov ,,-f" Panayot Flllpnv Nikalay Dimitrov I m
f/ " Executive Director Executive Direcpir Executve Director Ih{c'f A
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nclal statements. The separate financial statements were apgroved

Auditors’ report on the separate finariclal statements\=xued on 30.09.2020:

Deloitte Audit 00D, auditin: ny Grant Thornton 00D, ouditing compony
Rositsa Boteva Silvla Dinova, Registered Auditor, In charge of the
Statutory Manager

Registered Auditor, In ch ft
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

1. ORGANISATION AND OPERATING POLICY

The separate financial statements of the Bulgarian Development Bank AD {"BDB", "the Bank") for the year ending
31 December 2019 are approved for issue according to a decision of the Management Board of 30.09.2020.

Bulgarian Development Bank AD is a joint-stock company registered with the Commercial Reglster under UIC
121856059, with a seat in the city of Sofia, Sofia City Region, Bulgarla, and management address: 1 Dyakon Ignatij
Str. The financial year of the Bank ends on 31 December.

Bulgarian Development Bank AD was established on 11 March 1999 as a joint-stock company In Bulgaria under
the name “"Encouragement Bank” AD.

The Bulgarian Development Bank Act was adopted on 23 April 2008 (SG 43/29.04.2008) to regulate the structure
and the scope of Bank’s activities, including those for its subslidiarles, envisaged for Incorporation. By virtue of
that law the functions and all rights and obligations were applied to Encouragement Bank AD. Pursuant to a
requirement of the law, a General Meeting of the Sharehclders was held (26 June 2008) at which the name of
the Bank was changed to Bulgarian Development Bank and its Articles of Incorporation were amended in line
with the new legal requirements thereto.

The Bank holds a general banking license, issued by Bulgarlan Natlonal Bank (BNB) on 25 February 1999 with
latest update of 16 November 2009 and Is allowed to conduct all banking transactions permitted by the Bulgarian
legislation. The Bank Is also a licensed investment intermediary.

From the very beginning, the Bank was established with a special purpose - to support the implementation of
the economic policies of the State by financing the business development of small and medium-sized enterprises
{SME), including by supporting their investment and export abilities and initiatives. With the adoption of the
Bulgarian Development Bank Act in 2008 this objective was further elaborated In the objectives, principles and
scope of the Bank's activities set by the law.

The Bank's lendIing activity Includes:

- pre-export and export financing of SME;

- financing SME operations and projects either through Intermediary banks or directly;
- refinancing banks that grant loans to SME;

- flnancing SME Investments abroad.

The main objectives of the Bank are:

- to promote, encourage and develop the general economilc, export and technological potential of SMEs
by facllitating thelr access to finance;

- drawing in and management of medlum and long-term local and foreign resources needed for the
implementation of economic development in the country;

- implementation of schemes and instruments to finance public investment projects that are priorities
for the country's economy;

- fundraising and project management of international financial and other institutions; fundralsing and
grant funding in order to reduce regional misbalances in the country;

- financing of projects of local companies that create export, innovation, high employment and / or value
added;

- financing of priority sectors of the economy, in line with the government policy for economic
development.

This document Is a translation of the original Bulgarian text, in case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevail. 6



EULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

1, ORGANISATION AND OPERATING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Bulgarian Development Bank AD has a two-tier system of governance, which comprises Supervisory Board (SB)
and Management Board (MB). The Supervisory Board and the Audit Committee represent those charged with
governance. As of 31 December 2019, the members of the Supervisory Board of BDB (5B) were: Lachezar Dimitrov
Borisov — Chairman of $B, Mitko Emilov Simeonov — Vice Chairman and member of 58, Velina Ilieva Burska —
member of SB.

The composition of the Management Board of BDB as of 31 December 2019 was as follows: Stoyan Todorov
Mavrodiev - Chairman of MB and Chlef Executive Officer; Rumen Dimitrov Mitrov - Vice Chairman / member of
MB and Executive Director; Nikolay Dimitrov Dimitrov — member of MB and Executive Director.

The Bank Is represented jointly by either two of the three Executive Directors.
As of 31 December 2019, the Bank’'s employees were 208 (31 December 2018: 191).

The Bulgarian Development Bank Act (2008) envisages the establishment of two Bank subsidiaries - the Capital
Investment Fund AD and the Natlonal Guarantee Fund EAD {Note 23). National Guarantee Fund EAD was
established in 2008 with BGN 80,000 thousand share capital and Capital Investment Fund AD was established in
2018 with share capital of BGN 65,000 thousand out of which 25% paid in as of 31 December 2019. The share of
BDB in Capltal Investment Fund AD is 85%.

In addition, in 2015 BDB established two new subsidiaries:

- BDB LEASING EAD, with a capital of BGN 2 million
BDB FACTORING EAD, with a capital of BGN million

As at 31.12.2019 the Bulgarian Development Bank AD has no open branches.

These financlal statements are separate financial statements. The Bank also prepares consolidated financial
statements In accordance with international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by the European Union (EU) in which investments in subsidiaries
are recognized and disclosed in accordance with IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements.

This document s a tranglation of the original Bulgarian text, In case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevall. 7



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Applicable standards

These separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the European Union.

These flnancial statements have been prepared on a separate basis. The Bank prepares consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Accountancy Act. These separate finariclal statements shall be read together
with the consolidated financial statements.

Statement of compliance

The separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Union {IFRS as adopted by the EU). Reporting framework "IFRS
as adopted by the EU" is essentially the defined national basis of accounting "1AS, as adopted by the EU", specified
in the Bulgarian Accountancy Act and defined in paragraph 8 of its Additional provisions.

These separate financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
items:

e Derivative financial instruments, measured at fair value through profit or loss;

® Tradable financlal instruments, measured at falr value through profit or loss;

& Financial instruments, measured at fair value through other comprehensive income;

Investment property, assets held for sale and assets acquired from collateral foreclosure carrled at fair value,

at cost less costs of sale and net reallzable value (which, In the case of assets acquired from collateral
foreclosure is their falr value, less costs of sale), as long as the fair value can be measured rellably.

=olng concern

The Bank's management assessed the ability of the Bank td continue its activity as a going concern and is
confident about the availability of sufficient resources to continue its normal operations in the foreseeable
future. Moreover, management is not aware of any significant uncertainty that could cast doubts as to the ability
of the Bank to continue as a going concern. In view of the above, these separate financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis.

Order of liquidity and maturlty structure

The Bank presents its separate statement of financial position in order of liquidity. An analysis regarding recovery
of assets or settlement of liabilities is presented In Note 4.3.

Comparabillty of data

The separate financial statements provide comparative information with respect to one previous period.

Presentation currency

The Bulgarian lev is the reporting and functional currency. These separate financial statements are presented in
thousands of Bulgarian leva (BGN’'000).

This document is a translation of the original Bulgarian text, In case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevail. 8



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
Allamounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Accounting estimates

The preparation of the financial statements In accordance with International Finandial Reporting Standards
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
Income, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabillties at the date of the flnancial
statements. These estimates are made on the basis of information avallable as of the date of the financial
statement and therefore, the actual results may differ from these estimates. The items presuming a higher level
of subjective assessment or complexity, or where the assumptions and accounting estimates are material for the
financial statements, are disclosed in the notes below.

Key estimates and assumptions of high uncertainty
a} Expected credit losses on assets carried ot amortised cost

Monthly, the Bank reviews its loan portfolio and other assets carried at amortised cost in order to detect the
existence of conditions presuming impairment in the current or future period, and to calculate impairment
losses. When assessing whether to include the impairment loss in the separate statement of comprehensive
income, the Bank's management considers whether there are and what are the cbservable indicators and data,
which indlcate that there is a measurable reduction in the expected cash flows from the loan portfolio as a whole,
or respectively — a decrease associated with a particular loan/component from this portfolio. Such indicators and
data are those that indicate the existence of an adverse change in the payment options by the borrowers from a
particular group or by a particular borrower, or the presence of national, economic or other conditions that are
associated with a particular risk for a given group/type of loans.

The main indicators for determining the risk groups are the debtor’s financial condition and project
implementation, funded by the loan, problems with servicing, including interest in arrears and maturing
principal, sources of repayment and granted collateral, as a type and opportunity for realisation. Additionally, for
loans, guaranteed by the European Investment Fund (EIF), the impairment loss is recognised after deduction of
the portion borne by EIF (Note Ne 4.1).

In determining the future cash flows pattern, the Bank's management uses estimates, judgments and
assumptions based on its historical loss experience, adjusted with European statistical data for assets with similar
credlt risk characteristics, as well as an objective evidence for impairment or expected impairment of the
portfolio from unrealised loss in a partlcular component thereof. Analogous approach is used also for
assessments at Individual credit exposure, with respect to individually significant loans, taking into account the
quality of collateral as well. The methodology and assumptlons used for estimating both the amount and timing
of future cash flows are raviewed regularly so as to minimize the discrepancies between loss estimates and actual
loss experienced (Notes 12 and 19).

This document is a translation of the original Bulgarian text, In case of divergence the Bulgarlan text shall prevall, 9



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2012
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key estimates and assumptions of high uncertainty {continued)

b) Measurement of financial instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
Equity and debt instruments not quoted on stock markets

The Bank classifles as Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income its investments held in
the form of non-publicly traded companies’ shares / entities (less than 20% of their capital), which have been
acquired with the alm to establish and develop business relations of interest to the Bank. Management measures
these financial assets at fair value using methods that are allowed under IFRS 13, except in cases where it has
judged that the cost of acquisition (cost) better reflects their fair value, namely:

- When there Is no sufficient and up-to-date information to enable it to measure the fair value; or

When there is a large scope of eligible methods and/or resultant valuations of the fair value and the
cost approximates most closely the fair value within a range of values calculated (Notes 9 and 22).

Equity and debt instruments quoted on stock markets

As of 31 December 20189, the Bank conducted a detailed comparative analysis of the movements on the national
and foreign stock markets of the stock market prices of public companies’ shares and bonds listed for dealing
held by it.

For investments in securities that are listed for dealing at stock exchange markets, management has carrled out
research and analyses and deems that they may be subsequently carried at fair value determined directly on the
basis of completed transactions in the stock market in the last month of the financlal year {Level 1). In addition,
the applied prices are analysed for trends in the behaviour of stock exchange prices of the respective securities
at least for the last three months of the year and respectively, to the date of issuing of the separate financial
statements. (Notes 9, 16, 22).

The Bank impairs its debt instruments in compliance with its Policy and Methodology for assessment of expected
credit losses and calculation procedure.,

¢) Provisions for bank guarantees issued

The Bank has formed provisions for a portfollo of contingent liabilities for payment in accordance with IAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabllitles and Contingent Assets. The Bank reviews its contingent liabilities the purpose
of establishing whether any events have occurred, that would confirm to a large extent the probability that a
commitment will be paid to settle an obligation. If such events occur, the Bank provides its liability up to the
amount of its future costs related to the outflows of economic benefits/payments. These costs/losses are
determined on the basis of the present value of the future net cash flows, representing the difference between
the payment obligation and the possible inflows of subsequent recourse to the guarantee user or third parties
(Notes Ne 12 and 32).

This document le a translation of the original Bulgarlan text, in case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevall. 10



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key estimates and assumptions of high uncertainty (continued)

A financial guarantee contract is 2 contract that requires the issuer to make specifled payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due In accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured Initlally at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL
and do not arise from a transfer of an asset, are measured subsequently at the higher of:

- the amount of the loss allowance determined In accordance with IFRS 9; and
- the amount recognised initially less, where appropriate, cumulatlve amortisation of recognised
revenue.

d) Actuarial calculations

In assessing the present value of the long-term liabilities to employees upon retirement, actuarial methods and
calculations are used based on assumptions for mortality rate, staff turnover rate, future salary levels and a
discount factor considered by management as reasonable and relevant to the Bank (Note 33).

e) Valuation of investment property

The fair value of investment property, which management considers reasonable and adequate for the Bank, is
determined by certified independent appraisers. The valuations are conducted by using various valuation
techniques, such as the recoverable amount method, the method of income capltalisation, the method of market
analogues, where for each method a welght Is set for the purposes of achleving the final fair value of investment
property at the end of the reporting perlod (Note 25).

f) Assets acquired from collateral foreclosure

Assets acquired from collateral foreclosure include assets acquired by the bank as a resuit of non-performing
loans. These assets are measured at the lower of at cost and net realisable value. The net realisable value, which
management considers reasonable and adequate for the Bank, s determined -by certified independent
appralsers.

g) Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values of financial assets and liabllities on the separate statement of financial position cannot be
derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of
mathematical models. The input to these models is taken from the Bank’s historical cbservatlons and observable
financlal market indicators, where possible. However, where this Is not feasible, a degree of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. The assumptions include liquidity factors, volatility for longer derivatives and
discount rates, early payments and assumptions for non-performance in connection with securities for which
assets have been provided as collateral.

This document is a translation of the original Bulgarlan text, In case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevail. 11



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are in thousand Buigarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

2, BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

2.1 Changes In accounting policles and disclosures
Reporting equity for regulatory purposes

Until 2018, the Bank treated its controlling interests in the capital of subsidlaries NGF EAD and MFI JOBS EAD as
a deduction from equlty for regulatory purposes. As at 31.12.201% following a Declsion of the Management Board
of the BNB No162/30.04.2020 (BNB-41615/30.04.2020), the Bank changed its policy and began to report its
particlpation In these companies as exposure under Art. 48 item 4 of Regulatlon 575/2013, resulting in an
increase In regulatory capital by BGN 91,643 thousand. The decision has no other effects on the Bank's IFRS
financlal statements for 2019.

New and amended standards and Interpretations

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year. The following
amendments to IFRS have been adopted by the Bank as of 1 January 2019:

IFRS 16 Leases

The standard Is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. iFRS 16 sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both partles to a contract, i.e. the
customer ("lessee’) and the supplier {‘lessor’). The new standard requires lessees to recognlze most leases on
their balance sheet and to have a single accountlng model for all leases, with certain exemptions. Lessor
accounting is substantially unchanged. The new standard was applied by the Bank using the modified
retrospective approach. Previous periods have not been recalculated. For those leases that were previously
classified as finance leases, the right-of-use asset and the lease llability were measured at the same amounts at
the date of initlal application of the standard at which they were measured under IAS 17 immediately before the
date of initial applicatlon, respectively BGN 775 thousand right-of-use assets as at 1 January 2019 and lease
liakilities of BGN 561 thousand as at that date.

The Bank has also applied the following new standards, amendments and interpretations to IFRS deveioped and
published by the International Accounting Standards Board, which are mandatory for implementation for annual
period beginning on 1 January 2019, but their application has no effect on the financial performance and financial
position of the Bank:

- IFRS 9 Financial Instruments {Amendments) — Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

- |AS 19 Employee Benefits (Amendments): Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

- |AS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments) — Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

= IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income Tax Treatments

- Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

This document Is e translation of the original Bulgarian text, in case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevail. 12



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.2 Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted

Standards issued but not yet effective or not early adopted up to the date of issuance of the Bank’s financial
statements are listed below. This listing Is of standards and interpretations Issued, which the Bank reasonably
expects to have an impact cn disclosures, financial position or performance when applied at a future date. The
Bank intends to adopt those standards when they become effective.

Definition of Material (Amendmants to IAS 1 and IAS 8)

Changes in the definition of 'materiality' align the definltion used In the Conceptual Framewaork and in the
standards.

The amendments explain how the definition should be applied by providing practical guidance that has
previously been incorporated into other IFRSs. The change enters into force on 1 January 2020. The Bank does
not expect an Impact on its financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7)

Changes to the Interest rate benchmark reform {Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7} clarify that some
entities will continue to use certain hedge accounting requirements, assuming that the reference rates on which
hedged cash flows are based and the hedge instrument cash flows will not change as a result of the interest rate
benchmark reform. The change enters into force on 1 January 2020. The Bank does not expect an impact on its
financial statements.

Class!flcation of assets as current or non-current {Amendments to [AS 1}

The changes aim to permanence in the application of the requirements by helping entities to determine, in
reporting the financial position, debt and other liabilities with an uncertaln repayment date, whether they should
be classified as current (due or potentially repayable within one year) or non-current. These changes anter into
force on 1 January 2023 and have not yet been adopted by the EU.

IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Amendments): Definition of a Business

The amendments are effectlve for annual perlods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 and are adopted by EU.
The amendments limit the definition of business, provide guldance supporting entities to estimate whether the
acquired bustness Is significant and introduce optional fair value concentration test.

Thie document Is a translation of the original Bulgarian text, in case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevail. 13



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

2.2 Standards Issued but not yet effective and not early adopted (continued)

IFRS 17: Insurance Contracts

The standard Is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, replacing IFRS 4 Insurance
contracts, with earlier application permitted if both IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9
Financial Instruments have also been applied. IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts establishes principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts issued. It also requires similar
principles to be applied to reinsurance contracts held and investment contracts with discretlonary participation
features Issued. It requires the implementation of an ongoing assessment model according to which estimates
are reviewed during each reporting period. Contracts are assessed using discounted cash flows with weighted
probabilitles, an explicit risk adjustment and a contracted services allowance representlng unrealised contract
profit, which is recognised as income during the coverage period. The standard has not been yet endorsed by
the EU.

Conceptual Framewark for Financial Reporting

The 1ASB issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting on 29 March 2018, which Is effective
for annual perlods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The Conceptual Framework sets out a comprehensive
set of concepts for financlal reporting, guidance for preparers in developing consistent accounting policies and
assistance to others in their efforts to understand and interpret the standards.

The main amendments introduced In the revised Conceptual framework for financial reporting are related to
measurement, including factors, which should be considered when choosing measurement basis, and to
presentation and disclosure, including Income and expenses which should be classified in other comprehensive
income. The Conceptual framework also provides updated definitions for asset and liability and criterla for thelr
recognition in the financial statements. The Conceptual framework for financial reporting has not yat been
endorsed by the EU,

Together with the revised Conceptual Framework |ASB also issues Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in IFRS Standards.

IFRS 16 Leases — Covid-19 related Rent Concessions, effective as of 1 June 2020, not yet adopted by the EU

The changes concern only lessees under leasing contracts who have received a discount on the rental amount or
do not owe rent for a certain period of time as a result of the COVID-19 coronavirus pandemic. In this case,
lessees may not consider reduced rental contributions or simplified rents for the periods up to or before 30 June
2021 as a lease modification, regardless of whether the rental amounts are subsequently increased after 30 June
2021.

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts {effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016} — the
European Commission has decided not to launch the endorsement process of this interim standard and to wait
for the final standard.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financlal Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Assoclate or Joint Venture and further
amendments (effective date deferred indefinltely until the research project on the equity method has been
concluded).

This document Is a translation of the original Bulgarlan text, In casa of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevail. 14



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

2.2 Standards Issued but not yet effective and not 2arly adbpted (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations: IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment; IAS 37 Provislons,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as well as Annual Improvements.

Annual improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle effective as of 1 January 2022, not yet adopted by the EU
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle amend IFRS 1, IFRS 9, {FRS 16 and IAS 41.

The amendment in IFRS 9 clarifies which fees to be included when applying the "10 per cent" test in paragraph
B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 when assessing whether It is necessary to write off a financial llability. The entlty should include
only fees paid or recelved between the company {borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or recelved elther
by the entity or by the lender on behalf of a third party.

Amendments to IAS 16 "Property, plant and equlpment - Proceeds before Intended use, effectlve as of 1
January 2022, not yet adopted by the EU

The amendments to IAS 16 "Property, plant and equipment - Proceeds before intended use amend the standard
to prohiblt deducting from the cost of an ltem of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for It to be capable of operating in
the manner Intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such ltems, and
the cost of producing those items, in profit or loss.

Amendments to IAS 37 "Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling a Contract", effective as of 1 January 2022, not
yet adopted by the EU

Amendments to IAS 37 "Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract" adds that "the costs of fulfilling a
contract include costs directly related to the contract”. Costs directly related to a contract can be either
additional costs for fulfilling the contract {examples of this are direct work, materials) or allocation of other costs
directly related to fulfilling a contracts {an example may be the allocation of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment used in the fulfilling of the contract).

This decument ls a translation of the original Bulgarlan text, In case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevail. 15



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwiss stated

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Financlal Instruments

IFRS 9 Financlal instruments: classification and measurement

Recognition of assets

The Bank recognises a financial asset or financial liability in the statement of financial position, when and only
when 1t is part of an existing contractual relationship regulating the instrument.

The Bank classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, at falr value in other
comprehensive income or at fair value through profit or loss, as the case may be, on the grounds of:

a)
b)

a business model of the Bank for financial assets management
the features of the contractual cash flow of the financial asset.

Regardless of its electlon with regard to the reporting approach, the Bank has the option, at initial recognltion,
Irrevocably deslgnate a financial asset as measured at fair value through profit or loss if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwlse arise from measuring
assets or liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases, as per the paragraphs below:

a)

b)

c)

if the Bank has liabilities under Insurance contracts whose measurement incorporates current
information and financial assets that it considers to be related and that would otherwise be measured
at either fair value through other comprehensive income or amortised cost.

if the Bank has financial assets, financial liabilities or both that share a risk, and that gives rise to opposlte
changes in fair value that tend to offset each other.

If the Bank has financial assets, financial liabilities or both that share a risk, , that glves rise to opposite
changes in fair value that tend to offset each other and none of the financlal assets or financial liabilities
qualifies for designation as a hedging instrument because they are not measured at fair vaiue through
profit or loss.

A financlal asset Is measured at amortised cost, if both of the following two criteria are met simultaneously:

a)

b)

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to collect their contractual cash
flows (Hold to Collect business model); and

The contractual terms of the financial asset lead to generation of cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the outstanding interest, on specific dates (SPPI}.

A financial asset is measured at fair value in other comprehensive income, if both of the following two criteria
are met simultaneously:

a)

The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to collect the contractual cash
flows and sell the financial asset, and

b) The contractual terms of the financial asset lead to generation of cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest on the outstanding interest, on specific dates.
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financlal Instruments {continued)
IFRS 9 FInanclal Instruments: classification and measurement (continued)
Recognition of assets {continued)

A financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss, unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair
value in other comprehensive income in accordance with the above criteria.

Upon initial recognition, the Bank may make an irrevocable choice to Include in fair value in other comprehensive
income subsequent changes to an Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading or Is not a
contingent remuneration recognised by a transferee in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applles.

Reclassification of financial assets

when and only when the Bank changes its business model for financial asset management, it reclassifies all
financial assets affected, in Jine with the asset classification requirements. If the Bank applies such reclassification
to financial assets, it shall apply it in the future, from the first day of the first reporting period foliowing the
change in business model that results In reclassifying the flnancial assets. The Bank does not recalculate
previously recognised profits, losses {including gains or Impairment losses) or interest.

Assessment and reporting

Upon initial recognition, in the case of a financial asset or financial liability not stated at fair value through profit
or loss, the Bank measures a financial asset or a financlal llabillty at falr value, taking into account as a probable
increase and/or decrease of the transaction costs which are direcily related to the acquisition or origination of
the financial asset or financlal liability.

Determination of a business model

The Bank defines the “business model with the objective to collect their contractual cash flows (Hold to Collect
business model)” as a business model where the Bank’s financial assets are managed with the objective to
generate cash flows through collection of contractual cash flows over the instrument’s lifetime. The Bank may
use this business model in the event of converting the sale of assets with increased credit risk or in order to
reduce the concentration risk. These financial assets are carried at amortised cost If as described above an
additional criterion is met that the contractual terms of the flnancial asset give rise to cash flows, which are only
principal payments and interest on outstanding principal, on specific dates (SPPI).

The Bank defines the “business model with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and sell the
financial asset” as a business model where the Bank’s key management staff have declded that the collection of
contractual cash flows and the sale of financial assets are an integral part of the achievement of the business
model's objective and includes much more frequent and of higher value sales of financial assets than a business
model with the main purpose of holding financial assets to collect contractual cash flows. These assets are
reported as financial assets at falr value through other comprehensive income, if as described above an
additional criterion is met that the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows, which are only
principal payments and interest on outstanding principal, on specific dates (SPPI).
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless ctherwise stated

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financlal Instruments (continued)

IFRS 9 Financlal instruments: classiflcation and measurement {continued}
Determination of a business model (continued)

The Bank defines "other business models” as a business model that does not Include the holding of financlal
assets for the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows or for the simultaneous collecting of contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets. Typically, this process Involves actively buying and selling financia! assets. These
assets are reported as financial assets at falr value through profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Bank Initially recognises loans, receivables and deposlits on the date they were incurred. All other financial
instruments {Including assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially
on the trade date, which Is the date that the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument,

The Bank derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the flnanclal asset
expire, or the Bank transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest In such transferred
financial asset that qualify for derecognition, which is created or retained by the Bank, is recognised as a separate
asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the separate statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Bank has a legal right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle
them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Bank has the following non-derlvative financlal assets:

- financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
- financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income;
- financial assets at amortised cost;

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are financial assets which are held within a “held to collect” business
model and that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPIY. The Bank holds such financial assets within
a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows within the
life of the asset. Such assets are Inltlally measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs.
Subsequently, loans and receivables are measured at their amortised cost using the effective Interest rate, less
any impairment losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

3.1 Financlal Instruments {continued)

Financial assets {continued)

Financial assets at amortized cost {continued)

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts for the
expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a flnancial asset or to the
amortized cost of a financial liability. In calculating the effective interest rate the expected cash flows are
estimated taking into account all contractual terms and conditions under the financial instrument (for example
early repayment options, extension options, call options and similar), excluding expected credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and other considerations paid or recelved by the contract counterparties that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transactlon costs and other premiums or discounts.

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates the cash flows by considering all contractual
terms of the financial instrument, but not considering any future credit losses.

The calculation includes all charges and other fees pald to or recelved by the contractors that are an Integral part
of the effective interest rate.

The Bank assessas whether evidence of Impairment of loans and receivables exists for each specific asset, except
for receivables from employees (Note 3: Impairment of financial assets). After a thorough review of the quality
and Impairment testing of standard exposures, the Bank established that as at 31 December 2019, as also in
2018, the expected credit loss on receivables from employees was 0%, and that which had arisen from
receivables having occurred in relation to Energy Efficlency of Muiti-Family Residential Buildings National
Programme (EEMFRBNP) amounted to BGN 247 thousand (as at 31 December 2018: BGN 804 thousand).

Financlal assets measured at amortised cost include cash and cash equivalents, recelvables from banks, loans
and advances to customers, receivables from the State budget, securities and trade and other recelvables.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income include equity and debt securities,
and certain cases of loans and advances.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive Income are assets acquired under a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets.

Debt Instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

2} the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets; and

b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The debt instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, changes in the
carrying amount of these debt instruments as a result of forelgn exchange galns and losses, impairment gains or
losses, and interest income calculated using the effective interest method are recognlised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

3.1 Financlal Instruments {continued)

Financial assets {continued)

When an investment is derecognised, the accumulated galns or losses In other comprehensive Income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

On initlal recognition, the Bank may make an irrevocable election {on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity
investment is held for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
comblnation.

A financial asset is held for trading If:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

s on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Bank manages
together and has evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

* it is a derivative {except for a derivative that is a financlal guarantee contract or a designated and
effective hedging instrument).

Investments In equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs.
Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumuiated in the revaluation reserve. The cumulative gain or loss is not
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, Instead, it is transferred to reserves.

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Upon disposal of equity
Instruments from this category each amount recognized in the revaluation reserve of the instruments is
reclassified to retained earnings.

Financial assets at fair value throunh profit or loss
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI are measured at

FVTPL. Specifically:

- Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Bank designates an equity
investment that is nelther held for trading nor a contingent consideration arising from a business
combination as at FVTOCI on Initial recognitlon;

= Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria are classified as at
FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either the amortised cost criterla or the FVTOCI criteria
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognltion inconsistency {so called ‘accounting mismatch’) that would arise
from measuring assets or Habillties or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The
Bank has not designated any debt instruments as at FVTPL.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

3.1 Financlal Instruments (continued)

Financlal assets [continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Transaction related costs are recognized in profit or loss upon origination. Financlal assets at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value and any related changes, Including dividend income, are recognised in
profit or loss.

Upon initial acquisition, the Bank’s management determines whether a financial asset will be held for trading.
Usually, management designates derlvatives as such instruments.

A derivative Is a flnancial instrument:

- Whose value changes in response to changes in interest rates, security prices, commaodity prices, foreign
exchange rates, price Indices or interest rates, credit ratings or credit indices, or other variables;

- Thatrequires no initial net investment, or one that is smaller than would be required for a contract with
similar response to changes in market conditlons;

- That s settled at a future date.

When upon entering a specific derivative transaction, the Bank defines a position to be hedged and all the
requirements of IFRS 9 have been met, the corresponding derlvative is recognised as such hedging and it shall
be specified whether it hedges:

- deviations In the fair value of a specific asset (fair value hedge),
- differences in the estimated future cash flows (cash flow hedge}, or
- the effect of investments in foreign subsidiaries {(net investment hedge).

Derivatives that do not meet the criterla for hedge accounting are measured at fair value through profit and loss.

Initially, derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value {inciuding transaction costs) and
subsequently, they are measured at fair value. Derlvatlves are accounted for as assets when their fair value is
positive and as liabilities when it is negative.

As of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019, the Bank has no flnanclal assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

Assets under trust management

The Bank provides trust management services that includes holding of or investing in assets on behalf of
customers. Assets held under trust management, unless certain recognition criteria have been met, are not
included In the Bank'’s financial statements since they are not assets of the Bank.

Bulgarian Development Bank AD performs services in its capacity as an investment intermediary In accordance
with the provisions of the Public Offering of Securlties Act (POSA). Belng an Investment intermediary, the Bank
is obliged to comply with certain requirements in order to protect its customers’ interests in accordance with the
Markets in Financial Instruments Act {MFIA) and Ordinance 38, issued by the Financial Supervision Commission
{FSC). Moreover, the Bank should also observe the requirements of Directive 2014/65/EC on the Markets in
Financial Instruments (MIFID Il) and Regulation 600/2014 of the EU on the Markets In Financlal Instruments
{MiFIR).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial instruments (continued)

Assets under trust management {continued)

The Bank has developed and implements organizatlon relating to the conclusion and performance of contracts
with customers, the requirement of information from customers, keeping records and storage of client’s assets,
in compliance with the provisions of the above-mentioned Natlonal and European legal acts. The Bank has
implemented a system of in-house internal control rules and procedures aiming at ensuring its full compliance
with the bodles of legislation mentioned above.

Financlal liabilitles

All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL. Financial liabilities that are not contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination,
held-for-trading, or designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Initially, they are stated at fair value of cash flows received on the origination of the liability, less any transaction
costs. Subsequently, any difference between the net cash flows and the residual value Is recognised In proflt or
loss for the period using the effective interest rate method over the term of the liabillty. The financial liabilltles
reported by the Bank as deposlts, borrowings and securities issued are stated at amortised cost.

The effectlve interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying
amount of financial asset or to the amortised cost of financial liability. When calculating the effective interest
rate the Bank estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, but does not
consider future credit fosses. The calculation includes all charges and other fees paid to or received by the
contractors that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

Derecognition of financial instruments
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised when:

a) the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired;

b) the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have been transferred, or
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have been retained, but a contractual
obligation has been assumed for their payment in full without material delay to a third party under a
‘pass through' arrangement, and either:
= the Bank has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset, or
— the Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial

asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Bank has transferred Its contractual rights to receive cash flows from a flnancial asset and has neither
transferred nor retained substantially al! of the risks and rewards of the financial asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the transferred financial asset is recognised to the extent of the Bank’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In this case, the Bank recognises the related obligation. The transferred asset and the concomitant
obligation are evaluated to reflect the rights and obligations, which the Bank has retained. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Bank could be required to
repay.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition of financial instruments {continued)

A financial liabllity is derecognised from the separate statement of financial position when it is extinguished, i.e.
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or explres. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification Is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference In the respective carrying amounts of the
original and new liabllity is recognised in the separate statement of comprehensive Income — in profit or loss.

impalrment of financial Instruments

IFRS 9 requires the recognition of a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt instruments
that are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables and contract assets, as
well as on financial guarantee contracts. The amount of the impairment depends on the probability of default of
the debtor over the next 12 months after initial recognition, unless there has been a significant increase in credit
risk, which requires the estimation of expected credit losses {ECL) over the lifetime of the financial asset.

The estimate of ECLs is based on all available, reasonable and justified information at the reporting date for past
events, the current situation and the use of relevant macroeconomic indicators and reliable forecasts of future
economic conditions. The key macroeconomic indicators, used by the Bank, are gross domestic product,
unemployment, infiation, changes In oll prices, and changes in the USD exchange rate and 3M EURIBOR. The
expectad credlt losses for loans classified in Stage 3 are measured on the basls of three macroeconomic scenarios
- realistic, negative and optimistic, which are used in the calculation of the impalrment by applying different
weights. The results obtained can be further adjusted and expected credit losses increased or reduced to reflect
future risks that cannot be modelled (mainly, legislative or regulatory).

The Bank has drawn up a methodology that Introduces criteria for classifying financlal assets in three categorles
(the so-called "stages”), transfer criteria between them and setting an impalrment amount depending on the
stage in which the underlying asset is classified.

The stages and their characteristics are described below:

- Stage 1~ Includes standard (performing) loans without a significant increase in credit risk after initlal
recognition. The impairment of those assets is based on the probabllity of default of the debtor over
the next 12 months or for a shorter period if the life of the instrument is shorter than one year.

- Stage 2 — includes assets with a significant Increase in credit risk after Initial recognition. Such an
increase is presumed if the loan is past due for more than 30 days; the debtor is placed on watch; the
debtor's credit rating has deteriorated at the reporting date compared to its rating on the date of
recognition of the instrument, or the Bank expects the credit to be restructured. In this case, the
expected credit losses are calculated for the entire lifetime of the asset;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial instruments (contlnued)

Impalrment of financial instruments (continued)
-  Stage 3 — includes assets, for which objective evidence exists that they are impaired, such as non-
performing loans. The Bank has set specific criteria that determine when a debtor is in default. The
expected credit losses for these instruments are also calculated for the entlre lifetime of the Instrument.

The absolute threshold for the transfer of credits among the levels is linked to the internal credit rating
determined by the Bank of the borrower concerned. The Bank has set a credit rating of 7 as a transition limit to
move to Stage 2 and credit rating 8 to move to Stage 3.

A financial asset classified in Stage 1 — Standard (Performing) — Is Impalred individually on the basis of the
probability of default of the debtor during the next 12 months or less, if the life of the instrument or the residual
term is less than one year.

A financial asset classified in Stage 2 — Watch —is an asset for which there has not been a significant increase In
credit risk since initial recognition. The Bank considers that there has been a significant increase In credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due; the debtor has been reclassified as watch exposure;
the debtor’s credit rating has deterlorated as at the reporting date compared to its rating as at the date of
recognition of the instrument, or the Bank expects that the credit will be restructured. In this case, the expected
credit losses are calculated for the entlire life of the asset.

A financial asset classified in Stage 3 — Non-performing - which is not recognised at falr value through profit and
loss, is reviewed at each reporting date to assess whether there is objective evidence of Its Impairment. A
financial asset !s Impalred when there is objective evidence that a loss event has occurred after the Inltial
recoghition of the asset, and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of the asset that can be
estimated reliably.

Objective evidence a financial asset is impaired includes default or delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of
a liability to the Bank on terms that the Bank would not otherwise consider, indications that a borrower or Issuer
will enter bankruptcy, adverse changes in the payment status of a borrower or issuer, economic conditlons that
lead to fallures or the disappearance of an active market for a security.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are assets that are credit-Impaired at initial recognition.
Far these assets, the Bank recognises all changes in lifetime expected credit loss since Initlal recognltion as a loss
allowance with any changes recognised In profit or loss. A favourable change for such assets creates an
impairment galn.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
The Bank impairs these assets on individual and collective bases.

The Bank considers evidence for impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost {loans and
receivables} at both individual and collective level. Assets with simillar risk characteristics are coliectively assessed
for impairment.

In assessing collective impairment the Bank uses historical trends of the probability of defauit, the timing of
recoveries and the amount of loss incurred. Impairment losses on financlal assets measured at amortised cost
are calculated as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial instruments {continued)

Impalrment of financlal Instruments {continued)

Financial gssets measured at amortised cost [continued|

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probabllity of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there Is a default} and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss glven default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting
date; for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down In the future by default date determined
based on historical trend, the Bank’s understanding of the specific future flnancing needs of the debtors, and
other relevant forward-looking information.

Pursuant to the Policy and Rules for Calculation of Expected Credit Losses and Exposures’ Impairment, the
understanding of the Bank of the impairment on a collective {portfolio} basis is as follows:

LArticle 32, (1) Based on o motivated proposal by Risk Department, the bank may designate sub-portfolios of
exposures with similar risk characteristics.

{2) The indicators underiying the establishment of a sub-porifolio are controlled and monitored ot least once a
year In order to identify potential unfavourable dynamics and changes in the risk profile of the portfolio.

Article 33. The amount of the collective impairment is determined in accordance with the methodology adopted
by the Bank. It is also possible to develop additional methodologies that take into account specific risk factors for
particular sub-portfolios.

Article 34. For groups of financial instruments the credit risk of which has increased significantly since initial
recognition, a portfolio assessment can be made taking into occount the information that shows a significant
increase in credit risk at the level of a group or sub-group of financial instruments. Thus, the Bank recognizes
expected credit losses over the entire life of financial instruments the credit risk of which has increased
significantly, even when there is no such evidence at the level of an individual instrument.

Article 35. (1) When the Bank determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
recognizes loss adjustments on a collective basis, financial instruments may be grouped on the basis of common
credit risk characteristics with the aim to conduct an analysis to identify a significant increase in credit risk in a
timely manner.

(2) By grouping its financial instruments, the Bank complies with the principle of not impuairing the quality of
information available by grouping financial instruments with different risk characteristics. Common
characteristics of credit risk include, but are not limited to: a type of instrument; credit risk rating; type of
coliateral; date of initial recognition; residual term to maturity; industry; geographical location of the borrower;
and the relative value of the coliateral compared to the financial asset if it affects the probabiiity of default (for
example, non-recourse loans in some jurisdictions or loan / collateral ratios).”

Currently, the Bank has designated as a portfolio for collective impairment its receivables on Energy Efficiency of
Muliti-Family Residentlal Bulldings Natlonal Programme (EEMFRBNP).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.1 Financlal Instruments {continued)

impalrment of financlal Instruments (continued)

Finoncial assets measured at amortised cost [continued

For the Bank, impairment on an individual basis means {again, as defined in the same Pollcy) an assessment of
the expected credit losses based on the exposure’s individual parameters.

1. When the exposure is in Stage 3, an individual matrix is applled to the expected future cash fiows from
collateral realisation.

2. When the exposuré is tn Stage 1 or 2, a tool Is used to compare the exposure’s individual characterlstics
{such as maturity, payment models, sectors, etc.) with probabilities of non-performance, which have been
chbserved historically with respect to simllar exposures, as well as macroeconomic parameters, sector specifics,
etc.

Financial assets measured at foir value through other comprehensive income

For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI no loss allowance is recognised in the statement of financlal position
as the carrying amount is at fair value. However, the loss allowance is included as part of the revaluation amount
in the investments revaluatlon reserve.

For equity securities no loss allowance is recognised and every movement In the fair value is recognised in other
comprehensive Income until the security is sold or derecognised.

Fair value of financlal assets and liabilities

Delinitions

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The Bank discloses information about the fair value of
those assets and liabilities for which there Is market information available and the fair value of which significantly
differs from their carrying amount.

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities that are quoted in active markets and for which there is market
information available are based on announced market prices or closing prices. The use of real market prices and
information reduces the need for management assessment and assumptions, as well as the uncertainty related
to the determination of fair value. The availability of real market prices and information varies depending on
products and markets, and changes according to the specific events and the general financial market conditlons.
For some of the other financial instruments the Bank determines the fair values by using of an evaluation method
based on the net present value. The net present value calculation is provided by market yield curves and credit
spreads, where necessary, for the respective instrument. The purpose of evaluation techniques is to determine
fair value, which would be précised by direct market particlpants. The Bank has established control environment
with respect to the assessment of fair values.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial Instruments (continued}

Falr value of financial assets and llabilities {continued)

Definitions {continued)

The fair values of financial instruments not traded in active markets (such as derivatives not traded on the
market), which are an object of a transaction between the parties, are determined using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques adhere to the use of market data when available and as less as possible to the use of
specific assessments of the Bank.

Fair Volue Hierarchy

The Bank applles the following hierarchy for measuring and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments using
valuation techniques:

- Level 1-quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical instruments;

- Llevel 2 = inputs other than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are observable either directly or
indirectly. This category includes instruments valued using quoted market prices ln active markets for
similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or simllar instruments in markets that are considered
less than actlve; or other valuatlon techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly
observable from market data;

- Level 3 - unobservable inputs for an asset or a liability. This category includes all instruments, for which
the valuation technique does not include observable inputs and the unobservable inputs have a
significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments that are valued
based on quoted prices for similar instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments or
assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments;

The fair value hierarchy of financlal assets and llabilities is disclosed In Note 5.

Hedge accounting

IFRS 9 introduces a significant amendment to hedge accounting, requiring more extenslve disclosures regarding
the risk management actlvity. The Bank's business model does not provide taking of significant market or foreign
currency posltions. insofar as the Bank is exposed to currency or interest rate risk, it takes appropriate measures
to minimize that risk: matching the amount of active and passive exposures in the relevant currency, providing
coverage of interest-bearing fixed-rate assets with similar interest-bearing fixed-rate liabilities.

The Bank fully assumes the market risk arising out of its securities regardless of whether they have been held to
collect cash flows or to sell.

The Bank has no foreign subsidiaries to be consclidated.

The Bank does not report active financial instruments designated as hedging relationship and therefore, the
requirements of IFRS 9, applicable to hedges, have no effect on the Bank’s financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED}

3.1 Financlal Instruments (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement cash equivalents comprise cash In hand, cash in current accounts
with other banks, deposits and placements with other banks — payable at sight and/or with original maturity of
up to 3 months, including repo deals with original maturity of up to 3 months, as well as unrestricted (not
blocked) balances with the Central Bank (BNB). The parent company (the Bank) malntains a minimum statutory
reserve accerding to the requirements of BNB and for the purposes of cash flow statement it includes these funds
included as a component of Cash and cash equivalents. They are presented in the separate statement of financial
position at amortised cost.

For the purposes of preparation of the separate cash flow statement, bank overdrafts payable on demand and
forming an integral part of the Bank’s cash management are included as a component of Cash and cash
equivalents.

3.2 Other assets
Assets held for sale

Assets are classified as held for sale, if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale and not through a
continuing use in the Bank’s operations. Assets held for sale are stated iriitially at cost, with the transaction costs
being taken into account in the Initial measurement. Usually, these assets have been Initlally accepted by the
Bank as collateral and subsequently acquired as a result of a “debt against property” exchange by borrowers that
do not perform their obligations in accordance with the agreed contractual terms.

Assets classified in this group are available for Immediate sale in their present condition. Management is usually
engaged actlvely and performs actions to realise a sale transaction within at least one year after the date of
classification of the asset in this group.

Assets classified as held for sale are presented in the separate statement of financial position separately and
measured at the lower of their carrying amount and their fair value less the estimated direct costs to sell.

The assets within this classification group are not depreclated.

Investments in subsidiarles

Long-term investments, representing shares in subsldiaries, are presented in the separate financial statements
at cost, which is the falr value of the consideration paid, including direct costs of acquisition of the investment.

These investments are not traded on stock exchanges.

The investments In subsidiaries held by the Bank are subject to impairment testing. If indications of impairment
are found, the latter is recognized in the separate statement of comprehensive income.

Purchases and sales of Investments are recognised on trade date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

3.2 Other assets (continued)
Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Investments are derecognised when the rights originating from the investments have been transferred to third
parties on the occurrence of the legal grounds to do so, and thus, the control on the business rewards of
investments has been lost. Income from their sale is presented separately as part of other operating income /
{expenses) in the separate statement of comprehensive income {in the profit or loss for the year).

Taxes

Current income taxes are determined by the Bank in accordance with the Bulgarian leglslation. The Income tax
due is calculated on the basis of the taxable profit for the period determined in accordance with the rules
established by the tax authoritles on the grounds of which taxes are paid (reversed).

The tax effect relating to transactions and cother events reported In the separate statement of comprehensive
Income is recognised also in the separate statement of comprehensive income and the tax effect relating to
transactlons and ather events reported directly in equity is also recognised directly In equity.

Deferred income tax liablilties are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred
income tax liability arlses from the Inltial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that at the time of
the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or (taxable loss).

-Deferred Income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is

probable that taxable profit will be avallable against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised
except where the deferred income tax asset arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liabllity in a
transaction that at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or {loss).

Deferred taxes are recognised as income or expense, and are included In the net profit for the period, except in
cases, when these taxes arise from transactions or events, reported for the same or another period directly in
equity. Deferred taxes are charged to or deducted directly from equity, when they relate to items, which have
been charged to or deducted from equlty in the same or in a different period.

Property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are presented on the separate financial statements at historical cost of
acguisition, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Initial recoanition

Upon their initial acquisition, items of property, plant and equipment are valued at acquisition cost, which
comprises the purchase price, including customs duties and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to working condition. Directly attrlbutable costs include: costs for site preparation, initlal defivery and handling
costs, installation costs, professional fees for people involved In the project, non-refundable taxes etc.

Subseguent measurement

The approach chosen by the Bank for subsequent measurement of property, plant and equipment, is the cost
model under IAS 16 - acquisition cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

3.2 Other assets {continued}
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Subseguent measurement {continued)}

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the difference between
the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised net in other operating income
[ expenses in profit or loss,

Depreciation method

The Bank applies the straight-line depreciation method for property, plant and equipment. The useful life per
group of assets is as follows:

o buildings — 50 years
s bank equipment and computers -5 years
» motor vehicles — 5 years

¢ fixtures and fittings — 5.7 years
The useful life by groups was not changed compared to 2018.

The useful life of the individual groups of assets is determined by the management considering: their physical
wear and tear, features of the equipment, intentions for future use and expected obsolescence. The useful life
of equipment is reviewed at each year-end and adjusted prospectively in case that any material devlations from
future expectations concerning the terms of use are found.

Subsequent costs

Repair and maintenance expenses are recognised as current in the period in which they were incurred.
Subsaquent expenses relating to an item of property, plant and equipment that have the nature of replacement
of certain components or improvements and restructuring are capitalised to the carrying amount of the relevant
asset and its remaining useful life to the date of capitalisation is reassessed accordingly. At the same time, the
unamortised partion of replaced components is derecognised from the assets’ carrying amount and recognised
as current expenses for the period of restructure.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are presented on the separate financial statements at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated Impairment losses. They include software products and software licences.

The Bank applies the straight-line depreciation method for the Intanglble assets with a determined useful life of
5 years.

The carrying amount of the intangible assets is subject to review for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrylng amount might exceed thelr recoverable amount. Impairment losses
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

intanglble assets are derecognised from the separate financial statement when permanently withdrawn from
use {(upon retirement), when no future economic benefits are expected from thelr use or on disposal. Any gains
or losses on disposal of Individual assets from the group of intangible assets are determined by comparing the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset at the date of the sale.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

3.2 Other assets (contlnued)
Investment property

The Bank’s management uses this category upon lease of assets acquired from collateral foreclosure on loans.
Investment property is measured initially at cost plus any transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is recognised at fair value. Any gain or loss due to changes in the fair value of investment
property is recognised in the profit or loss in the period In which 1t has occurred. The fair value of investment
property is determined on the basis of a valuation made by an independent appraiser.

Investment property rental Income is presented as other operating income, while operating expenses directly or
indirectly relating to the generated rental income are presented as other operating expenses. Investment
praperty is derecognised on disposal or upen withdrawal from use (retirement), when no future economic
benefits are expected from Its disposal. Any gains or losses on derecognition of investment property are
recognised in the profit or loss In the period in which they have occurred.

Assets acquired from collateral foreclosure

Assets acquired from collateral foreclosure are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value in
compliance with the requirements of 1AS 2 Inventories.

Cost of the assets acquired from collateral foreclosure is the sum of all direct costs Incurred on the acquisition of
the assets and other expenses incurred on bringing them to their current location and condition. The net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs to complete
the trade cycle and costs to sell.

The impairment of these assets is calculated in accordance with the Bank’s accounting policy based on the
expected realisation of the assets acquired from collateral foreclosure. The impalrment of the assets acquired
from collateral foreclosure is recognised In the statement of profit or loss. The Bank’s management is of the
gpinion that the carrying amount of the assets acquired from collateral foreclosure is the best estimate of thelr
net realisable value at the date of the statement of financlal position. Further details are provided in Notes 25-
27

Impairment of non-financlal assets

The carrying amounts of the Bank’s non-financial assets, other than investment property, inventory and deferred
tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any Indication of impairment. If
any such indications exist, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For intangible assets with indefinite
useful life or not yet brought into use, the recoverable amount is estimated annually. An Impalrment loss Is
recognised always when the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit {CGU) exceeds its recoverable
amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of value in use and fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using the pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU,
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

3.2 Other assets {continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

For impairment testing, assets that cannct be tested individually are grouped together Into the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or CGUs.

Impalrment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised with respect to CGUs are
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impalrment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrylng amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreclatlon, had no impairment loss been recognised.

3.3. Liabilities

Penslon and ather payables to personnel under the soclal security and labour legislation

According to the Bulgarian legislation, the Bank Is obliged to pay contributions to social security and health
insurance funds. The employment relations of the employees with the Bank, In its capacity of an employer, are
based on the provisions of the Labour Code.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits of the Bank in the form of salaries, bonuses and social payments and benefits are
recognised as an expense in the separate statement of comprehensive income in the period in which the
respective service has been rendered or the requirements for their receipt have been met, and as a current
liability at thelr undiscounted amount. The Bank's obligations to make social security and health insurance
contributions are recognised as a current expense and llabllity at thelr undiscounted amount together and in the
period of accrual of the respective benefits they relate to.

At the end of each reporting period the Bank assesses and reports the expected costs of accumulating
compensated absences as the amount that is expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement. The
assessment includes the estimated costs of employee’s remuneration and the statutory social security and health
insurance contributions owed by the employer on these amounts.

Long-term retirement bEﬂE{ﬂ'S

In accordance with the requirements of the Labour Code, the employer is obliged to pay to its personnel upon
retirement an indemnity that depending on the length of service with the entity varies between two and six gross
monthly salaries as of the date of employment termination. In their nature, these are deflned benefit plans.

The calculation of the amount of these liabilities requires the involvement of qualified actuarles in order to
determine their present value at the date of the separate financial statements, at which they are included in the
separate statement of financial positlen, adjusted with the amount of the actuarial gains and losses, and
respectively, the change in their value, Including the recognised actuarial gains and losses — in other
comprehensive income.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3, Llabilities (continued)

Pension and other payables to personnel under the soclal security and labour legislation {continued)
Long-term retirement benefits fcontinued

Past service, costs are recognised Immediately In the separate statement of comprehensive income in the period
in which they were incurred.

At the end of each reporting period, the Bank assigns certified actuaries who issue a report with calculations
regarding the iong-term retirement benefit obligations. For the purpose, they apply the Projected Unit Credit
Method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the future cash flows,
which are expected to be paid within the maturity of this obligation, and by applying the interest rates of long-
term government bonds denominated in Bulgarian leva. '

Actuarial gains and losses arise from changes in the actuarlal assumptlons and experience ad]ustments. Actuarial
gains and losses from changes in demographic and financial assumptions upon retirement for assured length of
service and age are recognised in the separate statement of comprehensive income.

Termination benefits

In accordance with the provisions of the Labour Code, the employer is obliged, upon termination of an
employment contract prior to retirement, to pay indemnities as follows:

- for non-observed preliminary notice: one gross monthly salary;
due to closing down the enterprise or part of lt, outlays, reduction of the volume of work and work
stoppage for more than 15 days, etc.: one gross monthly salary;

- upon termination of the employment contract due to illness: two gross monthly salaries;

- for unused annual paid leave: for the respective years of the time recognised as service period.

The Bank recognises employee benefit obligations in the event of employment termination before the normal
retirement date when it is demonstrably committed, based on an announced plan, to either terminating the
employment of current employees without possibility of withdrawal or providing termination benefits as a result
of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits failing due more than 12 months are
discounted to and presented in the separate statement of financial position at present value.

Provisicns and contingent liabilities

Provisicns are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
liability. Provisions are measured on the basls of the best management’s estimate at the end of reporting period
of the expenses necessary to settle the particular obligation. The estimate is discounted if the obligation is long-
term.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

3.3. Liabilitles {continued)

Provislons and contingent liabillties {continued)

Contingent liabilities are obligations arising from past events, the existence of which can be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not entirely within the control of the
Bank, or it is not probable that an outflow of resources wili be required to settle the obligation. They are not
recognised in the separate statement of financial position but are subject to special disclosure,

Financial guarentee controcts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer of the guarantee to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder as a result of the failure of a third party - debtor to comply with commitments made that
have been guaranteed. Financlal guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value, whereas it is accepted
that the guarantee’s fair value on the date of its Issuance is the premium received at inception. No receivables
for the future premiums are recognized. Commission fee Income is deferred on a straight-line basis over the
period, to which such fees refer. Subsegquently, the Bank’s liabilities under financial guarantee contracts are
measured at the higher of the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance with IFRS 9; and the
amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance
with the Bank’s revenue recognition policies. The expected credlt losses, related to the financial guarantees
issued, are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income, under the heading Impairment of financial
assets. The likellhood of an obligation for payment by the Bank under such contracts is estimated based on
historical experience with similar instruments.

3.4 Capital

Share capital

The share capital is stated at the nominal value of shares issued and paid. Any proceeds from shares issued over
their nominal value are reported as share premium.

Expenses directly relating to the issuance of new shares, except of such relating to business combinations are
deducted from the capital net of any associated taxes. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in the period
in which they were approved by the shareholders. Dividends for the period, which have been announced after
the date of preparation of the financial statements, are disclosed as events after the date of the financial
statements.

An obligation for cash payables to the owners is recognised when the distribution has been approved by them
and no longer depends on the Bank. The corresponding amount is written off directly from equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 15 establishes a five-step model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers, regardless
of the type if transaction or industry, requiring the Bank (1) to identify the contracts with customers, (2) to
identify the performance obligations in the contracts, (3) to determine the transaction price, (4) to allocate the
transaction price to the performance obligations, and (5) to recognise revenue when each performance
cbligation Is satisfled.

The Bank has identified the following performance obligations under IFRS 15:

Transaction-related services — revenue is recognised at a point in time because the customer
simultaneously recelves and consumes the benefits due to the short time period of performance of the
service. The fees for these services are based on the Bank’s tariff and represent a fixed amount per
transactlon corresponding to the customers' benefit transferred. Considering the above circumstances,
the Bank applies the practical expedient under IFRS 15, paragraph B16, namely, to recognise revenue in
an amount it has the right to withheld in accordance with the Tariff. Under IAS 18, the Bank used to
recognise revenue by applying the accrual principle and thus, it recognised revenue in the same way.
Issuance of guarantees and letters of credit — revenue is recognized over time because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits. The transfer of the benefits to the customer Is
consistent over time and thus, the Bank uses a straight-line method for measuring the progress of the
contract, which in turn results in a straight-line amortisation of the fees over the contracted period. The
fees for these services are fixed, calculated depending on the amount of the guarantee or the letter of
credit. Under |AS 18, The Bank used to recognize revenue from the fixed fee over the term of the contract
on a straight-line basis, which in substance is identical with the accounting policy under IFRS 15.

Deposit maintenance - revenue is recognised at a polnt in time because the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits. The fees for these services are based on the Bank's Tariff and
represent a fixed monthly amount corresponding to the customers' benefit transferred. Considering the
above circumstances, the Bank applies the practical expedient under IFRS 15, paragraph B16, namely, to
recognise revenue in an amount it has the right to withheld in accordance with the Tariff. Under IAS 18,
the Bank used to recognise revenue by applying the accrual principle and thus, it recognised revenue in
the same way.

Brokerage operations for which the Bank receives agent’s commissions - revenue is recognised at a point
in time upon the provision of the brokeragé service as the Bank operates as a broker. Considering the
above circumstances, the Bank recognizes revenue that is equal to the amount of the commission fee for
the performance of the brokerage service. The commission fee s the net amount to be withheld by the
Bank after paying the portion due to the third party to which / whom the Bank has mediated to perform
the services of that third party.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

3.5 Income and expenses {continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued}

Servicing of debenture Issues fees are fees for the Bank to perform the function of a trustee bank on a bond issue
cf a public interest entity. The fee is charged and paid periodically, in accordance with a contract.

Income from funds trusted in custody consists of fees for managing funds provided by the Ministry of Finance In
relation to a loan from Kreditanstalt filr Wiederaufbau extended to the Minlstry of Finance. These fees are
recognized when due under a contract.

The Bank - except for certain operations provided to its employees — earns no income from retail banking
services: the amount of deposits accepted as at 31 December 2019 is BGN 5,033 thousand and the number of
accounts opened Is 298. The Bank has not analysed in detail the potential effect of such services on revenue due
toits limited exposure to retail customers and the absence of branch network.

interest income and interest expenses

Interest Income and interest expenses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on an accrual
basis for all interest-bearing instruments using the effective yield method based on the actual price of acquisition
or the applicable floating interest rate. Interest income and interest expenses include the amortisation of any
discount or premium, or any other differences between the original carrylng amount of an interest-bearing
instrument and its amount at maturity calculated on an effectlve interest rate basis.

Interest income includes interest Income on debt securities measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income and through profits and losses, Interest on deposits with other banks, interest on loans and advances to
customers, and fees and commisslons on loans and advances to customers, which are an integral part of the
effective yield of the financial instrument.

Interest expense Is recognised on an accrual basis and comprises the interest accrued on deposlts of customers
and banks, as well as on loans received and other borrowings, fees and commissions on loans received, which
form an integral part of the effective interest expense.

For exposures classifled In Stages 1 and 2, the Bank recognizes interest income and other effective interest rate
forming income accrued on their gross carrying amount for expected credit losses. For exposures classified in
Stage 3, the Bank recognizes interest income and other effective interest rate forming Income accrued on their
amortlsed cost.

The Bank also holds investments and assets in countries with negative interest rate levels. The Bank discloses the
interest pald on such assets as interest expense with additional disclosure in Note 6.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

3.5 Income and expenses {continued)

Fees and commissions

Fee and commission income is recognized on a one-off or periodical basis over the life of the exposure, while
ensuring comparability with the costs of providing the service, as well as consuming the benefits of the services
provided by the customer.

Fee and commission expenses are recognised when the service, to which they relate, is provided or when the
result thereof has been achieved.

Foreign currency transactions

In preparing the financial statements, transactions In currencies other than the Bank’s functional currency
{foreign currencles) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
reporting date, monetary assets and llabilitles that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Forelgn currency transactions are translated into BGN at the exchange rate of BNB prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Recelvables and liabllitles denominated in foreign currency are revalued on a daily basis. At the end
of the year, they are translated in BGN at the closing exchange rates of BNB, which for the main currencies as of
the date of the separate financial statements are the followlng:

Foreign currency 1 December 2019 31 December 2018
UsD 174099 1.70815
EUR 1.95583 1.95583

Since 1999 the Bulgarian Lev (BGN) has been fixed to the Euro {EUR), the official currency of the European Union,
at ratio of BGN 1.95583/ EUR 1.0

Net gains or losses on changes in exchange rates, which have incurred from revaluation of receivables, liabilities,
as well as from foreign currency transactions, are presented on the separate statement of comprehensive income
in the period In which they have occurred.
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4.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank is exposed to a variety of risks that, if occur, could result in formation
of losses and deterioration of the Bank’s financlal stability. These risks are identified, measured and monitored
through various control mechanisms in order to be managed and to prevent undue risk concentration. The
process of risk management is essential for the Bank’s profitability and existence.

The risk management within Bulgarian Development Bank AD Is a complex of methods and procedures used by
the Bank for identifying, measuring and monitoring its risk exposures. The Bank manages the following maln
categories of risk:

»  Credit risk;

¢ Liquidity risk;

s "Market risk;

s  Operational risk.

When managing the risks, Bulgarian Development Bank AD applies policies and procedures relevant to the nature
and complexity of its activity, which are based on best practices in banking Industry.

4.1. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of potential losses due to a failure of the Group’s customers to discharge their contractual
obligatlons in connectlon with receivables and financial instruments held by the Bank, Incl. country {sovereign)
risk, contractor’s risk and settlement risk, and credit risk of concentration.

Credit risk Is the main risk for the Bank and therefore, its management is fundamental for its activity. Credit risk
management Is performed In accordance with the law for BDB AD and the effective laws and regulations of the
Republic of Bulgaria regulating credit activity, as well as the international regulations and best banking practices,
and the requirements of IFRS.

In assessing and managing credit risks {Including the counterparty risk) of its exposures, the Bank applles internal
rating generation models. These internal rating models depend on the specifics of the object being rated. The
so-developed rating models for credit risk assessment of corporate clients of the Bank are based on an analysis
of historical data and the counterparty’s and lts relating parties’ current financial position; their history and
behaviour in servicing their liabilities to other contractors; future cash flow analyses; sources of servicing the
existing and any potential future liabilities to the Bank, and other parameters specific to a particular transaction.
Credit portfolio quality monitoring, control and assessment units are established and function within BDB. Credit
portfolio current monitoring, reporting and management procedures and mechanisms are Implemented, which
require periodical, and if necessary, extraordinary, reports on the financial and credit status of each borrower
and other liable persons. There is an ,Early Warning Procedure for Credit Exposures”, which includes an early
warning system of signals and actions.

tn managing its credit risk, the Bank applies an intra-bank system of limits that is subject to periodic review and
updating.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

4.1. Credit risk (continued)

There is a specialized unit functioning within the Bank, which is in charge of the risk assessment both at the
customer level and at the exposure level, where the solvency level is assessed and monitored throughout the
entlre loan term - from application to full repayment. The credit risk is partially reduced also by applying the
secured credit line technique through accepting different types of collateral, where at any point in time the
valuation of collateral shall not be older than 12 months.

The Bank forms impairment on exposures depending on the borrower's and / or group of related clients’ risk
profile based on conducted individual impairment tests.

The exposures in the Bank’s corporate credit portfolio are classified mainly in three categories depending on the
existence of indications of impairment — changes in the objective indicators on the basis of which the initial
measurement and subsequent monitoring of exposure / customer are carried out, which would result in changes
in cash flows from financial assets, including default in payment due by the borrower: Stage 1: ,5tandard” {with
assigned internal credit ratings from 1 to 6, incl.; Stage 2 “Watch” or “Forborne” {with assigned internal credit
ratings of 7) and Stage 3 ,,Problematic/Non-preforming” {with assigned internal credit ratings of 8, 8 or 10).

In the case of customers, for which there are currently no indications of increased risk, the Bank pericdically (at
least once a year) reviews the financial and legal status, including the collateral accepted, In order to establish
the need for a change in the percentage of impairment for loss risk and / or change in the assessment of the
degree of credit risk. Clients with a higher credit risk are subject to a review in every 6 months and those classified
as ,problematic/non-preforming®, in every three months. In follow-up of the recommendations of the Basel
Committee and their transposition into regulations within the European Union and in particular, Regulation
575/2013/EC and Directive 2013/36/EC, the commercial banks are required to implement in their internal
regulations an in-house rating system that allows them to achieve comparahility with the borrowers’ official
crediting rating assigned by recognized external credit rating institutions, which adopts the scale, used
worldwide, of ten credit rating categories, including two categories for non-performing loans. The Bank has
developed a detalled internal normative base, comprising Policy and rules for determining the Impairment due
to uncollectability of risk exposures, Methodology for credit risk analysis and assessment of Bulgarian
Development Bank AD, and Credit activity manual of BDB, ensuring full compliance of the policy and procedures
for determining internal credit ratings with the above EU regulations. The amount of the impairment is caiculated
as the difference between the current amount of the amortised cost of the customer’s exposure to the Bank and
its recoverable amount.

The Bank accrues impairment on a portfolio basis for its receivables on Energy Efficiency of Multi-Family
Residential Buildings National Programme (EEMFRBNP).

Aiming at minimizing and reducing the credit risk, the Bank accepts collateral in accordance with its in-house
rules. It is a common practice of the Bank to require collateral from the borrowers that is equal to at least 100
per cent of the agreed loan amount, and valuations from accredited independent valuers are required.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1. Credit risk {continued)

Based on a Guarantee [etter from year 2003 and the subsequent annexes signed with the European Investment
Fund (EIF), the Bank participates in the EU SME Guarantee Facility under conditlons determined by the long-term
EU Program on SMEs. EIF is committed to provide a direct guarantee covering 50 per cent of the remaining loss
on the principal and interest of each loan, included in the sub-portfolio of the Bank, formed on the basis of the
conditions of the agreement, but not exceeding EUR 2,520 thousand {(BGN 4,929 thousand). The Bank has applied
reduced requirements in accepting collaterals for the EIF-guaranteed portfolio of loans. As of 31 December 2019,
the total exposure on EIF-guaranteed loans amounted to BGN 735 thousand {31 December 2018: BGN 5,286
thousand). This amount Includes the utilised but not yet repaid portion of the loans, as well as the Bank’s
commitments on unutiiised loans. The payment engagement of EIF to date amounts to BGN 3,563 thousand {31
December 2018: BGN 3,563 thousand), whereas the losses covered by EIF amount to BGN 364 thousand {31
December 2018: BGN 2,617 thousand).

Fund (EIF) under the COSME programme for small and medium-sized enterprises. The COSME programme is
implemented with the support of EFSI {the European Fund for Strategic Investment), known as the “Juncker
Plan”. BDB Is able to cover up to 60 per cent of the risk on loans extended to SMEs by commercial banks it will
partner with. Half of this risk will be counter-guaranteed by €IF and the total amount of the counter-guarantee
is EUR 10 million. By using the resource guaranteed by the COSME programme, the banks-partners to BDB will
be able to extend investment loans and loans for working capital, bank guarantees and revolving loans. The
maximum amount of loans extended is EUR 150,000. The term of repayment vary from 1 to 10 years.

As at 31 December 2019, there was no commitment on the counter-guarantee agreement.

Off-balance sheet commitments, primarlly the unutilised portion of authorized loan facilities, letters of guarantee
and letters of credit, which represent an Irrevocable commitment of the Bank to make payment if a client is not
able to fulfil its obligations to third parties represent another source of credit risk for the Bank and bear the same
credit risk as the balance sheet loan exposures.

The Bank forms varlous sub-portfolios based on the type of contractors and credit risk carriers, as follows:

Direct lending —portfolic of credit commitments with debtors-legal entlties, other than bank financial
institutions, and loans to indlviduals (loans to Bank’s employees), as well as subjects from the public
sector;

- Indirect lending or ,on-lending” — portfolio of loans to financial (banking and non-banking) institutions,
the purpose of which is to provide financing/to facilitate the access to financing for micro, small and
medium-sized enterprises in the Republic of Bulgaria;

- Financing by the Energy Efficlency of Multi-Family Resldentlal Buildings National Programme
{EEMFRBNP) in compliance with CMD 18 of the CM;

- Assignments of recelvables from Road Infrastructure Agency of construction companies, implementing
infrastructure projects assigned by Road Infrastructure Agency
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

4.1. Cradit risk (continued)

Beyond the credit portfolio, the Bank’s actlvity Is exposed to credit risk also with respect to exposures related to

other activitles of the Bank:

- portfolio of financial instruments, other than loans, formed in connection with the Bank's free cash
management, which comprises mainly government securlties Issued by the Republic of Bulgaria and other
EU countries, classified as , Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income “;

- to banks in connection with money market transactions, placed term deposits and available balances in

Nostro accounts;

- exposure to receivables relating to the State budget.

The Bank'applles a system of limits relating to credit risk and concentration risk with respect tc the different sub-
portfolios, and currently monitors the credit risk of concentration of financial assets on the basis of industry
criteria, and also by individual counterparty and insurance companies ensuring coverage. Regarding the Bank’s
direct lending activities, the allocation by ecenomic sectors is monitored, as also that to clients and groups of
related parties, by observing internal limitations {limits) for concentration of the corporate credit porifolio by

ecenomic sectors.

Maximum exposure to credit risk

Exposure to credit risk attributable to financial assets recognised In the separate statement of financial position

is as follows:
2019 2018

Financlal asset maximum net maximum net
Receivables from banks 341,522 335,248 430,660 429,548
Loans and advances to customers 1,808,945 1,652,900 1,197,889 1,039,080
Receivables from the State budget 167,258 166,821 472,803 471,999
Financial assets at falr value through other comprehensive 542,119 542,119 594,249 594,249
income
Financial assets at amortized cost 2,011 1,950 - -
Other financlal assets 166 166 12 12

2,862,021 2,703,204 2,695,613 2,534,888

Cash in current accounts and balances with the Central Bank expose the Bank to a minimum credit risk and are

not included in the above table.

Recelvables from the State Budget comprise loans on the Energy Efficiency of Multi-Family Residential Buildings
National Programme (EEMFRBNP) amounting to BGN 144,703 thousand (2018: BGN 471,999 thousand) and
cession receivables from Road Infrastructure Agency at the amount of BGN 22,118 thousand (2018: BGN 0).
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41



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

4.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1. Credit risk {continued)

The exposure to credit risk arising out of off-balance sheet commitments Is as follows:

2019 2018
maximum net maximum net
Bank guarantees and letters of credit 159,065 140,094 56,073 37,536
Unutilised amount of authorized loans 321,120 321,120 348,377 348,377
Participation In the SIA Investment program 1,168 1,168 1,410 1,410
481,353 462,382 405,860 387,323
Maxlmum exposure to credlt risk 3,343,374 3,165,586 3,101,473 2,922,211

In assessing the net exposure, highly liquid collateral (government securities and cash), as also the net present
value of liquid collateral - real estate, have been taken into account.

Credit risk - concentration

The financial assets of the Bank {cash In current accounts and balances with the Central Bank, financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income, loans and advances to customers, receivables from the State
budget and other financial assets), classified by industry sectors (at gross amount before impairment), are
presented in the table on the next page:
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1. Credit risk {continued)

Credit risk - concentration {(continued)

2019 % 2018 %

Sectors
Goverhment 749,341 24.07% 1,090,620 36.44%
Financlal services 704,968 22.65% 850,817 28.42%
Industry, total 484,472 15.56% 480,750 16.06%
Industry — manufacture of tobacco products 148684 4.78% 149,129 4.98%
Industry — energy generation and distribution 85,777  2.76% 119,752  4.00%
Industry — manufacture of plant and equipment 81,286  2.61% 67,611  2.26%
Industry — manufacture of foodstuffs 46,853 1.51% 51,392 1.72%
Industry — other industries 121,872 3.92% 92,866  3.10%
Trade 322,741 10.37% 32,165 1.07%
Tourist services 266,326  8.56% 108,148  3.61%
Transport 232,580 7.47% 130,765 4.37%
Construction 168,460 5.41% 162,402 5.43%
Real estate transactions 56,339 1.81% 49,552 1.66%
Agriculture 49,225 1.58% 29,159 0.97%
Collection and disposal of garbage - 0.00% 4,190 0.14%
Other industries 78,188  2.50% 54,667 1.83%

3,112,540 100.00% 2,993,235 100.00%

The largest credit exposure of the Bank to a group of related parties /other than bank institutions/ amounts to
BGN 152,450 thousand {including statement of financlal position debt of BGN 116,497 thousand and amount for
utilization of BGN 35,953 thousand) at amortized cost (2018: BGN 150,129 thousand), which represents 23.40
per cent of Bank’s equity/eligible capital ratio according to Regulation 575/2013/EU {2018: 23.22 per cent). The
concentration of client’s portfolio (other than bank institutions) is presented in the followIng table:
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1. Credit risk {continued)

Credit risk - concentration {continued)

2019
Net exposure®
% of
Equity/E
'BGN'000,

f ) liglhle

copital
The biggest total exposure to a customer group 147,715  20.09%
Total amount of the ten biggest exposures 1,106,985 150.57%
Total amount of the twenty biggest exposures 1,489,848 202.65%

Net exposure*

{BGN’000)

149,182

706,117
1,003,205

% of
Equity/El
fgible
capital

23,07%

109.19%
155.13%

There is no exposure to a customer or a group of related customers as at 31 December 2019, exceeding 25 per

cent of Bank’s capital base.

*Net exposure — the amount of the exposure net of provisions and highly liquid collateral.

The structure of the financial assets of the Bank by risk classification groups is as follows {at gross amount prior

to impairment):

As of 31 December 2019

Cash in hand and balances in current account

with the Central Bank
Receivables from banks
Receivables from the State budget

Loans for commerclal property and
construction

Trade loans

Consumer loans

Residentlal mortgage loans to individuals
Loans to other financlal Institutions
Securlties at amortized cost

Other loans and receivables

Financlal assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Other financlal assets

Total financlal assets

Standard Watch Non-performing Total
{Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
250,619 250,619
341,522 - - 341,522
167,258 - - 167,258
570,586 118,202 74,711 763,499
521,157 79,411 115,509 716,477
856 20 15 891
1174 - - 1,174
81,961 - 22,330 104,291
2,011 - - 2,011
123,192 66,274 33,147 222,613
542,119 - - 542,118
166 - - 166
2,602,621 263,907 246,112 3,112,640

This document Is a translation of the original Bulgaran text, in case of divergsnce the Bulgarian text shall prevail.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4,1. Credit risk (continued)

As of 31 December 2018 Standard Watch Non-performing Total
({Stage 1) {Stage 2) (Stage 3)

Cash In hand and balances in current account

with the Central Bank 297,622 - - 297,622
Receivables from banks 430,660 - - 430,660
Receivables from the State budget 472,803 - - 472,803
Loans for commercial property and

construction 247,402 77,079 70,011 354,494
Trade loans 220,607 104,773 116,642 442,022
Agricultural loans - - 2,040 2,040
Consumer loans 778 19 797
Resldentlal mortgage loans to Individuals 1,436 - - 1,436
Loans to other financlal Institutlons 69,281 . 44,661 113,942
Other loans and receivables 119,792 90,901 32,467 243,160
Financial assets at falr value through other

comprehensive Income 594,249 - - 584,249
Other financlal assets 12 . 12
Total financial assets 2,454,642 272,753 265,840 2,993,235

The table below presents the types of collaterals, received by the Bank in relation to loans granted, at fair value
determined by accredlted Independent valuers and confirmed by a Bank’s employee holding the necessary
licence:

2019 2018
Type of collateral Falr value %  Fairvalue %
Mortgages 728,736 61.04 514,012 52.19
Mortgages on ships 142,083 11.90 148,321  15.00
Pledge of plant, machinery, equipment, and Inventories 266,320 22.31 273,290 28.05
Securities quoted on a stock market 20,536 1.72 20,536 2.08
Credit risk Insurance 15,614 131 18,482 1.87
Bank guarantees 4,892 0.41 3,863 0.39
Restricted deposits 15,719 132 4,164 0.42
Total collateral 1,193,900 100 982,668 100
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1. Credit risk (continued)

Credit exposures could have more than one collateral, i.e. it could be included in more than one position. The
amount of the collateral could exceed 100 per cent, as more than one collateral could be provided to secure one
loan.

At the request of the contractors, the Bank is able to re-negotiate the initial terms and conditions on the contract.
Usually, these are the terms of loan utilization, loan amount, interest rates and/or repayment schedules from
the point of view of the amount of a particular repayment instalment. Most of all, these are cases of changes in
the initial parameters, purpose and scope, and respectively, the time schedule of projects. Upon renegotiation,
the changes In preliminary terms and conditions are analysed in order to establish whether these changes
represent a concession {discount) in favour of the debtor and the exposure should be accepted as restructured
and therefore, to be reclassified to Stage 2 or Stage 3 pursuant to the Policy and Rules for Calculation of Expected
Credit Losses and Exposures Impairment of BDB, as follows:

JArticle 11.  Indicators of impairment:

{1) Significant increase in credit risk, which results in recognition of a lifetime expected credit loss for the
instrument (i.e. transition from a 12-month expected credit loss} and respectively, classification in Stage 2 {Watch)}
would be a consequence of the following circumstances:

1. significant changes in internal credit risk indicators as a result of a change in credit risk relative to the beginning
of the life of the asset;

2. other changes in interest rates or the conditions of an existing financial instrument that would be materially
different if the instrument was newly granted or issued at the date of the financial statements (for example, more
stringent terms and conditions, increased collateral or warranty requirements} due to changes in the credit risk
of the financial instrument compared to that of its initial recognition;

3. significant changes in the external market indicators of credit risk for a particular financial instrument or similar
financial instruments with the same life expectancy. Changes in credit risk margins include, but are not limited to:

a) credit spread;
b) the credit defauit swap price for the borrower;

¢) duration of the period or the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset is lower than its amortized cost;
and

d) changes in the price of borrower’s debt and equity instruments;
€) any other market information about the borrower.
4. actual or expected significant change in the financial instrument’s external credit rating (or of the debtor);

5. actual or expected downgrade of the borrower’s external credit rating or a downgrade in the scoring rating
used to measure credit risk;
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4.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1, Credit risk (continued)

6. existing or expected adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions, for which it is expected to
result in a significant change in the borrower's ability to perform its obligations.

7. actual or expected significant change in the borrower's operating results, such as actual or expected decreasing
revenue or margins, increase in operating risks, working capital shortage, osset quality deteriorotion, increased
leverage, low liquidity, management probiems or changes within the scope of business or organisational structure
that results in a significant change in the borrower's abllity to perform its obligations on the debt;

8. significant increases in credit risk for other financial instruments of the same borrower;

S. actual or expected significant adverse change in the borrower's regulatory, economic or technological
environment, which has resulted in o significant change in the borrower’s ability to perform its obligations;

10. significant changes in the value of the debt collateral or in the quality of guarantees and additional credit
protection provided by a third party that are expected to reduce the economic incentive of the borrower to make
scheduled contractual payments or to otherwise impact on the probabifity of default on the loan;

11. significant change in the quality of a guarantee provided by a shareholder {or by the owner of an entity) if the
shareholder (owners) have an incentive ond financial opportunity to prevent default through an increase in capital
and / or cash;

12. significant changes, such as a reduction in financial support from o parent company or other subsidiary, or
actual or expected slgnificant change in the quality of credit protection that is expected to reduce the economic
incentive for the borrower to make controctual payments.

13. expected changes in the loan documentation, including an expected breach of the contract, which may lead
to the debtor being released from the obligation to comply with contractual commitments or amendments to the
contract, interest rates, interest rate increases, requirements for additional collateral or guarantees, or other
changes in the contractual framework of the instrument;

14, significant changes in the expected results and behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
creditworthiness of the borrowers within the group;

15. specific changes in the Bank's approach for managing the loan in relation to the financial instrument; for
example on the basis of newly emerging indicators of a change in financial instrument’s credit risk, it is expected
that the Bank's credit risk management practice will become more active or focused on instrument management,
including more prudent or stringent monitoring, or active intervention in the relationships with the borrower;

16. information on arrears, including cases of amounts past due by more than 30 days (if there is evidence that a
significant number of defaulting debtors for more than 30 days have not reached the stage of significant
deterioration, this threshold may be increased; however, extensive supporting data will be required in accordance
with the provision of paragraph B5.5.19 of IFRS 9);

17. initiation of court proceedings, claiming of bank guarantees or other circumstances that are expected to result
in significant costs for the borrower;
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

4.1. Credit risk {continued)

18. considerable delay in the provision by the borrower of financial and other necessary information;

19, significant obligations of the borrower towards third parties, incl. off balance sheet, which would result in
difficulties or inability to properly service the Bank’s credit exposure.

(2) Events reloted to a classification where a financial instrument is classified in Stage 3, i.e. it is considered to be
an asset with deteriorated credit quality and which, in most cases, correspond to the definition of default on the
instrument, include:

1. significant financial difficuities of the debtor;
2. past due or unpaid liabilities to the Bank for more than 90 days;

3. provision of a concession to the debtor in view of its financial difficulties, which would otherwise not have been
provided by the Bank;

a) if, as a result of the re-negotiation and provision of a concession to the debtor resulting in changes of cash
flows the asset is derecognised and a new one is created (initially recognised), the Bank estimates only the 12-
month expected loss. Further analysis of the expected credit loss is carried out if an increased credit risk exists.

b) if, a resuit of the re-negotiation and provision of a concession to the debtor resulting in changes of cash flows
the asset is derecognised and a new one is created (initially recognised), but as a consequence the latter is
reported as an impaired asset ocquired / occurred, the Bank recognises the cumulative changes In the expected
credit losses over its entire life.

¢) if, a result of the ré-negotiatlon and provision of a concession to the debtor, the financial asset is not
derecognised, the Bank analyses whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, comparing:

(oa} the risk of default assessed at the reporting date {based cn changed contractual terms); and
(Bb) the risk of default assessed at initial recognition {on the basis of the original unchanged contractual terms);

in order to establish whether it should recognise lifetime expected credit losses or 12-month expected credit
losses;

4. high probability of insolvency of the debtor or other financial reorganization of the debtor;
5. other evidence of deterioration in the debtor's creditworthiness.”

Regarding the loans extended under the Energy Efficiency of Multl-Family Residential Buildings National
Programme (EEMFRBNP), it should be noted that according to the programme’s parameters the amount of the
loan approved is subject to regular updating in order to ensure expenditure control. The signature of annexes to
the loan contracts, by means of which the financial parameters are updated, is a result of those controls.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

4.1. Credit risk (continued)

The Bank classifies not past due and not impaired exposures to the above classes depending on thelr internal credit
rating, as follows:

high class — credit rating from 1 to 3 — Stage 1

standard class — credit rating from 4 to 5 — 5tage 1

e |ow class— credit rating from 6 to 7 — Stage 1 (rating 6) or Stage 2 {rating 7}
o non-performing — Stage 3 (rating 8, ¢ and 10)

The Bank assesses the credit quality of provided contingent commitments by applying a methodology, which
estimates whether events indicating with a high probability that outflow of Bank’s resources might take place have
occurred. These costs (losses) are determined on the basis of the Policy and Methodology for assessment of expected
credit losses, and a Calculation Procedure of BDB based on a Conversion Factor (CCF) that is applied in the case of
off-balance sheet exposures that are llkely to tum into balance sheet exposures (payments on guarantees, utilisation
of part of the allowed amount of the loan, etc.). At the date of the financial statements, the Bank identified
commitments amounting to BGN 159,065 thousand (2018: BGN 56,073 thousand), which were provided by BGN
2,822thousand (2018: BGN 2,998 thousand) (Note 32).

Watch loans and receivables (Stage 2), presented at amortised cost, are as follows:

2019 2018
Loans for commerclal property and construction 118,202 77,079
Trade loans 79,411 104,773
Loans to banks 177 1,467
Consumer loans 20
Other loans and recelvables 66,274 90,501
264,084 274,220

When the Inltlal terms of the agreement have been modified by the Bank by granting a concession [discounts) to a
debtor experiencing difficulties in performing its financlal obligations a loan is classified as “restructured” (Stage 2 or
3 pursuant to the Policy and Rules for Calculation of Expected Credit Losses and Exposures’ Impairment of BDB).

This document is a translation of the original Bulgarian text, in case of divergence the Bulgarlan text shall prevalt. 51
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1. Creditrisk {continued)

The restructured loans and recelvables, presented at amortised cost, are as follows:

2019 2018

Loans for commerclal property and construction 45,919 47,387
incl. Standard {Stage 1) 708 986
Waotch (Stage 2) 4,437 9,412
Non-performing (Stage 3) 40,774 37,009
Other loans and recelvables 36,361 67,315
incl. Standard (Stage 1) - .
Watch (Stage 2) 21,946 52,971
Non-performing (Stage 3} 14,415 14,344
82,280 114,702

Expected credit losses (ECL) measurement
For instruments measured at amortised cost, ECLs reduce the carrying amount in the statement of flnancial position.

For debt instruments measured at falr value through other comprehensive income, ECLs are part of the negative
change In the fair value due to an increased credit risk. They continue to be presented at the falr value In the
statement of flnancial position, and the accumulated adjustment for losses is recognized In the statement of
comprehensive Income. Upon subsequent derecognition of the instrument, the accumulated adjustment is
recognized in the profit or loss for the period.

Probability of default (PD)

PD Is the probability of a counterparty not complying with contract clauses related to debt repayment. For each
individual exposure or a portfolio of collectively assessed exposures, the Bank maintains historical information on
the migration of exposures between different stages.

The value of 12M PD is determined on the basis of observed deterioration rates and s calculated as a moving average
over a period of at least 2 years. For exposures that are individually measured, the value of the 12m PD is determined
depending on the assigned credit rating according to an Internal model. Data on the changes in the borrowers’ rating
over 2 one-year horizon is aggregated into transaction matrices, and a 12-m PD is calculated for each rating scale
depending on the number of default cases found. The Bank adjusts the values of 12m PD to reflect the current or
expected economic conditions that may differ from those during the historical periods analysed.

Exposure at default (EAD)

EAD Is potential exposure at the time of default. The level of exposure at default is determined Individually for each
loan depending the type of loan, taking into account both the amount of utilized amounts and the agreed undrawn
amounts according to the expectation of future drawdowns.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1, Credit risk (continued)

Expected credit losses (ECL) measurement {continued)
Loss Given Default (LGD)

LGD Is the ratio of the exposure loss due to default to the amount of exposure at default. The Bank calculates the
potential loss that would have arisen if an exposure goes into default and the only source for collecting the receivable
is the realization of the collateral. The loss is measured as a percentage of Exposure at Default (EAD).

The Bank has determined relative thresholds that are used also for the exposures for which the absolute thresholds
are appiled and for those, for which no such thresholds have been determined. They are based on matrixes covering
the overall credit cycle (through-the-cycle, TTC )} and the change in the probabllity of default on the respective
exposures from the external aggregated data of Moody's (the Bank has developed prelimlnary a methodology for
equalizing the internal credit ratings to those assigned by the rating agency).

Main groups of assets subject to impairment

The following tables present the movements in the main groups of assets subject to impairment between the
different stages for the period 01 January — 31 December 2018 and 01 January — 31 December 2015:

Assets measured at amortised cost

{except for Government and Recelvables from Banks) Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balance as of 01.01.201B 462,814 128,350 263,689 854,853
Transfers:
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (35,079) 35,079 . -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (1,670) - 1,670 .
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (8,037} 8,037 -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 1,233 {1,233) . -
Newly occurred and newly acquired exposures 103,573 31,021 14,631 149,225
Paid or transferred (113,927} (21,355) {103,711) (238,993}
Increased 241,087 108,931 82,786 432,804
Balance as of 31.12.2018 658,031 272,756 267,102 1,157,889
Transfers:
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (3,627) 3,627 - -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (2,675) - 2,675 -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - - -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 . - - -
Newly occurred and newly acquired exposures 642,797 63,071 11,944 717,812
Pald or transferred {106,500) (77,385) (42,700) {226,585)
Increased 112,911 1,838 7,091 121,840
Balance as of 31.12.2019 1,300,937 263,907 246,112 1,810,956
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1. Credit risk (continued)

Expected credit losses (ECL) measurement (cohtlnued)
Main groups of assets subject to impairment (continued)

All assets measured at amortised cost — non-financial entities, including with state participation, individuals and non-
banking financial institutions are included in the above table.

Assets measured at amortised cost - Government Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balance as of 01.01.2018 737,516 - - 737,516
Newly occurred and newly acquired exposures 8,179 - - 8,179
Pald or transferred (549,510) - - (549,510}
Increased 276,618 - - 276,618
Balance as of 31.12.2018 472,803 - - 472,803
Newly occurred and newly acqulred exposures 8,619 - - 8,619
Pald or transferred (417,350 - - {417,350}
Increased 103,186 - - 103,186
Balanca as of 21.12.2019 167,258 - . 167,258

The Bank presents under the heading Government assets measured at amortised cost relating mainly to the Energy
Efficiency of Multi-Family Residential Bulldings National Programme (EEMFRBNP} and the cessions acquired from
Road Infrastructure Agency.

Assets measured at amortised cost - Banks and financial

Institutions Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balance as of 01.01.2018 198,379 - - 198,379
Newly occurred and newly acquired exposures 343,245 - - 343,245
Paid or transferred {113,513} - - {113,513)
Increased 2,549 - - 2,549
Balance as of 31.12.2018 430,660 - - 430,660
Newly occurred and newly acquired exposures 222,891 - - 222,891
Patd or transferred (337,223) - - (337,223)
increased 25,193 s - 25,193
Balance as of 31,12.2019 341,522 - - 341,522
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

4.1, Credit risk (continued)

Expected credit losses (ECL) measurement {continued)
Main groups of assets subject to impairment (continued)

Loans to banks and financial institutions Include both transactions on an interbank market and deposits of different
maturity.

Assats measured at falr value through other

comprehenslve Income Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage3 Total
Balance as of 01.01.2018 228,511 - - 228,511
Newly occurred and newly acquired exposures 315,141 - . 315,141
Paid or transferred (80,015) - - (80,015}
increased 127,329 - - 127,329
Balance as of 31.12.2018 590,966 - - 590,966
Newly occurred and newly acquired exposures 133,159 - - 133,159
Pald or transferred (194,041) - - {194,041)
Increased 8,457 - - 8,457
Balance as of 31.12.2019 538,541 - - 538,541

Portfoilo of securitles consists mainly of bonds of the Republic of Bulgaria, other European sovereign issuers and
bands of large corporate clients.

Movement in the impairment of main groups of ossets subject to impairment in 2018 and 2019

The amount of the expected credit loss is a function of the probability of default of the instrument, the realized loss
and the amount of balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposure. The probability of default (FD) and the realized
loss given default (LGD) are the parameters employed in determining the provisioning rate and those parameters are
determined on the basis of an individual review of the early warning signs that are homogeneous in terms of their
credit characteristics and their relation to international and domestic macroeconomic variables that could affect
them.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1. Credit risk {continued)
Expected credit losses (ECL} measurement (continued)

Movement in the Impairment of main groups of assets subject to impairment in 2018 and 2019 (continued)

Movement in impairmént in 2018 and 2019:

Assets measured at amortised cost (except for

Government) Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balance of impairment as of 01.01.2018 4,211 902 155,109 160,222
Transfers:
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 (915) 915 . -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (406} - 406 .
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - (2,048) 2,048 -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 2 (2) - -
New exposures 2,519 135 . 2,704
Paid or transferred (4,211) (902) (60,340} {65,453)
Increase in impairment on exlsting exposures 3,610 3,106 54,620 61,335
Balance of impairment as of 31.12,2018 4,810 2,156 151,843 158,809
Transfers:
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 2 {(44) 44 B -
Transfer from Stage 1 to Stage 3 (1,218) - 1,218 -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 3 - - . -
Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1 - - -
New exposures 23,705 2,170 9,991 35,866
Paid or transferred (833) 91 (59,458) {60,199)
Increase in impairment on existing exposures 550 297 20,782 21,629
Balance of Impairment as of 31.12.2019 26,970 4,758 124,376 156,105
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.1, Credit risk {continued)
Expected credit losses (ECL) measurement (continued)

Movement in the impairment of main groups of assets subject to impairment in 2018 and 2019 (continued)

Assets measured at amortised cost - Government Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Balance of impalrment as of 01.01.2018 1,432 - - 1,432
Net movement in Impairment on Energy Efficiency of

Multi-Family Residential Buildings National Programme (824) - - (824)
{EEMFRBNP)

Repayment of cessions Military Medical Academy (MMA) 196 - - 196
Salance of Impalrment as of 31.12.2018 804 . - 804

Net movement in Impairment on Energy Efflciency of

Multl-Family Residential Bulldings Natlonal Programme {557) - - (557)
(EEMFRBNP)

Cessions Road Infrastructure Agency 150 150
Balanca of impalrment as of 31.12.2019 436 - - 436
Assets measured at amortised cost - Banks and financlal Stagel Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
institutions

Balance of impairment as of 01.01.2018 3,594 - - 3,594
Paid or transferred {2,482) - . (2,482)
Balance of impalrment as of 31.12.2018 1,112 - . 1,112
Increased 1,163 - 1,163
Balance of impairment as of 31.12.2019 2,275 - - 2,275
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

4.

4.1

Credit risk (continued)

Expected credlt losses {ECL) measurement {continued)

Movement in the impairment of main groups of assets subject to impairment in 2018 and 2019 {continued)

Assets measured at fair value through other

comprehensive Income

Balance of impairment as of 01.01.2018

New exposures
Paid or transferred
Other movements

Balance of impairment as of 31.12.2018

New exposures
Paild or transferred
Other movements

Balance of Impairment as of 31.12.2019

Amount of the collateral as of 31.12.2019

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
459 - . 459
7,249 - - 7,249
{4,926} - . {4,926)
(622} - (622)
2,160 - - 2,160
185 - - 195
{863) - - (863)

8 - - 8
1,500 - 1,500

The amount of the collateral on secured assets is presented in the following table:

Type of collateral
Mortgages

Pledge of plant, equipment and inventorles

Restricted deposits
Mortgage on a ship
insurances

Quoted securities
Bank guarantees

Total

Carrying amount of the lcan,

Arnount of the collateral,

BGN'000 BGN'0CO
786,752 728,736
555,560 266,320
495,290 15,719

87,583 142,083
36,253 15,614
14,454 20,536
9,814 4,892
1,985,706 1,193,900
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED}

4.1. Credit risk (continued)
Expected credit losses [ECL) measurement (continued)

Amount of the collateral os.0f 31.12.2018

The amcunt of the collateral on secured assets is presented in the following table:

Carrying amount of the loan, Amount of the collateral,
Type of collateral BGN'000 BGN'000
Mortgages 569,590 516,035
Pledge of plant, equipment and Inventorles 375,483 277,314
Restricted deposits 200,600 4,164
Mortgage on a ship 58,102 148,321
insurances 27,343 18,482
Bank guarantees 22,631 3,863
Securities 14,718 20,536
Total 1,268,467 988,715

Country (soverelgn) risk

The Bank has formed a portfolio of securities classified as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, comprising only government securities issued by the Republic of Bulgaria. The Bank’s exposure to sovereign
is BGN 509,393 thousand as of 31 December 2019 and BGN 540,158 thousand as of 31 December 2018.

Standard & Poor's credit rating for Republic of Bulgaria stands at BBB- with stable outlook {1 December 2017). Fitch's
credit rating for Republic of Bulgaria is BEB with stable outlook {23 March2019). Moody's credit rating for Republic
of Bulgaria was last set at Baa2 with stable outlook (26 May 2017).

According to Fitch Ratings, BBB credit rating means that insolvency expectations are low, and the capacity to service

financial liabllities is adequate, but a deterioration in economic conditlons or business environment is likely to lessen
this capacity. The definitions of Moody's and Standard&Poor’s of the rating assigned to the sovereign are similar.

4.2. Market risk

Market risk is the risk of adverse movements in interest rates, exchange rates, liquidity position, and other factors
affecting the price of securities and other financial assets. These movements affect the Bank’s profitability and
financial position,

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the probability for potential change of the net interest income or the net interest margin and the
market value of the equity due to changes in market interest rates.

The interest rate risk is considered in view of the overall activity of the Bank. Analyses of financial assets and liabilities
grouped in time intervals depending on their sensitivity to changes in the interest rates are conducted on regular
basls.
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4,  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.2. Market risk {continued)

Interest rate risk fcontinued)
The approach for measuring interest rate risk with respect to the overall activity comprises primarily:

- Analysis of the interest rate sensitivity of income — measuring the Interest rate sensitlvity of the Bank’s net
income;

- Analysis of the interest rate sensitivity of economic capital (Duratlon GAP Analysis) — measuring the interest
rate sensitivity of the Bank’'s economic value;

- Determination, application and reporting of limits for interest rate risk reflecting the volatility of the respective
interest rate curve and the Bank’s risk appetite;

- Stress tests for interest rate risk — presenting the potential movements In the annual interest Income after
applying a stress scenario involving changes in the interest rate curves by types of currencies.

Cash flow Interest rate analysis is conducted by allocating the cash flows from assets and liabilities included in the
Interest rate Imbalance analysis and forming the respective maturity gaps. In case of Bank’s statement of financial
posltlon items classified as such and measured at fair value, the fair value risk analysis is limited to piacing the relevant
Iitem with the applicable maturity structure within the interest rate imbalance analysis. The Bank maintain certain
interest-free assets and liabllitles in relation to its payment operations.

Besides the interest rate sensitivity analyses, for the interest risk management maln sources related to the change In
the net interest spread of the Bank are also identified. This helps decision making on the interest rates pclicies of the
Bank, in particular, the development of specific products and providing sources of financing having relevant
characteristics.

Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO) currently monitors the interest rate risk to which the Bank is exposed and
develops measures for its coverage and malntenance within the Bank’s permitted levels and limits.

The table on this and on the next page summarises the interest exposure and risk of the Bank. It includes information
on the Bank’s assets and liabilities at their carrying amount in accordance with interest-related clauses, set in the
contracts, their maturlty structure and sensitivity to movements in interest rates.

31 December 2019 With

Jloating ,ml':::;‘?: l': Interest free Total
interest rate

Financlal assets
Receivables from banks 21,368 305,124 12,756 339,248
Loans and advances to customers 1,597,661 55,239 = 1,652,900
Recelvables from the State budget 144,893 21,928 . 166,821
Securitles at amortlzed cost 1,950 1,950

. Financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income . 538,541 3,578 542,119
Other financial assets - - 166 166
1,763,922 922,782 16,500 2,703,204

This document Is a translation of the original Bulgarian text, in case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevall. 60



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are In thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated
4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

4.2. Market risk {continued)

31 December 2019

Finandal liabilities

Borrowings from International Institutions
Deposits from customers other than credit
Institutions

Deposits from credit institutions
Other borrowings

Total balance sheet interest exposure

Contingencies and commitments

31 December 2018

Financial assets

Recelvables from banks

Loans and advances to customers

Receivables from the State budget

Financlal assets at falr value through other
comprehenslve income

Other financial assets

Total financial assets

Financial liabllitles

Deposits from customers other than credit
institutions

Borrowings from international Institutlons
Deposits from credlt institutions

Other borrowings

Total financial liabilities

Tetal balance sheet interest exposure
Contingencles and commitments

With
floating m:m:: m'u' interest free Total
Interest rate e

1,078,917 133,020 - 1,211,937
452,052 646,780 35,217 1,134,049
7,877 - . 7,877

11,236 5,883 17,119
1,550,082 785,683 35,217 2,370,982
213,840 137,099 (18.717] 332,222
287,132 33,988 201,483 522,603

With floating With fixed
st Ti

interest rate interest rote Interest free otal
4,506 414,499 10,543 429,548
991,442 47,638 - 1,039,080
471,999 - - 471,999

- 590,966 3,283 594,249

- - 12 12
1,467,547 1,053,103 13,838 2,534,888
702,074 578,747 26,701 1,307,522
727,017 177,765 - 904,782
5,759 - - 5,759
11,236 6,070 - 17,306
1,446,086 762,582 26,701 2,235,369
21,861 290,521 {12,863) 299,519
328,077 20,300 98,733 447,110
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4,

4.2

Market risk (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the floating rate interest assets and liabilities

The table below represents the sensitivity of the Bank to possible changes in interest rates based on the structure of
floating rate assets and liabilities as of 31 December, under the assumption that the influence of the other variables
is ignored. The actual effect of changes In market interest rates could be different, as a significant portion of the loans
and receivables from customers bear floating Interest rates that are based on a variable portion determined by the
Bank, which in turn is influenced by numerous factors.

Currency

BGN
EUR
uso

BGN
EUR
UsD

2019 2018

increase/decre increase/decre
ase In Sensitivity of the Sensitivity of the ase in Sensitivity of the Sensitivity of the
percentage financiel result eqgully percentage finonclal resuft equlty

points points
0.50% 3,086 (2,730} 0.50% 819 {2,350}
0.50% (286) {7,353) 0.50% {454) {9,103)
0.50% {249) (6) 0.50% {237} (32)
-0.50% (3,086) 2,730 0.50% (819) 2,350
-0.50% 286 7.353 0.50% 454 9,103
-0.50% 249 6 -0.50% 237 32

The average interest rates by financial assets and financlal liabilltles are presented in the following table:

Currency risk

Financial assets

Financlal llabllities

31.12.2019 31.12.2018
2.66% 2.66%
0.62% 0.37%

The currency risk is the risk that the financial position and cash flows of the Bank might be affected adversely by
changes in exchange rates due to open currency positions. in managing the foreign currency risk, the Bank follows
the principle of maintaining minimum open currency positions within the specified limits. Foreign currency positions
are not formed with speculative purposes, but arise out of foreign currency transactions in the ordinary course of
business of the Bank.

This document is a translation of the original Bulgarian text, In case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevail.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.2. Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The policy of the parent company (the “Bank”} is that the main portion of the assets and liabllities, and respectively
the bank transactions, shall be denominated in EUR or BGN. The Bank does not carry out significant transactions and
does not hold significant open positions in currencies other than EUR and BGN. As the exchange rate of the Bulgarian
lev is pegged to that of the Euro, there is no significant open currency risk for the Bank’s cash flows and financial
performance.

The currency risk is regarded with respect to the overall activity of the Bank. Analyses of the financial assets and
labilities by types of currency of denomination are conducted on a regular basis.

The approach of measuring the overall activity currency risk includes mainly:
- Foreign currency sensitivity analysis — measuring the Bank's income from foreign currency transactions;
- Determination, implementation and reporting of currency risk limits, reflecting the Bank’s risk appetite;

- Stress tests for currency risk, which present the potential change of annual income after the Implementation
of stress scenarios for exchange rate changes.

The currency risk analysis is performed by allocating the Bank’s assets and liabilities by types of currency of
denomination, which facilltates the timely decision making regarding the Bank’s foreign currency policy, and in
particular, the formation of specific products and ensuring sources of financing with relevant characteristics.

The Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO) monitors currently the currency risk to which the Bank is
exposed and develops measures for its management and maintenance within the limits acceptable to the Bank.

The following table summarises the Bank's exposure to currency risk. The table includes the Bank’s financial
instruments and the contingent liabilitles and commitments, presented at carrying amount, classified by type of
currency.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.2. Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)
In USD in EUR In other In 8GN Total
foreign

As of 31 December 2019 currency
Financlal assets
Cash In hand and balances in current 22 4,633 - 245,564 250,619
account with the Central Bank
Receivables from banks 40,070 124,651 57 174,470 339,248
Loans and advances to customers . 1,170,248 - 482,652 1,652,900
Receivables from the State budget - - - 166,821 166,821
Financial assets at fair value through 16,625 416,996 - 108,498 542,119
other comprehenslve Income
Securities held to maturity - - 1,950 1,950
Other financial assets - - - 166 166
Total financlal assets 56,717 1,716,528 57 1,180,521 2,953,823
Financlal liabilities
Borrowings from internatlonal - 1,211,937 - . 1,211,937
institutions
Deposits from customers other than 56,704 161,783 1 915,561 1,134,049
credit Institutions
Deposits from credit institutions - 1,375 - 6,502 7,877
Other borrowings - 17,119 - - 17,119
Total finandal liabillties 56,704 1,392,214 1 922,063 2,370,982
Net balance sheet currency position 13 324,314 56 258,458 582,841
Contingencies and commitments 1,509 146,231 - 374,863 522,603
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4., FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.2, Market risk {continued)

Currency risk (continued)

As of 31 December 2018
Financlal assets

Cash in hand and balances in current
account with the Central Bank

Receivables from banks

Loans and advances to custormers
Receivables from the State budget
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive Income

Other financial assets

Total financlal assets
Financial liabilities

Deposits from customers other than credit
Institutions

Borrowings from international institutions
Deposits from credlt Institutions

Other borrowtngs

Tatal financial liabilitles

Net batance sheet currency position

Contingencies and commitments

In USD In EUR In ather foreign In BGN Total
currency

28 4,178 - 293,416 297,622

114,399 122,448 57 192,644 429,548

- 735,825 - 303,255 1,039,080

- - - 471,999 471,999

17,597 460,260 - 116,392 594,249

- - - 12 12

132,024 1,322,711 57 1,377,718 2,832,510

131,979 97,012 40 1,078,491 1,307,522

- 904,782 - 904,782

- 1,465 - 4,294 5,759

- 17,306 - 17,306

131,979 1,020,565 40 1,082,785 2,235,369

45 302,146 17 294,933 597,141

1,025 206,657 - 239,428 447,110
67
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

4.2, Market risk {continued)

Currency risk (continued}

The following table presents the Bank’s sensitivity to possible changes in exchange rates based on the structure of
the assets and liabilities at 31 December 2019,

2019
Change in exch . Eﬂmm":: h: .:r:mtc:::mf:::: " Effect on squity
Currency ange In exchange rates g ge
Exchange  Decrease
rate (BPS) Increase (BPS) Decrease Increase
EUR 19552 - § i
usD 1.7410 +1,082 -1,396 55 mn
#Y 0.0160 +8 .17 .
GeP 22988 -1,632 +1,564 4 a
Total effect 0 =%

*Calculated based on 3-month change in exchange rate (historical period of 3 years) with reliability rate of 99%.

The open FX position and thea market volatility of the respective forelgn currencies as at 31 December 2019 would
have an immaterial effect on the Bank’s financial result assessed as equal to minus BGN 59 thousand if the hypothesis
of unfavourable change in exchange rates occurs compared to the open positions of the Bank by separate currencies
with the reported basis points {(BPS: 1 b.p. = 0.0001 in decimal form).

2018
Effect on the pre-tax profit in case of Effact on equity
Currency Change in exchange rates change In exchange rates
Exchange Decreases increase Decrease Increase
rate (BPS) (BPS)
EUR 1.9558 - . - -
uso 1.7082 +1,201 -1,337 -28 +31 -
IPY 0.0155 +17 -16 . - -
GBP 2.1864 2,504 1,005 -2 +1 -
Total effect -30 +32 -
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.2. Market risk {continued)

Price risk of shares quoted on the Stock Exchange

The Bank is exposed to price risk with respect to the shares it holds, classified as investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Management of the Bank monitors and analyses all changes in the security market,
and engages the advisory services of renowned local investment intermediaries. In addition, at this stage, the Bank
has decided to greatly reduce the operations on the stock markets and the trade in the acquired shares, and currently
monitors the financial and business indicators, reported by the respective issuer, as well as the development of its
activities.

4.3. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will not be able to meet its current and potential payment obligations as they
fall due without suffering losses.

The Bank’s business requires a stable cash flow both to replace existing deposits and loans received prior to their
maturity, and to satisfy demands of customers for additional loans. Undrawn borrowing facllity commitments and
the level of all outstanding contingent obligations are taken into consideration in managing the Bank’s liquidity risk.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as
they mature, as well as the impact of the changes In Interest rates and exchange rates on the pre-tax profit and
equity, are important factors in assessing the Bank’s liquidity. In order to manage this risk, the Bank malntains at all
times highly liquid assets depending on the currency of its liabilities,

The overall liquidity control and monitoring are performed by Assets and Liabilitles Commilttee {ALCO) and are hased
on maturity tables with scenarios for measuring the net cash flows by periods, including nominal, realistic and
pessimistic scenario, reflecting to a different degree the negative assumptions relating to loss of confidence by the
customers, deterioration of the credit portfolio quality, negative assumptions about the banking market and other
assumptions that could have an impact on the Bank’s liquid position and certain statutory coefficients and ratios.
Additionally, varieties of correlations are monitored to indicate the liquid position by periods. Liquidity risk is also
measured through applicatlon of three additional scenarios for the cash flows from operating actlvities and
monitoring the liquidity buffers of the Bank and the additional sources of financing In case of market and idiosyncratic
shocks, representing loss of confidence by the market in a particular bank or banking group, which is tantamount to
downgrading of the institution with two degrees at least and combined shocks.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4,3, Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below presents the amounts in percentage of the liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) of the Bank:

2019 2018
As of 31 December 532.88% 1,331.20%
Average for the perlod 896.16% 1,053.40%
Highest for the perlod 2,483.79% 1,785.50%
Lowast for the period 431.74% 424.26%
2019 2018
Cash and cash balances with BNB 250,619 297,622
Balances in current accounts with other banks and international deposits of up to 7
days 204,114 319,679
Government securitles 509,393 540,158
tiquid assets 564,126 1,157,459
Financial labilltles measured at amortised cost 2,370,982 2,235,369
Provisions 2,939 3,185
Employee retirement beneflts 552 400
Liabilities 2,324,473 2,238,954
Liquidity assets ratio (LAR) 40.60% 51.70%
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4.3. Liquldity risk {continued)

The table below provides an analysis of the financial assets and liabillties of the Bank at carrying amount, grouped

by remaining maturity:

As of 31 December 2019

Financlal assets

Cask In hand and balances In current
account with the Central Bank

Recelvables from banks

Loars and advances to customers
Recelvables from the State budget
Securitles held to maturity

FInanclal assets at falr value through
other comprehensive income
investments in subsidiaries

Property, plant and equipment,
Intanglble assets

Assets acquired from collateral
foreclosure

Investment property
Current tax recelvables
Other assets

Total financlai assats

Financlat Nabllities

Borrowings from International
institutions

Deposits from customers other than
credit institutions

Deposlits from credlt Institutlons
Other borrowlngs

Provisions

Deferred tax llabilities

Cther llabilitles

Total financlal liabllities

Gap In maturity thresholds of assets
and labifities

Contingencles and commitments

Up to 1 month 13 312 1-5 Over 5 Total
months months years years

250,619 - - - 250,619

198,533 28,175 3,725 84,132 23,683 339,248

119,028 52,609 165,571 552,147 763,545 1,652,900

7,617 29,478 126,194 3,532 166,821

= - 11 1,939 1,950

46,744 13,664 27,384 236,152 218,175 542,119

109,488 - - 109,488

36,955 - 36,955

- - 35,187 35,187

7,633 - - - 7,633

- 664 - 664

- 3,507 - 3,507

776,617 124,926 327,056 911,150 1,007,342 3,247,091

676 21,015 99,038 541,548 549,660 1,211,937

628,846 1,338 479,432 24,311 122 1,134,049

7,877 - - - - 7,877

- 213 853 16,053 17,119

2,939 - - - 2,539

- - - 401 401

2,985 60 270 435 " 3,750

643,323 22,413 578,953 567,147 566,236 2,378,072

133,294 102,513 {251,897) 344,003 441,106 769,019

46,028 9,749 154,085 196,538 101,926 508,326

Thie document is a translation of the original Bulgarian text, in case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevail.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4.3. Lquidity risk {continued)

As of 31 December 2018 Uptel i-3 3-12 1-5 years Over 5 yaars Total
month months months

Financial assets

Cash in hand and balances In current 297,622 - - - 297,622

account with the Central Bank

Recelvables from banks 218,627 102,757 10,317 1,644 96,203 429,548

Loans and advances to customers 51,917 36,001 141,342 445,922 363,898 1,039,080

Recelvables from the State bucget 23,756 143,647 304,596 - - 471,999

Financial assets at falr value through

81,434 10,849 11,606 210,595 279,765 594,249
other comprehensive income
Assets held for sale - - 4,840 - - 4,840
Current tax recelvables - - 1,244 - - 1,244
Orther assets - - 712 - - 712
Assets acquired from collateral _ _ ; 27,128 ) 27,128
foreclosure
Investment property 7,649 - - - - 7,649
Investments in subsidiaries 105,625 - - - - 105,625
Property, plant and equipment, } _
intangible assets 32818 ; . 32818
Deferred tax assets - - 247 - - 247
Total financlal assets 819,448 293,254 474,904 685,289 739,866 3,012,761
Financial Rabilitlas
Deposits from credit Institutions 5,759 - - - - 5,759
Deposlts from customers other than
credit institutions 782,564 4,330 415,628 103,979 1,021 1,307,522
Provisions 3,185 - - - - 3,185
Other liabilitles 2,103 - - 118 2,221
Borrowings from International
Institutions 1,837 21,902 597,177 - 283,776 904,782
Cther'borrowings - - 213 960 16,133 17,306
Total financlal labilitles 795,448 26,322 1,013,018 105,057 300,930 2,240,775
Gap In maturity thresholds of assets
and liabllities 24,000 266,932 {538,114) 580,232 438,936 771,988
Contingencles and commlitments 104,192 51,252 97,015 157,552 23,256 433,267
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.3. Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below presents the gross undiscounted cash flows related to the Bank's liabilities as of 31 December:

As of 31 December 2019

Financial llabilitles

Borrowlings from International
Institutlons

Deposits from customers other
than credit institutions

Deposlts from credit Institutions

Other borrowings

Bank guarantee provisions

Unutilised loan commitments

As of 31 December 2018

Financial liabllitles

Deposits from customers other
than credit institutions
Borrowings from International
Institutlons

Deposlits from credit institutions
Other borrowings

Bank guarantee provisions

Unutilised loan commitments

This document is a transiation of the original Bulgarian text, In case of divargence the Bulgarian text shall prevall.

Less

Fram 1

From 1

Ca
rrying Grass flow than1 ta3 From 3 to to5 Over5
amount 12 months years
month months years
1,211,937 1,292,310 676 20,405 99,422 563,028 608,779
1,134,049 1,134,338 628,844 1,338 479,721 24,312 123
7,877 7,877 7,877 - - - -
17,119 18,604 29 301 1,277 16,997
2,370,982 2,453,129 637,397 21,772 §79,444 588,617 625,899
2,882 2,431 300 600 1,531 -
321,120 348,377 54,295 43,477 87,367 142,938 20,300
Less From1 From1
Carrying Gross flow than 1 to3 From 3 to to5s Overs
amount 12 months years
month months years
1,307,522 1,308,132 782,566 4,332 415,776 104,436 1,022
904,782 954,593 1,837 22,086 611,195 319,475
5,759 5,759 5,759 - -
17,306 18,909 - 30 303 1,473 17,103
2,235,369 2,287,393 790,162 26,448 1,027,274 105,909 337,600
2,998 2,998 300 600 2,098 -
348,377 348,377 54,295 43,477 87,367 142,938 20,300
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.3. Llquidity risk {continued}

Considering the specific activity of the Bank, the funds attracted from the biggest 20 non-bank depositors at 31
December 2019 represent 92.28% of the total amount of payables to other customers (31 December 2018: 95.47%).
The share of the biggest non-bank depositor of the total amount of payables to other customers is 33.50% (31
December 2018: 33.70%).

The financial assets of the Bank available for future financing and the financial assets pledged as collateral for

financial llabilities are presented in the table below:

As of 31 December 2019

Financlal assets Pledged as collateral* Avallable for collateral Other** Total
Cash in hand and balances in current

account with the Central Bank B 76,759 173,860 250,619
Recelvables from banks 12,756 326,492 - 339,248
Loans and advances to customers - 1,268,932 383,968 1,652,900
Receivables from the State budget - 166,821 - 166,821
Financlal assets at fair value through

other comprehensive Income 6,623 532,718 2,778 542,119
Securltles at amortized cost - 1,950 - 1,950
Other financial assats** - - 166 166
Total financial assets 15,379 2,373,672 560,772 2,953,823
As of 31 December 2018

Finencial assets Pladged as collateral* Avallable for collateral Other®* Total
Cash in hand and balances in current

account with the Central Bank - 125,479 172,143 297,622
Recelvables from banks 10,543 419,005 - 429,548
Loans and advances to customers - 656,605 382475 1,039,080
Recelvables from the State budget - 471,999 - 471,999
Financlal assets at falr value through

other comprehensive income 6,633 584,894 2,722 594,249
Other financlal assets®*® - - 12 12
Total financial assets 17,176 2,257,982 557,352 2,832,510
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.3, Liquldity risk (continued)

* At 31 December 2019, funds amounting to BGN 12,756 thousand (2018: BGN 10,543 thousand) were blocked on
counter-guarantees of two corporate customers, maturing as follows:

Maturity interval Receivables from banks pledged
as collateral

On demand -

From 91 to 180 days 3,137

From 181 to one year 542

Over one year 9,077

12,756

At 31 December 2019, restricted securitles on a legal requirement to provide for funds of the State budget amount
to BGN 6,623 thousand (2018: BGN 6,633 thousand).

**Other represent financial assets not encumbered or restricted to be used as collateral, but the Bank would not
take It Into consideration as available to support a future financing in the normal course of its activity.

Revlew of the slze, development and the credit quality of the unencumbered assets Is done once a year.

Risk Management, together with other Bank divisions, monthly monitors and reports to ALCO on the ratios between
the encumbered assets and the total carrying amount of the Bank’s assets. In case of excess above the limits
approved by the Management Board, ALCO reports back to the MB for undertaking corrective actions.

4.4. Operatlonal risk

The maln sources of operational risk within the Bank are its personnel, processes, systems and external events. The
Bank designated the following as the major types of operational risk:

e Risk of loss due to inadequate or poorly working internal processes;

e Risk of loss due to inadequate, illegal and/or incorrect acts and omissions of personnel;
e Risk of loss due to inadequate or poorly working systems;

® Risk of loss due to external events, including legal risk.

Operational risk management is based on the principles of not taking unreasonable risks, strict compliance with the
levels of competence and the applicable legislation. The Bank applies reliable methods for limiting the impact of
operational risks, including by dividing the functions and responsibilities, introducing double-checking control, levels
of competence, internal control, etc. Moreover, control procedures for reducing the operational risk are added to all
internal rules and procedures of the Bank.

This document is a translation of the original Bulgarian text, in case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevail. 75
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

4.4. Operational risk {continued}

In operational risk management all operational events, which occur in the activity of varlous units and processes of
the Bank, are strictly monitored and registered, while the events of higher frequency, as well as those of significant
importance, serve as bases for the operational risk analyses in different scenarlos.

The operational risk is measurable and monitorable, and in the process of work an operational event register is kept,
which is used as a basis for analysing and improving the work processes, and minimising the conditions that would
potentially result in operational events and loss for the Bank.

For the purposes of measuring its operational risk, the Bank has decided to apply the "Basic indicator method”

4.5. Capltal management

The main objectives of the Bank’s capital management is to maintain its level at amounts sufficlent for activity
developing and achieving the general objectives set at its foundation — to support the economic policy of the country
and the development of small and medium-slzed businesses.

In its activities the Bank should observe the regulatory requirements for capital, as well as to continue operating as
a geing concern.

The table below presents the main equity components following the regulatory requirements and ratios achieved by
the Bank:

2019

OWN FUNDS 735,176 646,679
TIER | CAPITAL 735,176 646,679
COMMON EQUITY TIER | {CET1) CAPITAL 735,176 646,679
Share capital 601,774 601,774
Statutory reserves 63,882 63,882
Additional reserves 80,179 75,153
Accumulated other comprehensive income 12,128 6,047
Intangible assets {4,656) (285)
Investments in subsldiarles (17,845) {105,625)
Transitional adjustments to CET1 Capital 8,633 9,649
Components of or deductions from CET1 Capltal - other {8,377} {3,916}
ADDITIONAL TIER | CAPI'I;AL -

TIER Ii CAPITAL -

This document Is a translation of the original Bulgaran text, In case of divergence tha Bulgarlan text shall prevail. 76
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONTINUED)

4.5. Capltal management {continued)

Until 2018 the Bank treats its controlling Interests in the share capital of its subs|diaries NGF EAD and MFI JOBS EAD
as a deduction of the equity for regulatory purposes. As of 31 December 2019 with a decision of the Management
Board of BNB Nel62/30.04.2020 (BNB-41615/30.04.2020) the Bank changes its policy and begins to report its
participation in these companies as an exposure according to art. 48, para 4 of Regulation 575/2013 resulting in an
increase in regulatory equity by BGN 91,643 thousand. The decision has no other effects on the Bank's IFRS financial

statements for 2019.

TOTAL RISK EXPOSURES
Credlt risk - Standardised approach
Central governments or central banks

Regional governments or local authorities

Public sector entities
Multilateral development banks
Institutions

Corporates

Retall

Secured by mortgages on immovable property

Exposures in default
items associated with particular high risk
Equity exposures
Other items
Currency and commodity risk
Operatlonal risk - Baslc indicator approach

CET 1 Capltal Ratio
Total Capital Ratio

Capital conservation buffer

Institution-specific countercyclical capitol buffer
Systemic risk buffer

Buffer of other institutions of systemic Importance

Regul reguired |
CET I Capital Ratio
Tler 1 Capital ratio
Total Capital ratio

Capital conservation buffer

Institutlon-specific countercyclical capital buffer
Systemic risk buffer

Buffer of other Institutions of systemic importance

2019 2018
2,527,318 1,798,145
2,410,855 1,581,280

82,814 50,987
1,965 -
21,938 -
539 939
149,487 184,806
1,385,646 827,069
9,102 5,209
380,034 265,587
204,885 166,960
2,934 2,934
91,839 199
79,272 76,590
0 105,452
116,463 111,413
29.09% 35.96%
29.09% 35.96%
63,183 44,954
12,637 53,944
75,820 .
6,318 2248
6.25% 4.50%
2.75% 6.00%
9.75% 8.00%
2.50% 2.50%
0.50% 0.00%
3.00% 3.00%
0.25% 0.125%
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
4.5. Capital management {(continued)

By decision of BNB No93 of 15 March 2019, an additional requirement for Common Equity Capital was Imposed on
the BDB on the basis of Art. 1033, para. 2, item 5 of the Law on Credit Instltutions, exceeding the requirements of
Art. 92, para 1 of Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 of 1.75% to risk-welghted assets, or a minlmum total capital adequacy
0f 9.75%. In 2019, the capital adequacy of the BDB did not fall below the levels set by the Art. 31, para 2 of the Risk
Management and Control Policy — 23% total capital adequacy and 19.5% CET1 adequacy.
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless ctherwise stated
6. NET INTEREST INCOME

Interest income
Financlal assets measured ot amortised cost
Loans and advances to customers
Receaivables from the State budget
Loans to banks
Securities, measured at amortised cost
Deposlts placed with other banks
Financial assets at falr value through other comprehensive income
Other llabllitles {effect of negative interest)

Incl. Interest Income on impalred loans and receivables

Interest expenses

Borrowings from Iinternational institutions

Deposlts from customers other than credit institutions
Other borrowlings

Other assets (effect of negative Interest)

Finance lease

Depasits fram cred|t Institutions

Net interest Income

The yield on the assets, as a ratlo of net profit to the balance sheet figure, Is 1.12% {2018: 0.83%).

7. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Fee and commission income under IFRS 15

Transaction-related services

Issuance of guarantees and letters of credit

Account maintenance

Totai fee and commission Income from contract with customers
Other charges

Total fees and commissions income

Fee and commission expenses

Agent’s commissions

Servicing of accounts with other banks

Transfers and treasury operations in other banks
Total fee and commisslon expenses

Net fee and commission income

This document Is & translation of the original Bulgarian text, in casa of divergence the Bulgarian text shall provail.

2019 2018
60,010 44,756
4,094 9,254
1,538 1,707
. 10
1,950 1,872
5,024 4,677
239 1,004
72,855 63,280
13,979 4,322
(9,848) (6,631)
(617) (648)
(121) (124)
(657) (2,061)
{27) {21)
(152) {4)
{11,422) {9,489)
61,433 53,791
2019 2018
609 594
1,290 1,383
76 69
1,975 2,046
18 16
1,993 2,062
{24) {2)
(35) (29)
(3 (4)
{62) {35)
1,931 2,027
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BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

8. NET GAIN ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE DEALS

2019 2018

Net gain on dealing In foreign currencies 427 386
Net galn/{loss)on forelgn currency translatlon of assets and liabilities - {7
421 379

9. NET GAIN ON SECURITIES MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2019 2018
Net galn on dealing in securlties measured at fair value through OC},
Incl. realised revaluation reserve 3,687 738
3,687 738
10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2019 2018
Dividends received 1,339 908
Incorne from rent of Investment property 611 554
Refunded litigation expenses 415 839
Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale - 437
Proceeds from disposal of FTA {fixed tangible assets) 8 1
Other income 37 224
2,410 3,004
11. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2019 2018

Expenses on assets held for sale (353) (280)

Litigation expenses (188) {28)

Loss on revaluation of investrment property {16) -

withholding tax (723) (286)

Direct operating expenses relating to investment property (211) (204)

Expenses on disposal of FTA (7) (1)

Other expenses (1) ~ (658)

{1,499) {1,457)

This document is a translation of the original Bulgarian text, in cass of divergenca the Bulgarian text shall prevall. 84



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

12.  EXPENSES ON IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND PROVISIONS

2019 2018
{Expenses on}/Income from/reversed Impairment losses on loans, net (29,897) (5,694)
(Expenses on)/Income from/reversed Impairment losses on unutilised loans 71 472
{Expenses on)/Income from/reversed guarantee provisions, net 450 (1,624)

{Expenses on)/Income from/reversed impairment losses on assets acquired from
collateral foreclosure (68) (232)

{Expenses on)/Income from/reversed impalrment Josses on assets at fair value
through OCI, net 641 (1,703)
impairment of securitles at amortized cost, net {61) -
Impairment of subsidiarles (137) :
(29,001) (8,781)
13. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
2019 2018
Staff remuneration and soclal security {12,454) {10,245)
Remuneration to members of the Management and Supervisory Boards (1,404) {1,445)
{13,898} (11,690)
Staff remuneration and social securlty 2019 2018
Salarles {10,823) (8,920}
Social security (1,423) {1,132)
Soclal benefits {144) (108)
Amounts accrued on retirement benefits (104) (85)
{12,494) (10,245)
14. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2019 2018
Contribution to the Bank Resolution Fund {BRF) (5,389) (6,913)
Advertlsing and entertalnment expenses (1,920) (858)
Office and office equipment maintenance {862) (752)
Communications and IT services (829) (530)
Hired services (713) (285)
Audit services by the registered auditors (611) (158)
Taxes and government charges (236) (207)
Legal and consulting services (230) (271)
Business trips (86} (88}
Contribution to the Bulgarian Deposit Insurance Fund {BDIF) (59} (47}
Advisory services by the reglstered audit firms (50} (2)
Rents (9) (9)
(10,994) {10,120}

The amounts charges for the year for services provided by the registered audit firms of the Company include:
independent financial audit: BGN 611 thousand (2018: BGN 158 thousand), including agreed-upon procedures
for BGN 50 thousand (2018: BGN & thousand), tax advisory services: BGN 0 (2018: BGN 0}, other services not
related to audit: BGN 0 thousand (2018 BGN 2 thousand).

This document Is a translation of the orginal Bulgarian text, In case of divargence the Bulgarian text shall pravail, 85



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD
NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

15. TAXATION

2019 2018
Current tax expense 2,036 1,396
Deferred tax {beneflt)/expense due to temporary differences {31) 60
Deferred tax (benefit)/expense due to changes In accounting policies - 167
Total current tax expense 2,005 1,623

2019 2018
Accounting profit 13,062 26,753
Income tax calculated at the effective tax rate (10% for 2019, 10% for 2018) 1,306 2,675
Expense on non-deductible expenses 994 38
Non-deductlble Income (295) (129)
Deferred tax (benefit)/expense due to changes In accounting policies - (961)
Total tax expense 2,005 1,623
Effectlve tax rate 15.35% 6.07%

In 2019, the Bank pald advance corporate income taxes of BGN 2,700 thousand (2018: BGN 2,640 thousand).

This document Is a translation of the original Bulgarian text, In case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall pravall. 86



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

15. TAXATION {CONTINUED)

Outstanding balances of deferred taxes relate to the following Items of the separate statement of flnanclal
position and changes in the separate statement of comprehensive income:

Assets Liabllitles

Changes In the

2019 2018 2019 2018 statement of

comprehensive

Income

Property and equipment (17) {15} - - {2)

Other assets (261) {232) - - (29)
Securities at fair value through other

comprehensive income - - 680 - 680

(278) {247) 630 - 649

The changes in the temporary differences during the year are recognised in the separate statement of
comprehensive Income.

The probability that the Individual differences might reverse in the future and the Bank’s ability to generate
sufficient taxable profit have also been taken into account on recognising deferred tax assets.

16. NET CHANGE IN THE FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2019 2018
Change In the fair value of financlal assets at falr value through othar comprahensive
income
Galns which have occurred during the year 6,809 1,781
10% tax (681) (673)
Other comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax 6,128 1,108
17. CASH IN HAND AND BALANCES IN CURRENT ACCOUNT WITH THE CENTRAL BANK

2019 2018
Cash in hand 289 335
Current accounts 250,330 297,287
incl. Minlmum statutory reserves 173,860 172,143
Total cash with the Central Bank 250,330 297,287
Total cash In hand and in accounts with the Central Bank 250,619 297,622

In 2019 the current account with the Central Bank bears Interest rate of minus 0.60-0.70% on the excess over
105% of the minimum statutory reserves {2018: - 0.60 %).

This document Is a transiation of the original Bulgarian text, in case of divergence the Buigarian text shall pravail, 87



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

18. RECEIVABLES FROM BANKS

2019 2018

Current accounts and demand deposits with local banks 146 111
Current accounts and demand deposits with forelgn banks 33,843 14,938
Incl. Current accounts with an original maturity of less than 90 days 21,232 4,506
Term deposlts with local banks {Incl. repo deals) 157,745 244,030
Term deposits with foreign banks (incl. repo deals) 48,604 71,143
Incl, Term deposits with an original maturity of less than 90 days 182,882 315,173
Loans to local banks 101,007 98,971
Loans to foreign banks 177 1,467
Aliowance for Impairment and uncollectabllity of recelvables from banks (2,274) (1,112)
339,248 429,548

At 31 December 20189, speclal-purpose loans, denominated and BGN and EUR, with original maturity of up to 10
years and interest rate levels ranging from 1.40% to 4.50% (2018: 1.40% to 4.50%), were extended with the aim
to develop small and medium-sized enterprises.

Funds amounting to BGN 12,756 thousand were blocked in current accounts with forelgn banks to cover letters
of credit (2018: BGN 10,543 thousand).

At 31 December 2019 loans were provided to local banks denominated in foreign currency with nominal amount
of EUR 5,745 thousand and equivalent to BGN 11,236 thousand (31 December 2018: BGN 11,236 thousand), with
an orlginal maturity until 2027 and repayment of the loans In four instalments. These are special-purpose loans
extended to banks for direct lending to customers with the aim to develop small and medium-sized enterprises
{SMEs) in accordance with a loan financing by the Ministry of Finance with funds provided by Kfw.

19. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

2019 2018
Loans (gross amount) 1,808,945 1,197,889
Allowance for impairment and uncollectability of loans (156,045) (158,809)
1,652,900 1,039,080
2019 2018

A. Analysls by customer type (gross amount)
Corporate and sole traders 1,805,954 1,194,728
Municipalities 825 928
Individuals 2,066 2,233
1,808,945 1,197,889

This document Is a transiation of the original Bulgarian text, in case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevail. 88



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All emounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

19. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS {CONTINUED)

2019 2017

B. Analysis by Industry sector {gross amount)

Industry, total 460,465 435,435
Industry ~ manufacture of tobacco products 148,684 149,129
Industry — manufacture of plant and equipment 81,286 67,611
Industry — energy generation and distribution 61,782 74,452
Industry — manufacture of foodstuffs 46,853 51,392
Industry — other industries 121,860 92,851

Trade 322,741 32,165

Tourlst services 266,326 108,148

Transport 232,580 130,765

Constructlon 168,460 162,402

Financial services 104,291 113,942

Government sector 72,680 77,659

Real estate transactions 56,339 49,552

Agriculture 49,225 29,159

Collection and disposal of garbage - 4,190

Other industries 75,828 54,472

1,808,945 1,197,889

The Bank finance mainly the activities of small and medium-sized enterprises, as well as Investment prejects to
achieve return from 5 to 10 years.

€. Movement In the allowance for loan impalrment and uncollectability

2019 2018
Individually  Collectively Total Individually Collectively Total
Impalred impairad impalred impaired
At 1 january 158,809 - 158,809 155,173 - 155,173
Effect of IFRS 9 . . - 10,076 _ 10,076
Impalrment costs 48,682 - 48682 29,170 - 29,170
Reversed
impairment (18,783) - (18,783) (23,476) - (23,476}
‘Written-off against
impafrment (32,663} - (32,663) {12,134) - {12,134)
At 31 December 156,045 - 156,045 158,809 - 158,809

This document is a translation of the original Bulgarlan text, In case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevail. 89



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

20. RECEIVABLES FROM THE STATE BUDGET

2019 2018
Energy Efficiency of Multl-Famlly Residential Bulldings Natlonal
Programme {EEMFRBNP) 145,140 472,803
Acquired receivables 22,118 -
Allowance for Impairment and uncollectabliity of loans (collective
Impairment) {437) (804)
166,821 471,999

By Decree No. 18 of 2 February 2015, the Council of Ministers of the Republic of Bulgaria approved Energy
Efficiency of Multl-Family Residentlal Buildings National Programme (EEMFRBNP) {the Programme) on the terms
and conditions for grants award under the Programme and for designating the bodies that will be in charge of its
implementation.

The financing under the Programme goes through BDB. For the purpose, the Bank concludes trilateral
agreements with regional governors (representatives of the State)} and municipal mayors {authorized
representatives of the owners’ associations).

The Bank Is of the opinion that the existing recelvables bear a minimal credit risk in so far as the source of the
payments is the budget of the Republic of Bulgaria. The resources attracted by internaticnal partners for the
purpose of financing the Programme is covered by a State guarantee {see Note 30).

Funds utilised and not paid under the Program as of 31 December 2019 amounted to BGN 144,703 thousand {31
December 2018: BGN 471,999 thousand).

The acquired recelvables are under assignment contracts. The debtors are secondary state budged authorizers.
Their carrying amount as at 31.12.2019 is BGN 22,118 thousand (31.12.2018; BGN 0 thousand).

This document is a translation of the original Bulgarian text, in case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevail. Q0



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

21, SECURITIES MEASURED AT AMORTIZED COST

The available securitles, financial assets measured at amortized cost as of 31 December 2019 are as follows:

Nominal value Amortized cost Impalrment Fair value

original currency  gGN ‘000 BGN 000 BGN 000

Bonds denominated In BGN 2,000 2,011 (61) 1,850
2,011 {61} 1,950

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2019 2018
Government securitles 509,393 540,158
Corporate bonds 29,148 50,808
Total debt securities 538,541 590,966
Non-publicly traded companles’ shares 2,778 2,722
Participation in investment program SIA (Note 35) 788 546
Public companles’ shares 12 15
Total equity securities 3,578 3,283
Total flnanclai assets measured at falr value through OCI 542,119 594,249

Movement in debt financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income in the current
and prior periods are as follows:

2019 2018
As of 1 January 590,966 (228,511
Additlons {purchases) 219,630 482,874
Disposals {sale and/or maturity} (278,183) (121,527)
Net {decrease)/increase due to revaluation of financial assets measured at falr
value through other comprehensive Income 6,128 1,108
As of 31 December 538,541 590,965

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income comprise mainly government
securities with the issuer being the Republic of Bulgaria or other European countries, and caorporate bonds.

The non-public companies’ shares held by the Bank include shares of the European Investment Fund {EIF)
amounting to BGN 2,594 thousand. The portion of the nominal value of the acquired shares of EIF, which has not
been paid, Is due after a decision Is taken by the General Meeting of Shareholders of EIF.

This document Is a translation of the original Bulgarian text, In case of divargence the Bulgarian text shall prevail. 91



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(CONTINUED)

The remaining portion of the non-public companies’ shares amounting to BGN 184 thousand represent shares of
the company licensed as a payment system operator under the Bulgarian law — BORICA - Bankservice AD. Only
banks can be shareholders of this company and they acquire shares following a speclfic procedure; the share
price is determined using a formula specified in the company's Statute.

The revaluation reserve formed on financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
is presented in Note 34.

2019 2018

Revaluation reserve 12,035 4,568
impairment 1,500 2,160
Tax {1,352) (673)
12,183 6,055

In 2018 and 2019 there is no reported expenses for impalrment of assets measured through other
comprehensive Income in current proflt or loss for the year (Note 9).

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
As of 31.12.2018 and 31.12.2019 the Bank has the following investments in subsidiaries:
National Guarantee Fund EAD

The Bank is a sole owner of the capital of National Guarantee Fund EAD, registered with the Commercial Register
on 22 August 2008. The total registered share capital at 31 December 2019 consists of 800,000 shares of BGN
100 each (31 December 2018: 800,000 shares of BGN 100 per share). The registered capital at 31 December 2019
amounts to BGN 80,000 thousand (31 December 2018: BGN 80,000 thousand). The investment in the subsidiary
at 31 December 2019 amounts to BGN 80,000 thousand {31 December 2018: BGN 80,000 thousand), measured
at historical cost of acquisition.

Micro FInancing Institution lobs EAD

The Bank is a sole owner of the capital of Micro Financing Instltution Jobs, registered on 14 January 2011. The
total registered share capital at 31 December 2019 amounts to BGN 7,643 thousand, split into 76,430 shares of
BGN 100 each. The investment in the subsidiary at 31 December 2019 amounts to BGN 7,643 thousand (31
December 2018: BGN 7,643 thousand), measured at historical cost of acquisition.

This document is a translation of tha original Bulgasian text, in case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevall. 92



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated

23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES {CONTINUED)

Capltal Investments Fund AD

Bulgarian Development Bank AD and National Guarantee Fund EAD are owners of the capital of the Capital
Investments Fund AD incorporated on 24 August 2018, The company’s capital amounts to BGN 65 000 thousand
split into 650,000 shares of 8GN 100 each. BDB subscribed 550,000 registered shares for the total amount of
BGN 55 000 thousand, representing 84.62% of the capital. National Guarantee Fund EAD subscribed 100,000
shares for the total amount of 8GN 10,000 thousand, representing 15.38% of the Fund'’s capital.

At 31 December 2019, the Bank paid BGN 13 750 thousand, representing 25% of the amount of the contribution
into the reglstered capital, and Natlonal Guarantee Fund EAD paid BGN 2 500 thousand, representing 25% of the
amount of the contribution into the reglstered capital. The carrylng amount of the investment Is BGN 13,750
thousand {2018: BGN 13,750 thousand).

BDB Leasing EAD

The Bank is the sole owner of the capital of BDB Leasing EAD, registered according to the Commercial Register
on 12 March 2019. As at 31.12.2019 the total amount of the registered share capital is 20,000 shares of BGN 100
each. As at 31.12.2019 the amount of the pald-up capital is BGN 2,000 thousand. The carrying amount of the
investment Is BGN 2,000 thousand.

B8DB Factoring EAD

The Bank is the sole owner of the capital of BDB Factoring EAD, registered according to the Commercial Register
on 13 March 2019. As at 31.12.2019 the total amount of the registered share capital is 20,000 shares of BGN 100
each. As at 31.12.2019 the amount of the paid-up capital is BGN 2,000 thousand. The carrying amount of the
investment is BGN 2,000 thousand.

Trade Centre Maritsa EOOD

By decision of the Bank's Management Board, as recorded in Protocol 29 of 18 May 2018, Trade Centre Maritsa
EQOD became an ownership of Bulgarian Development Bank EAD. The carrying amount of the company’s shares
is BGN 4,095 thousand (31.12.2018: BGN 4,232 thousand).

At 31 December 2019, management conducted a review for impairment of the investments in subsidiaries and
found that there were no indications of impairment except for Trade Centre Maritsa EOOD.

This document Is a translation of the original Bulgarian text, in case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevall. 93



BULGARIAN DEVELOPMENT BANK AD

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018
All amounts are in thousand Bulgarian Levs, unless otherwise stated
24. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cast

As of 1 January 2018
Additions

Disposals

As of 31 December 2018
Additlons

Disposals

As of 31 December 2019

Accumulated
depreclation/amortization

As of 1 January 2018
Charge for the year
Disposals

As of 31 December 2018
Charge for the year
Disposals

As of 31 December 2019

Net book value

At 1 January 2018

At 31 December 2018
At 31 December 2019

The fully depreclated/amortized property, plant and equipment still in use at 31 December 2019 amount to BGN
1,087 thousand at cost (2018: BGN 853 thousand) and intangible assets amount to BGN 743 thousand (2018:

Land and Bank Fbiuwres and Motor vehicles Licences and Total

buildings eguipment and fittings software
computers

32,553 1,972 563 291 1,198 36,577

- 23 106 775 105 1,009

- (18) - - (18)

32,553 1,977 669 1,066 1,303 37,568

- 964 7 4,600 5,571

- {18) - (28) {126) (172)

32,553 2,923 676 1,038 5,777 42,967

1,297 988 229 181 933 3,628

576 266 72 136 88 1,138

- (16) - - (16)

1,873 1,238 m 317 1,021 4,750

576 350 76 199 227 1,428

- (18) - (22) {126) {165)

2,449 1,570 ar7 494 1,122 6,012

31,256 984 334 110 265 32,949

30,580 739 368 749 282 32,818

30,104 1,353 299 544 4,655 36,955

BGN 837 thousand) respectively.
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25. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

2019 2018
Carrylng amount at the beginning of period 7,649 7,702
Sold - (53)
Loss on change in the fair value included in profit and loss for the perlod (16)

7,633 7,649

The Bank holds investment properties as a result of collateral acquired on problem loans. They are leased to third
parties. Rental Income generated for 2019 amounts to BGN 611 thousand (2018: BGN 594 thousand) (Note 11).

The Bank classifies its investment property in Level 3 of the fair value hlerarchy. The fair value has been
determined on the basis of the valuation calculated by independent certlfied appraisers using valuation
techniques and key inputs for the valuation of the investment property disclosed in Note 5.

26.  ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

As of 31.12.2019 properties (land, buildings and fixtures and fittings) amount to BGN 0 thousand (2018: BGN
4,840 thousand land, buildings and fixtures and fittings).

In 2019 the Bank acquired properties (land, bulldings and fixtures and fittings) at the amount of BGN 33 thousand
{2018: BGN 4,840 thousand land, buildings and fixtures and fittings).

The assets have not been used and it is not planned to be used in the Bank's actlvity. Management actively seeks
buyers with the purpose to sell them by the end of 2020.

Movement in assets held for sale: 2019 2018
Carrylng amount at the beginning of perlod 4,840 9,924
Acqulred from collateral foreclosure 33 4,835
Reclasslfled to assets acquired from collateral foreclosure (4,873) (8,963)
Sold - (956)

4,840
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27. OTHER ASSETS AND ASSETS ACQUIRED FROM COLLATERAL FORECLOSURE

Movement In assets acquired from collateral foreclosure in 2019 and 2018: 2019 2018
Carrylng amount at the beginning of period 27,128 15,875
Reclassified from held for sale 4,873 8,963
Additional capitalised costs 3,254 3,096
Sold - (575)
Impairment {(Note 12) (68) (231)
Carrying amount at the period-end 35,187 27,128

Assets acquired from collateral foreclosure include assets classified as held for sale (acquired from collateral
foreclosure), but not realised within the stipulated 12-month period and reclassified to assets acquired from
collateral foreclosure. These assets are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Other assets 2019 2018
Prepayments and advances 3,205 155
Other recelvables 165 12
VAT refundable 125 545
Cther assets 12 -

3,507 712

28. DEPOSITS FROM CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

2019 2018
Degoslts from local banks 6,513 4,323
Deposits from foreign banks 1,364 1,436
71,877 5,759

All deposits from credit Institutions are demand deposits. There are no interest payable on deposits from credit
institutions as at 31 December 2019 (2018: BGN 0 thousand).
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29. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS OTHER THAN CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

2019 2018
Companies and sole traders 1,036,512 1,209,268
Special-purpose deposits 92,501 93,088
Individuals 5,036 5,166

1,134,049 1,307,522

2019 2018

Term deposits 681,998 605,448
Demand deposlts 452,051 702,074
1,134,049 1,307,522

Interast payable on deposits from customers, other than credit institutions at 31 December 2019 amounts to
BGN 595 thousand {(2018: BGN 539 thousand).

The amount of the special-purpose deposits comprises the deposits of National Guarantee Fund EAD, a subsidiary
of BDB, in connection with projects for establishing a Guarantee Fund to support rural areas of the country under
the Rura!l Development Programme of the Republic of Bulgaria (2007-2013) at the Ministry of Agriculture and
Foad, and of the Operational Programme for Development of Fisheries Sector (2007-2013) at the Executive
Agency Fisheries and Aquacultures (EAFA).

30. BORROWINGS FROM INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTIONS

2019 2018
China Development Bank 741,321 215,180
Long-term framework loan agreement with the Council of Europe Development
Bank 209,176 277,271
Long-term loans from the Kreditanstalt fiir Wiederaufbau 112,793 154,223
The Export — Import Bank of China 58,324 97,727
Long-term loans from the European Investment Bank 42,949 146,722
Long-term loans from the Nordic Investment bank 7,374 11,947
European Investment Fund - 1,712
1,211,937 904,782

The interest payables on the borrowings from international institutions as of 31 December 2019 amount to BGN
1,150 thousand {2018: BGN 755 thousand).

The effective Interest rates on borrowings from international institutions as of 31 December 2019 range from 0%
to 1.70% (31 December 2018: from 0% to 1.75%).
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30. BORROWINGS FROM INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTIONS (CONTINUED)

Council of Europe Development Bank

On 18 November 2009, a new loan agreement was signed between Bulgarian Development Bank AD and the
Councll of Europe Development Bank for EUR 15,000 thousand. The purpose of the loan Is to finance investment
projects of micro-, small and medium-sized enterprises from the real sector with the aim to create new and to
preserve already existing jobs. The loan is unsecured.

As of 31 December 2018, the loan was fully utilised and the outstanding principal under the facility amounted to
EUR 937.5 thousand equivalent to BGN 1,834 thousand (31 December 2018: EUR 3,750 thousand equivalent to
BGN 7,334 thousand). The Interest rate Is flpating, based on the 3M EURIBOR plus 2 margin.

On 30 March 2011, fourth loan agreement was signed between Bulgarian Development Bank AD and the Council
of Europe Devefopment Bank for EUR 20,000 thousand. The purpose of the loan is to improve the access to
financing of the Bulgarlan small and medium-sized enterprises, to create new jobs, and to preserve already
existing ones. The loan is unsecured.

As of 31 December 2019, the loan was fully utilised and the outstanding principal under the facility amounted to
EUR 7,000 thousand equivalent to BGN 13,691 thousand {31 December 2018: EUR 9,000 thousand equivalent to
BGN 17,602 thousand). The Interest rate on the first tranche is floating, based on the 3M EURIBOR plus a margin,
and on the second tranche it Is fixed.

On 23 February 2016, Bulgarlan Development Bank signed a Loan agreement with the Council of Europe
Development Bank {CEDB) amounting to EUR 150,000 thousand. The funds are intended to finance energy
efficiency and retrofitting measures under Energy Efficiency of Multi-Famlly Residential Buildings National
Programme (EEMFRBNP). The Ipan has a special purpose and will be used for renovation of multi-family buildings.
As of 31 December 2019 the loan was fully utllised.

The loan is secured by a State guarantee under the State Budget of the Republic of Bulgaria Act for 2016. A
Guarantee Agreement was signed between the CEDB and the Republic of Bulgaria, represented by the Minister
of Finance, which was ratified by the National Assembly. The Guarantee Agreement Ratlfication Act was
promulgated In State Gazette on 3 May 2016.

The Energy Efficiency of Multi-Family Residential Buildings National Programme (EEMFRBNP) was approved by
virtue of decision of the Council of Ministers of 27 January 2015.

As of 31 December 2019, the outstanding principal under the loan amounted to EUR 98,000 thousand, equivalent
to BGN 193,627 thousand (as of 31.12.2018: EUR 129,000 thousand equivalent to BGN 252,302 thousand). The
interest rate on the first tranche of the loan is floating, based on 3M EURIBOR plus a margin, and on the second
tranche it is fixed.

Kreditanstalt fiir Wiederaufbau {Kfw)

On 27 luly 2010, Bulgarian Development Bank AD signed a direct loan agreement for EUR 25,000 thousand with
the German Development Bank Kreditanstalt fiir Wiederaufbau {Kfw). The purpose of the loan Is direct lending
to small and medium sized enterprises and/or for providing credit lines to commercial banks for special-purpose
business financing. The loan is unsecured. At 31 December 2019 the loan was fully utilised.
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30. BORROWINGS FROM INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTIONS (CONTINUED)

Kreditanstalt filr Wiederoufbau (Kfw) {continued)

As of 31 December 2019 the outstanding principal under the facility amounted to EUR 2,941 thousand equivalent
to BGN 5,752 thousand {at 31 December 2018: the outstanding princlpal amounted to EUR 5,882 thousand
equivalent to BGN 11,505 thousand). The interest rate is floating, based on the 6M EURIBOR plus a margin.

On 16 August 2016, Bulgarian Development Bank signed an Agreement with Kfw for EUR 100,000 thousand. The
funds are intended to finance energy efficiency and retrofitting measures, implemented by SMEs in Bulgaria
under the Energy Efficiency of Multi-Family Residential Bulldings National Programme (EEMFRBNP). The loan is
secured by a State guarantee under the State Budget of the Republic of Bulgaria Act for 2016. A Guarantee
Agreement was signed between KfW and the Republic of Bulgaria, represented by the Minister of Finance, which
was ratified by the National Assembly. The Guarantee Agreement Ratlflcation Act was promulgated in State
Gazette on 30 December 2016. As of 31 December 2019 the ioan was fully utilised.

As of 31 December 2019, the outstanding principal under the facility amounted to EUR 54,545 thousand
equivalent to BGN 106,682 thousand (as of 31 December 2018 the outstanding principal under the facility
amounted to EUR 72,727 thousand equivalent to BGN 142,242 thousand). The interest rate is floating, based on
the 6M EURIBOR plus margin.

European Investment Bank

On 18 November 2016, BDB signed a contract with European Investment Bank for the amount of EUR 150,000
thousand for financing of projects of small and medium-sized enterprises. The funds are provided with the
support of the EU and are backed by an EFS| (European Fund for Strategic Investment) guarantee, part of the
Investment Plan for Europe — the Juncker Plan. The funds are intended to finance SMEs, including innovative
projects, to support regtons with high unemployment rates, as well as youth employment or start-up company
projects. The loan can be allocated through partner banks, other financial intermediaries or directly. The loan is
unsecured.

As of 31 December 2019, the outstanding princlpal under the loan amounted to EUR 21,955 thousand equivalent
to BGN 42,941 thousand (as at 31 December 2018: EUR 75,000 thousand equivalent to BGN 146,687 thousand).
The interest rate is floating, based on the 6M EURIBOR plus a margin.

Nordic Investment Bank

On 15 December 2010, a second credit line was signed between the Nordic Investment Bank and Bulgarian
Development Bank AD for EUR 20,000 thousand. The purpose of the loan is financing of renewable energy
projects or envircnmental projects; projects involving the Nordic Investment Bank member states, as well as
indirect financing through commercial partner banks. The loan Is unsecured. As of 31 December 2019, the loan
was fully utilised.

As of 31 December 2015 the outstanding principal under the facllity amounted to EUR 3,783 thousand equivalent
to BGN 7,399 thousand (31 December 2018: EUR 6,136 thousand equivalent to BGN 12,001 thousand). The
interest rate is floating, based on 6M EURIBOR plus a margin.
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30. BORROWINGS FROM INTERNATIONAL INSTITUTIONS (CONTINUED)

Progress Program of the European Investment Fund

On 24 July 2015, a loan agreement was signed between Bulgarian Development Bank AD and the EIF under
Progress Program for EUR 5,000 thousand. The purpose of the loan is to finance micro-leases and micro-loans
for micro and small enterprises, as well as to finance micro-loans through financial institutions. This Program
targets companies with up to 10 employees and assets up to EUR 2 million (BGN 3,912 thousand). Self-employed
persons, start-ups, or persons experiencing difficultes in obtaining financing are also eligible as beneficiaries.

As of 31 December 2019 the loan Is fully repaid (31.12.2018: EUR 871 thousand equivalent to BGN 1,704
thousand).

China Development Bank

On 12 May 2017, BDB signed a loan agreement with China Development Bank for the amount of EUR 80,000
thousand. The purpose of the loan is financing the general lending activity of BDB — investment and working
capital loans. BDB could also use the funds to support strategic projects within the Belt & Road Initiative. The
loan is unsecured. As of 31 December 2019 the loan was fully utilized.

As of 31 December 2019 the outstanding principal under the loan amounted to EUR 79,000 thousand equivalent
to BGN 154,511 thousand (as of 31 December 2018: EUR 80,000 thousand equivalent to BGN 156,466 thousand).
The interest rate is floating based on the 6M EURIBOR plus margin.

On 13 December 2018, BDB signed a new financing agreement with the China Development Bank amounting to
EUR 300,000 thousand. The funds were granted as a first tranche under the framework agreement signed in July
2018 for EUR 1.5 billion. The funds may be used to finance projects within the Belt & Road initiative and/or
projects in support of SMEs, energy, communications, transport, agriculture in Bulgaria or for other purposes
agreed by BDB and CDB.

As of 31 December 2019 the outstanding princlpal under the loan amounted to EUR 300,000 thousand equivalent
to BGN 586,749 thousand (as of 31 December 2018: EUR 30,000 thousand equivalent to BGN 58,675 thousand).
The interest rate Is floating based on the 6M EURIBOR plus a margin.

The Export ~ Import Bank of China

On 28 September 2017, BDB signed an agreement with the Export — Import Bank of China for the amount of EUR
50,000 thousand. This was the first loan agreement between BDB and the Export - import Bank of China,
following the financial cooperation agreement, signed in 2014 between the two institutions and setting their
Interest in joint financing of key projects or areas. The funds can be used to finance the overall lending activity
of BBD, a short-term and mid-term trade financing, trans-border economic and commercial transactions
between China and Bulgaria. The loan is unsecured. As of 31 December 2019, the loan was fuily utilised.

As of 31 December 2019 the outstanding principal under the loan amounted to EUR 50,000 thousand equivalent
to BGN 97,792 thousand (31 December 2018: EUR 50,000 thousand equivalent to BGN 97,792 thousand). The
interest rate is floating based on the 6M EURIBOR plus a margin.
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31. OTHER BORROWINGS

2015 2018

Loan financing from the Minlstry of Finance with funds from Kfw 11,236 11,236
Kfw funds provided by the Ministry of Finance for trust management 5,883 6,070
17,119 17,306

There are no Interest payables accrued on other borrowlings as of 31 December 2019 and 2018.
Loan financing from the Ministry of Finance with funds from KfW

On 18 April 2007, the Bank concluded a loan agreement with the Government of the Republic of Bulgaria,
represented by the Minister of Finance. This agreement is based on the Treaty between Bulgaria and Germany
for financial collaboration from 2001 and an Agreement between the Republic of Bulgaria and Kreditanstalt fiir
Wiederaufbau {KfW)}. By virtue of this agreement, the amount of EUR 4,529 thousand (BGN 9,640 thousand) is
granted to the Bank designated as Project Promoter for the purpose of financing micro, small and medium-sized
enterprises. The term of the agreement is 10 years as from the date of transfer of the funds, while the latter
along with the due Interest shall be repaid bullet at the end of the period.

On 28 April 2017 BDB and the Ministry of Finance signed Annex 1 to extend the term of the contract by 10 more
years.

As of 31 December 2019 the outstanding principal and the capitallsed Interest amounted to EUR 5,745 thousand
equivalent to BGN 11,236 thousand {as of 31 December 2018: EUR 5,745 thousand equivalent to BGN 11,236
thousand). The loan interest is capitalised quarterly and Is based on 3M EURIBOR plus a margin.

As of 31 December 2019, the Bank has extended under this contract loans to commercial banks amounting to
EUR 5,745 thousand (31 December 2018: EUR 5,745 thousand equivalent to BGN 11,236 thousand). This amount
is included in the summarised table of the receivables from financlal institutlons, presented in Note 18.

KfW funds provided by the Ministry of Finance for trust management

The Bank has concluded an agreement with the Ministry of Finance {(MF) for management of funds granted by
Kreditanstalt fur Wiederaufbau (KfW) pursuant to an agreement between the Governments of Bulgaria and
Germany. These funds are provided for financing of small and medium-sized enterprises. The Ministry of Finance
bears the risk under the loans to partner-banks. The Bank selects the partner-banks and transfers the funds to
those approved; gathers information and performs periodic reviews of the funds utilisation, moniters the timely
interest and principal payments to the special account of the Ministry of Finance.

As of 31 December 2019 the outstanding principal of the funds under trust management with the Bank amounts
to EUR 3,008 thousand equivalent to BGN 5,883 thousand (31 December 2018: EUR 2,104 thousand equivalent
to BGN 6,070 thousand.

The Bank receives a management fee and accrues interest on the speclal account on a quarteriy basis.
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32. PROVISIONS

2019 2018
Bank guarantee provisions 2,822 2,998
Litigation provisions 117 187
2,939 3,185

Bank guarantee provisions are amounts determined under the ECL model of IFRS 9. Qut of them, BGN 146
thousand (2018: BGN 699 thousand) relates to bank guarantees on “Guarantee Fund for Micro Lending” project
of MLSP (Ministry of labour and soclal policy), and BGN 2,676 thousand (2018: BGN 2,299 thousand) relates to
individual guarantees Issued.

Litigation provislons relating to future payments under lawsuits relating to labour disputes amount to BGN 117
thousand (2018: BGN 187 thousand).

The following table presents the movement In provisions by guarantees:

2019 2018
Balance as of 1 January 2,998 833
Effect IFRS 9 - 92
Charged for the year 391 2287
Utilised in the year - 919
Reversed in the year {567) (1 133)
Balance as of 31 December 2,822 2,998
33. OTHER LIABILITIES
2019 2018
Payables to personnel for salarles and soclal securlty 599 480
Retirement benefit Nabilities 552 400
Charges on debenture loans and guarantees 162 48
Tax llabllitles 495 318
Accruals for expenses 1,147 287
Payables to EIF - 5
Finance lease llabllitles 448 561
Other credltors 47 142
3,750 2,221

Payables to personnel for salaries and social security contributions comprise accruals on compensated absences
and social security contributions due thereon.

Employee retirement benefits are due by the Bank to employees reaching retlrement age and are stated at their
present value.

In accordance with the Labour Code each employee Is entitied to Indemnity on retirement amounting to two
gross monthly salaries, and if he/she has worked for mare than 10 years for the Bank - to six gross monthly
salaries at the time of retirement. The Bank estimated the amount of these liabilities by using mathematical
models and the services of a certified actuary. On the basis of the calculations made, the amount of BGN 552
thousand was included in the separate statement of financial position at 31 December 2019 {31 December 2018:
BGN 400 thousand).
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33, OTHER UABILITIES {CONTINUED)

2019 2018
Present value of the llabllity at 1 January 400 366
Current service cost 95 101
Interest expense 5 6
Amounts paid in the period - (19)
Actuarlal (galns)/losses from changes in demographic and financial assumptions and
actual experlence 52 (54)
Present value of the llabliity at 31 December 552 400
Amounts on Amounts on Total
retirementfor  retirements
old age and due to lliness
{ength of
service
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Actuarlal galn/(loss) at 1 January (8) (41 - - (8 (41)
Actuarlal galn / (loss) recognized In cther comprehensive income for the
period (48) 33 - - (48) 33
Actuarlal galn/{loss) at 31 December {56) (8) - . (56) (8)

The following actuarial assumptions are used in calculating the present value of the liabilities as of 31 December

2019:

mortallty rate — in accordance with the table prepared on the basis of statistics issued by the National
Statistical Institute for the total mortality rate of the population In Bulgaria for the period 2015 - 2017;

staff turnover rate — from O per cent to 10 per cent depending of five age groups formed;

rate of early retirement due to iliness — from 0.027% to 0.3212% depending of five age groups formed;

effective annual interest rate for discounting — 1% (2018: 1%);

assumptions for the future level of working salaries in the Bank are based on the Bank’s development
plan for 2020 — 5% compared to the 2019 level and for 2021 and subsequent years — 5% compared to

the previous year level,

The effect for 2019 of the increase and decrease by 1% of the salary growth and the interest rate on the total
amount of current service costs and Interest, and on the present value of the liability for payment of defined

benefits upon retirement, are as follows:
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33, OTHER LIABILITIES {CONTINUED)

" Increaseby 1% of  Decrease by 1% of
salary growth salary growth
Change In the Interest and current service costs (“+"- increase, “~-
decrease) 21 {18)
Change in the present value of the liability as of 31 December 2019 {*+"-
Increase, “—"- decrease) 82 {68}
o - - Increase by 1% of  Decrease by 1% of
Interest rate Interest rate
Change In the interest and current service costs {“+"- Increase, "—"-
decrease) {12) 15
Change In the present value of the llabllity as of 31 December 2019 (*+"-
increase, “—*- decrease) (70) 87
o increase by 1% of  Decrease by 1% of
staff turnover rate staff turnover rate
Change In the interest and current service costs {"+"- Increase, “—'-
decrease) {19} 24
Change in the present value of the liabllity as of 31 December 2019 ("+"-
Increase, “—"- decrease) (73} S0

The effect for 2018 of the increase and decrease by 1 per cent of the salary growth and the interest rate on the
total amount of current service costs and interest, and on the present value of the llabllity for payment of defined

benefits upon retirement, are as follows:

Increase by 1% of Decrease by 1% of
salary growth salary growth
Change in the Interest and current service costs (*+"- increase, “~*-
decrease) 17 {14}
Change in the present value of the liabllity as of 31 December 2018 ("+"-
increase, “~"- decrease) 60 (49)
. mmf Decrease by 1% of
Interest rate Interest rate
Change In the interest and current service costs (“+"- increase, “-"-
decrease) (9) 12
Change In the present value of the liability as of 31 December 2018 {“+"-
increase, "—"- decrease) {50) 62
Increase by 1% of " Decrease by 1% of
staff turnover rate staff turnover rate
Change in the interest and current service costs (“+°- Increase, "—"-
decrease) (15) 15
Change in the present value of the llabillty as of 31 December 2018 {*+"-
Increase, "—"'- decrease) {53) 65
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34. SHARE CAPITAL

2019 2018

Share capital
Ordinary shares issued pald In cash 587,964 587,964
Ordinary shares Issued — In-kind contribution {land for the bullding of the bank) 12,200 12,200
Ordinary shares issued - in-kind contribution (the building of the bank) 1,610 1,610
601,774 601,774

The capital of the Bank is composed by 6,017,735 ordinary registered voting shares with par vaiue of BGN 100
each.

The Bulgarian Development Bank Act provides that not less than 51 per cent of shares forming the Bank’s capital
should be owned by the State; the shares of the State amounting to not less than 51 per cent of the registered
share capital are non-transferable.

Also, a specific limit is established with regard to the remaining shareholders, other than the Bulgarian State
through the Ministry of Finance. Shareholders may be: the Council of Europe Development Bank, the European
Investment Bank, the European Investment Fund as well as other banks for development In EU member states.
The Bank’s shares may not be pledged and the rights thereon may not be subject to transfer deals.

In August 2017, by decision of the S8, the Bank’s shares were transferred from the Ministry of Finance to the
Ministry of Economy and as of 31 December 2019, 99.99% of the Bank’s shares were held by the State through
the Ministry of Economy {31 December 2018: 59.99% of the Bank’s shares were held by the State through the
Ministry of Economy).

35. RESERVES

In accordance with the general provisions of the Commercial Act, the Bank shall allocate to Reserve Fund at least
1/10 of its profit for the year until the reserves reach 10% of the share caplital as stipulated in the Articles of
Association. Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Bank, the Bank shall set aside to the Reserve Fund at
least % of Its after-tax annual profit until the reserves reach 50% of its share capital.

The Reserve Fund may be used by the Bank only to cover its current or prior perlod losses, and not for distribution
of dividends, without the authorisation of Bulgarian National Bank.

Moreover, the Credit Institutions Act stipulates that the banks in Bulgaria cannot distrlbute dlvidends before
accumulating the minimum reserves {(mainly the Reserve Fund) required by law or by thelr Articles of Association,
or if the distribution of dividends will result in violation of the regulatory capltal adequacy ratios. The requirement
under the Bulgarian Development Bank Act is similar.

As of 31 December 2019, the Reserve Fund of the Bank amounted to BGN 68,908 thousand. {31 December 2018:
BGN 63,882 thousand).

As of 31 December 2019, the Additional Reserves of the Bank amounted to BGN 75,097 thousand (31 December
2018: BGN 75,145 thousand) and were formed as result of distribution of profits of the Bank from previous
periods, according to decisions of the General Meeting of Shareholders.
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35. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

In 2019, after a regular General Meeting of Shareholders of the Bank and in accordance with the provisions of
art. 91, para 2 of the State Budget of the Republic of Bulgaria Act for 2019 a decision was passed to distribute
dividends against the profit net of the contribution to the Reserve Fund at the amount of BGN 20,104 thousand
{2018: no dividend was paid against the profit). The dividend was paid in November 2019,

The remaining balance from the profit of Bulgarian Development Bank AD for 2018, net of the contributions to
the Reserve Fund, was taken to Additional Reserves.

In accordance with the Bulgarian Development Bank Act, each shareholder of the Bank is allowed to walve the
right to a dividend and then the dividend amount is transferred to Additional Reserves.

All unrealised gains and losses on fair value revaluation of the financlal assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income held at the end of each reporting period are recognised in equity, in a special
components thereof formed by the Bank and tltled Reserve for financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income. These gains and losses are transferred to current profits and losses upon
sale/maturity of the respective securlties and/or on permanent Impairment. The Reserve for financial assets
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is presented net of taxes. As of 31 December 2019,
the reserve is a posltive value amounting to BGN 12,183 thousand (31 December 2018: BGN 6,055 thousand -
positive value).

36. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

2019 2018
Contingent liabllities
Bank guarantees and letters of credit 159,065 56,073
incl. with cash collateral {16,149) {15,539)
Guarantee provisions (Note 32) (2,822) (2,098)
Total contingent liabllitles 140,094 37,536
Irrevocable commitments
Unutliised amount of approved loans 321,120 348,377
Unpaid portlon of shares of the Capital Investment Fund 41,250 41,250
Prtlclpatlonlln the SIA Investment program 1,168 1,410
Unclalmed portion of par value of EIF shares 4,694 4,694
Total irrevocable commitments 358,232 395,731
508,326 433,267

On 17 July 2015, Bulgarian Development Bank AD signed a funds management contract with EIF for accession to
the SIA (Soclal Impact Accelerator) investment program of EIF for investing in social venture funds, with the
particlpation amounting to EUR 1 million over an engagement period of up te 5 years. in 2018, a Consent for
extending the investment period of the SIA Fund by 1 year. The goal of the SIA program is to invest in small and
medium-sized enterprises having considerable soclal impact. EIF Is the manager of the program. The term of the
program is 10 years.

As of 31 December 2019, eighteen equity contributions were made under the initiative amounting to EUR 403
thousand equivalent to BGN 788 thousand {2018: BGN 279 thousand equivalent to BGN 546 thousand) {Note
22).
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36. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

In 2015, the Bank launched a new program for indirect financing of micro, small and medlum-sized businesses
subject to a maximum of BGN 150,000 thousand. Under the program BDB will be able to assume part of the risk
— up to 30 per cent of the amount of the individual sub-loans - on loans granted by partner banks to businesses.
At 31 December 2019, the Bank has effective agreements with five partner banks and the so-formed portfollo of
guarantees amounts to BGN 2,168 thousand (31 December 2018: five partner banks and portfollo of guarantees
amounting to BEGN 2,790 thousand).

Nature of instruments and credit risk

These commitments of contingent nature bear an off-balance sheet credit risk because only fees are recognised
in the financial statements until the commitments are fulfilled or expire. The amounts reflected in the above
table as guarantees represent the maximum accounting loss that would have been recognised at the end of the
reporting perlod if counterparties failed to perform in full their contractual obligations. Many of the contingent
liabilities and commitments will expire without being advanced fully or partlally. Therefore, the amounts do not
represent expected future cash flows. Collateral for issuance of common bank guarantees exceeds 100 per cent
and represents primarily restricted deposits at the Bank, mortgages of real estate and insurance policies issued
in favour of the Bank. When conditlons for enforcement of an issued guarantee occur, the Bank judges the
possibilities for recourse to the counterparty and eventual realisation of the provided securities.

The guarantees of the Bank, issued under the Micro-credits Guarantee Fund Project of MLSP are not secured. In
case of activation of a component of a guarantee issued by the Bank, the payment thereon is not assessed as
ultimate loss because the partner-bank is obliged to undertake all necessary measures for realising the received
collateral of the non-performing loan and to reimburse the respective amount to BDB.

The non-paid portion of the nominal value of EIF shares held by the Bank shall become due for payment after a
special decision for this purpose taken by European Investment Fund’s General Meeting of Shareholders. By the
issue date of this financial statement no such a decision has been taken.

37. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2019 2018

Cash In hand {Note 17) 289 335
Current accounts with the Central Bank {Note 17) 250,330 297,287
Recelvables from banks with original maturlty up to 3 months (Note 18) 204,114 318,679
454,733 617,301

The following table summarises the movements in the liabilities arising from financing activity, including cash-
flow and non-monetary changes, with a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the
statement of financlal position of the liabilities arising from financing activity for the year ended 31 December
2019,
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37. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

1January Cash 31 December
2019 Cashinflows outflows 2019

Current borrowings from international institutions 904,782 528,073  (220,918) 1,211,937

Current llabilities on cther borrowings

17,306 120 {307) 17,119
Total Nabilitles from financing activity 922,088 528,193 (221,225) 1,229,056
1 January Effect of changes 31 December

2018 Cash inflows Cash outflows in exchange rates 2018

Current borrowings from international

institutions 869,821 156,254 {121,259) {34) 904,782
Current liabilities on other borrowings 17,492 16 (202) ) 17,306
Total liabilities from financing activity 887,313 156,270 {121,461} (3a) 922,088

*The interest accruals of BGN 6,631 thousand are included in the operating cash flows of the Bank.
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38. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES AND COMPANIES UNDER JOINT CONTROL WITH THE STATE

Entity/person

Type of control

Ministry of Economy

Ministry of FInance

Natlonal Guarantee Fund EAD

Micro Flnancing Institutlon JOBS EAD
Capltal Investments Fund AD

8DB Leasing EAD

BDB Factoring EAD

Trade center Maritsa EOOD

Holding Bulgarian State Railways EAD
Bulgarian Institute for Standardizatlon
South Stream Bulgaria AD

*|cle* AD

Bulgarian Energy Holding EAD

Kinteks EAD

Energy Investment Company EAD

Water Supply and Sewerage EOOD Plovdiv
Water Supply and Sewerage EOOD Shumen
TPP Maritsa East 2 EAD

State Consolldation Company EAD

Eco Anthracite EAD

Saint Ekaterina University Multiprofile Hospital for Active
Treatment

Montazhl EAD

Montazhl - Sofla EOOD

Road Infrastructure Agency

Bulgarlan Export Insurance Agency EAD

This document is a translation of the original Bulgarlan text, in case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevall.

Majorlty shareholder of the capltal of the Bank representing the

State

Under Joint control with the State
Subsidlary

Subsldlary

Subsidlary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Company under joint control with the State
Company under joint control with the State
Company under Joint control with the State
Company under Joint control with the State
Company under joint control with the State
Company under loint control with the State
Company under joint control with the State
Company under joint control with the State
Company under joint control with the State
Company under Joint control with the State
Company under Joint control with the State
Company under joint contro! with the State
Company under joint control with the State

Company under Joint control with the State
Company under Jolnt control with the State
Under Joint control with the State

Company under jolnt control with the State
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38. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES AND COMPANIES UNDER JOINT CONTROL WITH THE STATE

(CONTINUED)

The table above shows the companies with which the Bank had transactions during the reporting period. All

related party transactions are at arm’s length.

Related party balances in the statement of financial position:

Assets
Entity/person

Ministry of Finance
Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD
BDB Leasing EAD

Companles under joint control with the State

Companles under Joint control with the State
Total for the subsidiaries

Liabilities

Entity/person

Ministry of Finance

National Guarantee Fund EAD

Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD

BDB Leasing EAD

BDB Factoring EAD

Trade Centre Maritsa EOOD

Capital Investments Fund AD

Compantes under Joint control with the State

Totsl for the subsidiaries

This document is a translation of the original Bulgarian text, In case of divergence the Bulgarian text shall prevail,

Type of balance

FInancial assets at falr value through other
comprehenslve Income

Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to customers

Financlal assets at fair value through other
comprehensive incomea

Type of balance

Other barrowings

Liabilitles to customers on deposits
Llabliities to customers on deposits
Liabllitles to customers on deposits
Liabilitles to customers on deposits
Liabilitles to customers on deposits
Liabllities to customers on deposits

Liahilities to customers on deposits

2019 2018
359,100 460,963
4,808 6,104
11,828 -
103,982 90,673
23,983 43,931
16,636 6,104
2019 2018
17,119 17,306
120,376 118,828
973 649
1,207 -
1,902 -
2 2
16,248 16,250
675,239 911,985
140,708 135,729
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38. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES AND COMPANIES UNDER JOINT CONTROL WITH THE STATE

(CONTINUED)

Related party transactions:

Entity/person

Ministry of Finance

Natlonal Guarantee Fund EAD

Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD

BDB Leasing EAD

Total Income from transactlons with
subsidlaries
Total expenses for transactions with
subsidiarles

Companies under joint control with the
State

Type of reiation

Fee and commission income
Interest income
Interest expenses

Fee and commission Income
Interest expenses

Rental Income

Dividend income

Fee and commission Income
Interest Income

Rental Income

Dividend income

Interest expenses

Interest Income

Fee and commisslon income
Interast expenses

Other operating income
Other operating income

Commitments and contingencies with related parties:

Entlty/person
Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD
BDB Leasing EAD

Capital Investments Fund AD

Companies under Joint control with the State

Companles under joint control with the State

Total for the subsidlarles

Type

Unutilised amount of a loan
approved

Unutilised amount of a loan
approved

Commitment on unpald subscribed
capital

Unutllised amount of a loan
approved

Bank guarantees issued

2019 2018
60 62
3,353 2,971
(121) (124)
1 1
(84) {141)
a7 33
1,256 771
2 2
97 150
36 27
a7 121
12 -
1,488 1,105
{s4) {141)
5,929 4,883
161 227
(216) (25)
(3) .
24 34
2019 2018
20,100 20,300
8,143 -
41,250 41,250
43,677 41,708
7,956 9,332
69,493 61,552
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38. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES AND COMPANIES UNDER JOINT CONTROL WITH THE STATE
(CONTINUED)

Relations with key management personnel:

Balances with key management personnel 2019 2018
Payables to customers on deposits 7491 462
Remuneratlon payable 52 49
Loans and advances to customers 130 136
Transactions with key management personnel 2019 2018
Remuneration and soclal securlty contributions {1,404) (1,445)
Interest expenses E -
Interest Income 3 4

39. EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

No adjusting events or significant non-adjusting events have occurred after the reporting date until the date of
approval of the financial statements except for the following non-adjusting events:

COVID-19 and BDB capital increase

In the early 2020, due to the spread of new coronavirus (Covid-19) globally, difficulties In the business and
aconomic activity of a number of enterprises and entire economic sectors emerged. On 11 March 2020, the
world Health Organization also announced the presence of a coronavirus pandemic {Covid-19). The National
Assembly of the Republic of Bulgaria declared a state of emergency in Bulgaria from 13 March 2020 for a period
of one month, subsequently extended to 13 May 2020,

On 13 May 2020, the state of emergency expired and the Councll of Ministers declared an emergency outbreak
on 14 May 2020 to date.

Despite the drop-off of anti-epldemic measures and the resumption of company activity, many economic sectors
remained affected by the effects of the coronavirus pandemic. The macroeconomic forecasts of the world
institutions expect an overall decrease in Bulgaria's GDP of up to 7% on an annual basis and a recovery of pre-
crisis levels of growth {stabilization) of the economy In the 2-3 quarter of 2021.

The transport, tourism, entertainment and leisure sectors remain affected, as well as companies entirely in
export-oriented industries which, due to restrictions on free movement, were not able to send thelr dellverles
on time in the first half of 2020.

In connectlon with the covid-19 epidemic, the Bulgarian government has taken a number of measures to support
the economy. The measures with a direct effect on the Bank were as follows:

- By decision No215 of 27 March 2020, the Councll of Ministers decided to increase the capital of BDS by
BGN 700 milllon. The funds shall be used "to implement measures to support the economy in connection
with the COVID-19 epidemic, including issuing portfolio guarantees to banks to allow them to provide
more flexible business loan conditions for a certain period, under certain conditions and judgement on
a case-hy-case basis."
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38. EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

COVID-19 and BDB capltal Increase (continued)

- By Decision No 257 of 14 April 2020, the Councll of Ministers approved the Interest-free loan guarantee
program to protect people deprived of the opportunity to work due to the COVID-19 pandemic, with a
budget of BGN 200 million proposed by the BDB. The program will be secured with the increase of the
Bank’s capital according to Decislon No 215 of the Councll of Ministers from 2020,

= By Decision No 310 of 7 May 2020, the Council of Ministers approved the Portfolio Guarantee

Programme to support the liquidity of micro, small and medium-sized enterprises {SMEs) affected by
the emergency state and the COVID-19 epidemic proposed by the BDB, with a budget of BGN 500
million. The programme will be secured with the Bank's capltal Increase according to Decision No 215
of the Council of Ministers of 2020.
By Decree No 134 of 18 June 2020 the Council of Ministers approved changes in the budget of the
Ministry of economy for 2020 and additional payments for financing the budget balance at the expense
of the central budget. By Decision No 402 of 18 June 2020 of the Councll of Minlisters the Bulgarian State
decided to increase its shareholding in the capital of Bulgarlan Development Bank AD through a cash
contribution at the total amount of BGN 140 000 000. Implementing these measures a General
shareholders meeting was held on 06.07.2020 when a decision was taken to increase the Bank’s capital
through issue of 1 400 000 new registered dematerialized voting shares with nominal value of BGN 100
each at the total amount of BGN 140 000 000. In this way the capital of Bulgarian Development Bank
AD was increased from BGN 1,301,773,500 to BGN 1,441,773,500.

The corenavirus pandemic did not have measurable influence on the Bank’s financlal position and result from
operations In the first half of 2020. Given the structure of guarantee programs and their effective date at the end
of June management expects their influence on the results from operatlons In the second half of 2020 as the
specific dimensions will depend on the volume of loans guaranteed.

In addition, by decision of the BNB of 9 April 2020, the BNB approved the proposed by Assoclation of Banks in
Buigaria procedure for deferral and settlement of due obligations to banks and their subsidiaries - financial
institutions in connection with the state of emergency introduced on 13.03.2020 by the National Assembly in
connectien with the COVID-19 pandemic to which the Bank joined. It is a private moratorium, in accordance with
EBA guidelines (EBA/GL/2020/02). The effect of this moratorium on the Bank's business In short term is yet to be
calculated.

Changes In the Bank's Management Board

By Decislon of the Supervisory Board of the BDE under Protocol No 10 of 06.04.2020 Mr. Jivko lvanov Todorov
was elected as a new member of the Management Board of the BDB. Mr. Jivko Todorov is authorlzed to represent
and manage the Bank as Executive Director. The circumstances are recorded In the Commercial Register on
14.04.2020.

By Declslon of the Supervisory Board of the BDB under Protocol Ne 12 of 08.04.2020, the authorlzation of the
Chief Executive Director to represent the Bank was withdrawn and a decision was taken to dismiss Mr. Stoyan
Todorov Mavrodiev as a member of the Management Board of the Bank. The circumstances are recorded in the
Commercial Register on 22.04.2020.
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39. EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Changes in the Bank's Management Board (continued)

By Decision of the Supervisory Board under Protocol No 12 of 14.04.2020, Mr. Panayot Ivov Fillpov was elected
as 4 new member of the Management 8oard of the BDB. This clrcumstance was recorded in the Commercial
Register on 24.04.2020. Mr Panayot Filipov is authorized to represent and manage the Bank as Executive
Director. This circumstance was recorded in the Commercial Reglster on 30.04.2020.

By Decision of the Supervisory Board under Protocol No 18 of 24.04.2020, the authorization of the Executive
Director to represent the Bank was withdrawn and a declsion was taken te dismiss Mr. Rumen Dimitrov Mitrov
as a member of the Management Board of the Bank. This circumstance was recorded in the Commercial Register
on 30.04.2020.

Changes In the Ban’s Supervisory Board

By Declsion of the General shareholders meeting of the Bank on 20.08.2020 Mr. Luchezar Borisov was dismissed
as a member of the Supervisory Board and replaced by Mr. Stamen Yanev. The replacement of Mr. Luchezar
Borisov wlth Mr. Stamen Yanev in the Supervisory Board was recorded in the Commerclal Register on 26.08.2020.

Change in the structure of the Bank

By declsions of the Management Board of 12.05,2020, 22.06.2020 and 21.08.2020 confirmed by the Supervisory
Board on 14.05.2020, 29.06.2020 and 01.09.2020 the Bank made changes to its organizational structure as
follows:

- Closed the departments General Secretary and Cabinet of Management Board;

- Transferred departments “Strategic development and planning”, “Public relations” and “Concessions”
previously subordinated to the head of Cabinet of the Management Board to executive director and
department “Strategic development and planning” Is transformed to a division and renamed to
“Strategic development”;

- "Classified information” Department is transformed to “Classified information” Division;

- "Secretariat” Department is separated from “Administration” Division and is directly subordinated to
executlve director;

- The position "Data protection offlcer”; part of “Classified information” Division is separated and is
directly subordinated to executlve director;

- A new Division “Monitoring and financial instruments” was established.

For the purpose of function and control allocation among the executive directors of BDB the structure
components of the Bank’s organizational structure are grouped in sectors as follows:

Sector Na 1

“Risk” Division

- “Credit Administration” Divislon

- ,Non-Performing Loans” Division
»Legal” Divislon
«Information Technologies” Division
LLClassified information” Division

-  Data protection officer
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Sector Ng 2

- ,Corporate banking” Division

- ,Treasury” Division

- ,On-lending Programs® Division

- ,Investment banking and project financing” Division
-, International Financial Institutions and EU Funds” Division
- ,Monitoring and financial instruments “ Division

- ,Administrative” Division

- ,Human Resources” Division

- ,Security” Division

- ,Public Concession” Department

- .Secretarlat” Department

Sector N2 3

- JAccounting” Dlvision

- ,Planning, Analysis and Regulations” Division
- ,Operations and Client Services” Division

- ,Compliance” Division

- ,Strategic development” Division

- ,Public relations” Department

-  Chlef economist

allocation of responsibilities among the members of the Management Board of BDB Is as follows:

Sector 1 — Mr. Panayot Filipov, Executive Director, member of Management Board
Sector 2 — Mr. Nikolay Dimltrov, Executive Director, member of Management Board
Sector 3 — Mr. Jivko Todorov, Executive Director, member of Management Board

Changes In the management bodles of subsidlarles

By decision of 8DB Management Board the following changes In the management bodies of BDB subsidiarles
have been made:

BDB Leasing EAD

By Decision under Protocol No 33 of 13.05.2020 of the Supervisory Board of BDB AD in Its capacity of sole owner
of BDB Leasing EAD Mr. Stoyan Todorov Mavrodiev, Mr. Rumen Dimitrov Mitrov and Mr. Nikolay Dimitrov
Dimitrov are released as members of the Board of Directors of BDB Leasing EAD. Mr. Jivko Ivanov Todorev, Mrs.
Antoniya Hristoforova Dobreva and Mr. Emil Valkanov Valkanov are elected as new members. At the same time
the authorization of the procurator Emil Valkanov Valkano Is withdrawn. Mr. Jivko lvanov Todorov Is elected as
chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Emil Valkanov Vaikanov is elected as vice chairman of the Board of
Directors and Executive Directar. lvaylo Kirllov Popov was approved for authorization as a procurator of BDB
Leasing EAD. The circumstances are recorded in the Commercial Reglster on 20.05.2020.
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39. EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Changes in the management bodles of subslidiaries (continued)

BDB Leasing EAD (continued)

By Decision under Protocol No 34 of 13.05.2020 the Supervisory Board of BDB AD in its capacity of sole owner of
BDB Leasing EAD approved the authorization of Mr. Ivaylo Kirllov Popov as a procurator of BDB Leasing EAD. The
circumstance Is recorded in the Commercial Register.

BDB Factoring EAD

By Decision under Protocol No 39 of 13.05.2020 of the Supervisory Board of BDB AD in its capacity of sole owner
of BDB Factoring EAD Mr. Stoyan Todorov Mavrodiev and Mr. Rumen Dimitrov Mitrov are released as members
of the Board of Directors of BDB Factoring EAD. Mr. Panayot Ivov Filipov and Mr. Georgi Vanyushev Lllyanov are
elected as new members. At the same time the authorization of the procurator Georgi Vanyushev Lilyanov is
withdrawn. Mr. Panayet Filipov is elected as chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Georgi Vanyushev Lllyanov
is elected as vice chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director of BDB factoring EAD. The
circumstances are recorded in the Commerclal Register on 20.05.2020.

By Decision under Protocal No 48 of 26.05.2020 of the Supervisory Board of BDB AD in its capacity of sole owner
of BDB Factoring EAD Mr. Nikolay Dimitrov Dimitrov is released as a member of the Board of Directors of BDB
Factoring EAD. Mr. Todor Hristov Gunchev is elected as a new member of the Board of Directors. The
circumstances are declared for recording in the Commercial Reglster.

National Guarontee Fund EAD

By Decision under Protocol No 35 of 13.05.2020 of the Supervisory Board of BDB AD in its capaclty of sole owner
of National Guarantee Fund EAD Mr. Stoyan Todorov Mavrodiev, Mr. Angel Atanasov Djalazov and Anton
Georgiev Georgiev are released as members of the Board of Directors of Natlonal Guarantee Fund EAD. Mr. Jivko
Ivanov Tadorov, Mr. Todor Lyudmilov Todorov and Mrs. Zaharina Damyanova Todorova are elected as new
members. Mr. Jivko Todorov is elected as chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Todor Todorov is elected as
vice chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Director of the company. At the same time the
authorization of the procurator Mr. Andon Georgiev Georglev Is withdrawn. The circumstances are recorded in
the Commercial Register on 20.05.2020.

Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD

By Decision under Protocol No 37 of 13.05.2020 of the Supervisory Board of BDB AD In Its capacity of sole owner
of Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD Mr. Rumen Dimitrov Mitrov, Mr. Nikelay Dimitrov Dimitrov, Mr. Angel
Atanasov Djalazov and Mrs. Hristina Atanasova Todorova are released as members of the Board of Directors of
Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD. Mr. Panayot Ivov Flitpov, Mrs. Ivana Borisova Tzaneva and Mrs. Angelina
Georgieva Angelova are elected as new members. The authorization of the procurator Hristina Todorova is
withdrawn. The circumstances are recorded in the Commercial Register on 20.05.2020.
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39. EVENTS AFTER THE DATE OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

Changes In the management bodles of subsidiaries {continued)

Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD (continued}

By Decision under Protocol No 46 of 21.05.2020 the Supervisory Board of BDB AD In Its capacity of sole owner of
Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD approved the election of Mrs. Ivana Borlsova Tzaneva as Executive Director
of the company. The circumstance Is declared for recording in the Commerclal Reglster.

By Decision under Protocol No 47 of 22.05.2020 of the Supervisory Board of BCB AD in its capacity of sole owner
of Micro Financing Institution JOBS EAD Mr. Stamen Stamenov Yanev is elected as new member of the Board of
Directors. The circumstance Is declared for recording In the Commercial Register.

Capital Investments Fund AD

Mr. Stoyan Todorov Mavrodiev and Mr. Rumen Dimitrov Mitrov are released as members of the Board of
Directors of Capital Investments Fund AD on extraordinary general meeting of the shareholders of Capital
Investments Fund AD held on 13.05.2020. Mr. Tlhomir Gochev Chemshirov and Mr. Tzvetomir Georgiev Tzanov
are elected as new members of the Board of Directors. The changes are recorded in the Commercial Register on
20.05.2020.

By Decision under Protocol No 11 of 13.05.2020 of the Board of Directors of Capital Investments Fund AD Mr.
Nikolay Bimitrov Dimitrov is elected as chairman of the Board of Directors and Mr. Tihomir Gochev Chemshirov
is elected as vice chalrman. At the same time Mr. Nikolay Dimitrov Dimitrov is elected as Executive Director of
the company.
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